REPORT FOR THE YEAR 1973
of the
COMMISSION OF INVESTIGATION
of the
STATE OF NEW JERSEY
o
'HE GOVERNOR AND THE LEGISLATURE
of the

STATE OF NEW JERSEY






THE COMMISSION OF INVESTIGATION

OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY

Commissioners
Joseph . Rodriguez, Chairman Thomas R. Farley
Charles L. Bertini David G. Lueas

* John F. MeCarthy, Jr.

Executive Director
Martin G. Holleran

Counsel to the Commission
B. Dennig O’Connor Charles D, Sapienza
Michael J. Delaney Michael R. Siavage

Executive Assistant
Peter Carter

28 West State Street
Trenton, New Jersey 08608

* Appointed to the Commission July 8, 1970 and served as Chairman from February 22,
1971 until his term expired December 15, 1873. )






StaTE or NEW JERSEY
CoMMissior oF INVESTIGATION
28 WEST STATE STREET

Trenton, NEw Jersey 08608
TeLEPHONE (609) 292-6767

March, 1974

TO: The Governor and the Members of the Senate and
the General Assembly of the State of New Jersey

The New Jersey Commission of Investigation is pleased to sub-
mit its fifth annual report and recommendations pursuant to
Section 10 of P. L. 1968, Chapter 266 (N.J. S. A. 52:9M-10), the
Act establishing the Commission of Investigation.

Respeectfully submitted,

" Joseph H. Rodriguez
Charles L. Bertini
Thomas R. Farley
David @. Taucas






TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE
KForEworn .. . .. S 1
OmricIN a¥D Scope oF THE COMMISSION ... ........... P 3
Resvme oF TaE CoMMIssTON 's MATOR INVESTIGATIONS FOR
ruE PERIOD JUNE, 1969 TO DECEMBER, 1973 .. ... .. ... .. .. .. 8
CoLLATERAL RESULTS FROM |NVESTIGATIONS . . ... ... ........ 25
A Homicide Is Solved .. ... ... ... . ... ... ... . ... .. 25
Jewelry Fencing Detected ... ... ... ... .. ... ... .. .27
Some Crimingl Repercussions .. ... ... .. ... .. ... ... 27
Former Madison Township Officials Are Indicted . .29
Three Judges Suspended ... ... .. ... . .. ... .0 . ... 30
A Federal Inguiry ... ... .. ... .. ... ... ... ... 32
ConTINUEY CONFRONTATION . ... ..o 33
A Chilling Effect ... .. . . . .. ... .. ... ... 34
CrrizENEY COMPLATNTS . .. ..ot 36
OTHER ACTIVITIES .. ..o ottt et et e 38
“Ligison with Law Enforcement Agencies ... ... . ... . ... 38
“Cooperation with the Legislature ... . " £ (]
Private Hearings ... .. ... ... . . ... . . ... ... 41
_ Public Awareness . ... . ... ... ... ... T
Lucsrative RECOMMENDATIONS - .. .. ... ... ... . ........... .43
Narcotics Laws .. ........ ... ... .. FE P 43
- The Workmen’s Compensation System . ... . ... . I 45
Local Conflicts of Interest Statute .. ... .. ... ... . ... L. 48
Forfeiture of Vehicles ... ... ... .. ... .. . 49
Land Development ... ... .. . .. .. ... .. R 50

IsvesticaTioN oF Narcorics DistrisuTion aNp Its ReELaTion
T0o Liaws AND 1AW ENFORCEMERT . ... ..o oot b2



The Background of the Investigation .. ... ... ... ... ..
The Mideast Source Via France ... ... .. e
Ineffective Customs Checks ... ... .. . .. ... ... ...... ..
. Reluctance to Move Against the Herown Trade .. ... . ... ..

- The Narcotics Flow from Monireal and South America ..

What Is the Matter with Your Children? ... . ... .. ...

On Who Controls Herown and Cocaine Distribution

we Florida . . DL

Instances of the Drugs Flowing Northward ... ... ... .. ..

‘The Hudson County Problem ...................... e

- An Increase i Pill Usage Spells o Prescription

Pad Problem . ... .

A View on Lesser Violations .. ... ... ... ..........
Cocaine Trafficking in Newark ... ......... ... ........
-Some Kidnappings and a Broken Back .. .. ........ .. ...
A Bad Load and o Homicide . . ..... ... .. ... ... P
Freda Testifies ... .. ... . . ...
Some Guns, a Rifle and Some Arrests ... ... ... ... ... ..
An Early Involvement in Drugs ... .................. ...
Some Organized Crime Associations ... ... ... . .. ... ...
Assorted Criminal Ventures .. ........ .. ..............
The Huge Profits in Heroin ... ... .. ... ... ... ... .....
- A Substantial Heroin Operation . ...... ... ...... ... ....
Narcotics Finances Detailed ... ... ... .. .. ... . ... ...
No Stomach For a Contract ... ... ... ... ... ... .. ...
From Miami to Newark ... ... ... ... .. ... ... .. .....
The New York Drug Law ... ... .. ... .. ... .. ... ..
Programs of the Customs Service ... ... .. ... ... .. .. ..
A New Federal Program ... ... ... .. .. .. .. ... ........
" The New Jersey Drug Scene and the Black Mafio . ... ..
The County Strike Force Concept ... ... .. . . . . ... ... .
The Union County Narcotics Strike Force ... .. ... .. ..
" A Possible But Not a Present Exodus ... .. . ... .. .. . ..
The Essex County Narcolics Bureaw . ...... ... .. ... . ..
The Need for ““ Buy Money’’ and ‘‘ Flash Rolls’” . .. . ...
" The Inter-County Flow and Intelligence N eeds ..........

Organized C’mme Imvolvement .. ... ... .. .. ... .. .. LT

Drugs in Schools ... ...
The Ocean County Narcotics Bureau ....................
Undercover People Are Indispensable

. The I'mportance of Full Time Prosecutorial Staffs ... .. .



The Role of the New Jersey State Police ... . ... ... S 119
On the Dangers of Undercover Work .. ... ... ... .. .. coooo 123
Proposed Revisions of the New Jersey Drug Law .. . . Y195
Tougher Sentences ... ... ... . ... ... . ... . ... oo 125
FINAL RECOMMENDATIONS ... ... ......... ...... .. .... L  12—9
Introduction .. ........ ... .. ... . ... ... ... ... .......... 129
New Jersey’s Controlled Dangerous Substances Act—
Penalties .. ... . L. 130
Seized Money as Contraband; Use w Other Investigations- 132
Narcotics Strike Forces—Jurisdiction ... ... ... ... ... . 140
Narcotics Strike Forces—Free Interchange of Agents .. 141
Other Recommendalions .......... ... .. ............. L 143
Preseription Pads ... ... .. ... ... ... ... ... .. 143
The ¢‘Beat Bag’* Sale ......... .. ...... ... ... .. .. Lo 144
Full Time Prosecutors .. ........... ... . ... ... ... 144

INVESTIGATION OF DONATED F'EDERAL SURPLUS PROPERTIES
DISTRIBUTION BY THE STATE AND THE PURCHASING AND
ADMINISTRATIVE PrAcTICES oF THE Passaic Couxney

VocarioNaL axp TrecaNicAL HicH ScHOOL .. ... ... ... .. ... 146
Background of the Investigation ... ... ... ... ... ... .. 146
The State Agency for Surplus Property .. ........ ... .. 147
Poor Management Leads to Inequitable Distribution

and Questionable Stockpiling . ... ... .. ... ..., 148
Failure of the State to Audit This Agency ... .. .. ... .. . 153
Walter Macak Testifies ............. ... ... .... .. L. 156
Unconscionable Profits Paid to Middlemen ... ... .. . .. 158
“Commaissions’’ Are the Key to the Business . ... .. . . 161
Disinclinations to Testify . .. .. ... .. .. ... .. ... .. .. 171
More About ‘‘Commissions’ ... .. ... .. .. .. ... .. . 171
A Better Price Could Have Been Obtained ... .. L 175
On Learning From an Unfortunate Sttuation . ... .. . .. .. 176
All Middlemen Inflate the Price . ... .. . . .. .. . .. .. . .. 180
Two More Decline to Testify .. .......... ... . ... ...... 180
Joseph Cararra’s Testimony Is Compelled . ... ... .. ... 189
A Middleman Tells of Payoffs ... .. .. .. ... .. ... .. ... 191

Alew Smollok Declines an Opportunity to Testify . .. ... 196



School Property and Employees’ Work Is Converted to-
Personal Use ... ... .. .. ... . . ... ... :
Reply Testimony .............. e

Fvat, RECOMMENDATIONS . . . o oo eee e e e

Introduction ... ..
A Proper Surplus Property Program .. ... .. ... ... . ...

1) A State Plan for the Acquisition and Distribution
of Surplus Property ... . ... ... ... ... . ... ...

2) A Proper Staff to Carry Out the Agencies’
Besponsibilities ... 0. ... ... . L

3) SBufficient Warehouse Facilities . ... .. [
4) A Realistie Budget ... ... ... ... ... .. . .. S
5) Transfer of the Agency . ..... ... .. ... ... ... ...

Improved Controls of School Purchasing Practices . ..

1) Responsibilities Must Be Fully Shouldered .. .. . .

2) Confusion Between Statutes (overning Purchase
By Bid ...

3) Proper Purchasing Procedures .......... ... .. L
4) Prompt Payment of Bills .. ......... .. ... ... ... ..

Theft of Goods and Services by Public Officials . . .. e

A PPENDICES

- Appendiz I—The Commission’s Statute .. ... ... ... o
Appendiz II—Members of the Commission ... .. . .. .
Appendiz III—The State Code of Fair Procedure



FOREWORD

This Annual Report marks the completion of the first five years
of service rendered by the New Jersey State Commission of In-
vestigation (8.C.L).

The Cormamission believes the record as set forth in summary
and in detail in this report demonstrates that the service has been
productive and useful. One need glance only at the summaries
of past investigations conducted by the Commission to appreciate
the breadth and substance of the Commission’s work fo date.
Throughout the years new, varied and significant investigations
have been developed in the areas of organized crime, corruption,
effective enforcement of the laws, and failings in and abuses of
laws and govermmental operations. In 1973 alone, the Commis-
sion’s public hearings dwelled on subjects of the magnitude and
variety of the Workmen’s Compensation system, the distribution
by the state of federal surplus property, public school purchasing
practices, and narcotics distribution and related law enforcement
programs,

Each investigation has bheen arduous. In each, the Commission
has striven to maintain standards of fairness, dignity, due delib-
eration and vigor. A constant stress by the Commission has been
and will be to carry out its statutory mandates to keep the public
informed of the effectiveness of the enforcement of the laws of
the state and to recommend improvements in laws and govern-
mental procedures.

The Commission’s self-expressed beliefs and policies ave, of
course, no recommendation. That can come only from the expres-
sions of others. During 1973 the Commission received the most
gratifying and challenging expression of support to date, namely
the bipartisan enactment by the Legislature of the bill which
extended the Commissgion for an additional five years.

Vietor Riesel, the nationally syndicated columnist, took note of
that extension by stating in his column that the S.C.I. is a ¢‘hard-
hitting Commission which could well be emulated by other states.”’
The Asbury Park Press commenied in pertinent part as follows
on the extension of the Commission:
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The Commission has rendered important, perhaps
vital service to the state. The series of investigations
into the operation of underworld erime in New Jersey
has extended into- areas of organized ecrime and
corruption . . .

Kixtension of the term of the Commission gives
hope that the excellent work of the group will continue
unabated with five years ahead of if, during which it
can enter into more investigations with full confidence
that there is enough time to bring other malefactors
to justice. -

The Commission considers these and other expressions of sup-
port as challenges for establishing an even broader and more
significant record of accomplishment in the years ahead. With this
Annual Report, the Commission dedicates itself to that goal.



ORIGIN AND SCOPE OF THE COMMISSION

Despite the Commission’s work being generally known through—
out the state, inquiries continue to be made about its origin and
its jurisdiction. The Commission believes this important informa-
tion should be conveniently available, and, accordingly, the perti-
nent facts are again summarized here. '

The Commission was an outgrowth of extensive research and
publie hearings conducted in 1968 by the Joint Leglslatlve Com-
mittee to Study Crime and the System of Criminal Justice in New
Jersey. That Committee, whose chairman was then Senator but
now Congressman HEdwin B. Forsythe, was under direction from
the Legislature to find ways immediately to correct a serious and
intensifying crime problemr in New Jersey.

The Forsythe Committee found that a erisis in erime control
existed and that the expanding activities of organized crime could
be attributed to ‘‘failure to some considerable degree in the system
itself, official corruption, or both.”’

Concerned over a lack of new and meaningful developments
which would help alleviate the problem, the Forsythe Committee
offered a series of sweeping recommendations for improving the
administration of eriminal justice. The two major priority recom-
mendations were for a new Sfate Criminal Justice unit in the
executive branch of government and an independent State Com-
mission of Investigation (S.C.1.), patterned after the high-level
New York State Commission of Investigation then in its 10th year
and nationally recognized for its probes into organized crime,
official corruption and other matters. -

The Commiftee envisioned the assignments of the proposed
Criminal Justice unit and the proposed Commission of Investiga-
tion to be complementary in the fight against erime and corruption.
The Criminal Justice unit was to be a relatively large organization
with extensive manpower and authority to coordinate and press
forward eriminal investigations and prosecutlons throughout the
state.

The Commission of Investigation, like the New York Commis-
sion, was to be a relatively small but highly expert body which
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would conduet fact-finding investigations, bring the facts to the
publie’s attention, and make recommendations to the Governor
and the Legislature for improvements in State laws and the opera-
tions of government.

The Forsythe Committee recommendations prompted subsequent
legislative and executive action. New Jersey now has a Criminal
Justice Division in the State Department of Law and Public Safety
and an independent State Commission of Investigation Whmh is
structured as a Commission of the Legislature.

The bill creating the New Jersey Commission of Investigation
was introduced April 29, 1968 in the Senate. Legislative approval
of that measure was completed September 4, 1968. The bill created
the Commission for an initial term beginning January 1, 1969 and
ending December 31, 1974. Tt is cited as Public Law, 1968, Chapter
266 N.J.S.A. 52:9M-1 et seq.” As previously noted, the Legislature
on November 12, 1973 completed enactment of a bill {8 2067 which
is cifed as Public Law 1973, Chapter 238) which renews the Com-
mission for another term ending December 31, 1979.

To insure the integrity and impartiality of the Coromission,
no more than two of the four Commissioners may be of the same
political party. Two Commissioners are appointed by the Gov-
ernor and one each by the President of the Senate and the Speaker
of the Assembly. It thus may be said the Commission by law is bi-
partisan and by coneern and action ig non-partisan.

The Commission’s statute was drafted so ag to insure that this
agency would not be a ‘“‘erime commission’’ alone but that it
additionally would have broad civil jurisdiction to probe irreg-
ularities and shortcomings not involving criminal processes or
implications. Indeed, while the Commission concentrated its initial
efforts on organized crime problems, it hag since then endeavored
to widen the scope of its inquiries under its broad jurisdiction

and intends to continue emphasis on breadth of scope in the years
ahead.

The primary and paramount statnfory responsibilities vested
in the Commission are set forth in Section 2 of the statute. It
provides:

2. The Commission shall have the duty and power
to conduct investigations in connection with:

* The full text of the Commission’s statute is included in the Appendlces section of this
annual report.
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(a) The faithful execution and effective enforce-
ment of the laws of the state, with particular
reference but not limited to orgamzed crime
and racketeering.

(b) The conduet of public officers and pubho em-
ployees, and of officers and employees of pub-
lic corporations and authorities.

{e) Any matter concerning ihe public peace, pub-
lic safety and public justice.

The statute provides further that the Commission shall conduct
investigations by direetion of the Governor and by concurrent
resolution of the Legislature. The Commission alse shall conduet
investigations of the affairs of any state department or agency at
the request of the head of a department or agency.

Thus it can be seen that the Commission, as an investigative,
fact-finding body, has a wide range of statutory respomsibilities.
It is highly mobile, may compel testimony, and has authority to
grant immunity to witnesses. Although the Commission does not
have nor may it exercise any prosecutorial functions, the statnte
does provide for the Commission to refer information to prosecu-
torial anthorities.

One of the Commission’s prime responsibilities when it uncovers
irregularities, improprieties, misconduct, or corruption, is to bring
the facts to the attention of the public. The objective is to insure
eorrective action. The importance of public exposure was pot most
suoomotly by a New York Times news analyms article on the nature
of Investigation Commissions:

Some people would put the whole business in the
lap of a District Attorney (prosecutor), arguing that
if le does not bring indietments, there is not much the, '
people can do.

But this misses the pmmary purpose of the State

Investigation Commission. 1t is not to probe outright

~criminal acts by those in public employment. That is
the job of the regnlar investigation arms of the law.

Instead, the Commission has been charged by the
Legislature to check on, and to expose, lapses in the
faithful and effective performanoe of duty by pubhc
employees



. Is sheer non-criminality to be the only standard
of behavior to which a public official is to be held? Or
does the public have a right to know of laxity, in-
efficiency, incompetence, waste and other failures in
the work for which it pays?

The exact format for a public action by the S.C.I. is subject in
each instance to determination by the Commission which takes
into consideration factors of complexity of subject matter and of
conciseness, accuracy and thoroughness in presentation of the
faets. In the course of ifs conduct, the Commission by law adheres
to and is guided by the State Code of Fair Procedure * (Chapter
376, Laws of New Jersey, 1968, N.J.S. 52:13E-1 to 52:13E-10,
printed in full on Pages 228 to 230 of this Annual Report). That
code sets forth those protections which the Legislature in its wis-
dom and the judiciary by interpretation have provided for wit-
nesses called at private and public hearings and for individuals
mentioned in the Commission’s public proceedings. Section Six
of the Code states that any individual who feels adversely affected
by testimony or other evidence presented in a public action by the
Commission shall be afforded the opportunity to make a statement
under oath relevant to the testimony or other evidence complained
of. 'The statements, subject to determination of relevancy, are in-
corporated in the records of the Commission’s public proceedings.
The Commission in statements at the opening and close of its

* The Commission’s adherence to the Code of Fair Procedure’s provision for individuals
feeling adversely affected by S.C.I. proceedings to make statements under oath on their
own behalf was referred to by the United States Court of Appeals for the Third
Circuit in U.S. Ex Rel. Catena v. Elias, 465 F 24 765 {3rd Cir., 1972) in which that
Court held that the Commission’s proceedings comport with due process.

Both in Catena and in another decision by the New Jersey Supreme Court in fn Re
Zicarelli, 55 N.J. 249, 261 A 2d 129, 1970, the Commissiont was found to be an investi-
gative and fact-finding arm of the Legislatitre, with no power to adjudicate or impose
sanctions and penalties, Both courts held conclusively that a full panoply of judicial
procedures, among which are strict evidentiary rules and right to cross examination,
is not Constitutionally required by a legislative commission such as the S.C.I. Both
courts relied in large part on the United States Supreme Court decision in Hannah v.
Larche, 363, U.5, 420 80 S Ct, 1502 (1960).

The majority opinion in Hannoh, written by then Chief Justice Earl Warren, not
only found that a full panoply of judicial procedures was not required for purely
investigative arms of legislative bodies but also warned that ‘the investigative
process could be completely disrupted if investigative hearings were transformed into
trial-like - proceedings.”” Chief Justice Warren wrote further that a right of cross
examination in particular at investigative proceedings “would make a shambles of
the investigation and stifle the agency in its gathering of facts.”

It may ‘be stated, therefore, that the highest courts of state and nation have found
consistently and conclusively that the Commission’s statute and procedures comport
with Constitutional reguirements of due process, with the Code of Fair Procedure
providing individuals an opprtunity to make statements on their own behalf and defense.

6



public hearings and in its public reports issues reminders that the
opportunity to make statements on one’s own behalf is afforded
by the Code.

The Commission believes the true test of the efficacy of its public
actions are not any indietments which may result from referral of
matters to other agencies but rather the corrective actions sparked
by public exposure of deplorable conditions detrimental to the pub-
lie interest. The Commission takes particmlar pride in actions
which have resuited in improved governmental operations and
laws -and in more effective protection for the taxpaying publie
through safegnards in the handling of matters involving expendi-
tares of public funds and maintenance of the public trust.



RESUME OF THE COMMISSION’S MAJOR INVESTIGA-
TIONS FOR THE PERIOD JUNE, 1969 TO
DECEMBER, 1973

This is a summary of the Commission’s major investigative
efforts completed and made public from June, 1969 when the Com-
mission became staffed and operational to the end of the year 1973
covered by thig fifth annual report. In deseribing them as major
investigations, it is meant that they required congiderable time
~and effort and, where appropriate, resulted in a public hearing or
_ a public report or both.

Since the following investigations have already heen discussed
fully in separate reports or in previous annual reports or in the
subsequent sections of this report, only a brief statement about
each will be set forth.

1. OrcanNiZzED CrIME CONFRONTATIONS®

The Commission in June, 1969 began subpoenaing individuals
identified by law enforcement aunthorities as leaders and members
of organized crime in New Jersey. The purpose of this continuing
effort has been to try to get a first-hand, detailed picture of
organized crime’s operations from the mouths of those said by law
enforcement authorities to be underworld operatives, especially
the relative importance of various sources of money, how that
money is handled and dispersed, and how the power structure
works and 18 changed from time to time.

The Commtission believes that once individuals have been granted
witness immunity, a proper balance has been struck between
protection of individual rights and the right of the public to know
as much as possible about the underworld’s operations. This
philsophy and approach has met with the approval of the highest
courts of the State and the United States.

During the past four years nine individuals, all identified by
law enforcement authorities as either leaders or ranking members

* See State of New Jersey Commission of Investigation, Annual Reports for 1970, 1971
and 1972 and pages 33 to 35 of this report. )
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‘of organized erime families, have declined to testify responsively
‘before the Commission relative to organized crime activities. In
the instances of eight of those individuals, they continued to refuse
to answer questions even when granted witness immunity. Hach
was judged by the State Superior Court to be in civil contempt
and ordered by that Court to be incarcerated at the State Correc-
tional Center at Yardville until such time as they purged the
‘contempt by being responsive witnesses before the Commission.
The ninth individual was incarcerated by the Court for civil con-
tempt when he refused to be sworn as a witness at a private session
of the Commission.

- Civil contempt has been found by the courts to be a coercive
measure designed to force an individual to do what the law requires
of him. During 1973 the policy of coercion began to produce
results, Three of the individuals incarcerated at Yardville notified
the Superior Court they wished to testify responsively before the
Lommission, and each was freed on $25,000 bail. One of the three
subsequently changed his mind and elected to return to Yardville
. rather than testify. The other two have testified on several occa-
sions at private sessions of the Commission and continue under
subpoena.,

2. RECOMMENDATIONS ON THE GARBAGE INDUSTRY¥

The Legislature in 1969 passed a resolution requeéting- the
(Commission to look into the garbage industry and make recom-
mendations for possible corrective aclion at the state level.

An investigation was subsequently undertaken by the S.C.L
of certain practices and procedures in thaf industry. The investi-
gation ended with two weeks of private hea,rmgs, concluding in
September, 1969. A public report was issued in October of that
year.

A prineipal finding of the Commission was that the provisions
and practices of some garbage industry trade associations dis-
couraged competition, encouraged collusive bidding, and preserved
allocations of customers on a territorial basis. Unless the vice of
customer allocation was eurbed by the state, more and more muniei-
palities will be faced with the situation of receiving only ome bld
for waste collection, the Commission concluded.

:.#See New Jersey Commission of Investigation: A Report Relatmg to the Garbage
Industry, October 7, 1969,
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The Commission recommended legislative action leading to a
statewide approach to control of the garbage industry. Specific
recommendations were:

Prohibit customer territorial allocation, price fixing and collusive
bidding; provide for lieensing by the state (to the exclusion of
municipal licenses) of all waste collectors in New Jersey, and
prohibit diserimination in the use of privately owned waste dis-
posal areas.

The subseguently enacted laws for state confrol of the solid
waste industry encompassed the substance of these recornmenda-
tions, Those laws have inhibited the vicious and costly cycle of
price gouging by previously unregulated monopolies.

3. ORGANIZED CRIME INFLUENCE IN LoNG BraNcH*

The New Jersey shore city of Long Branch had since 1967 been
the foeus of publicized charges and disclosures about the influence
of organized erime. Omne charge was that an organized crime
leader, Anthony ‘‘Little Pussy’’ Russo, controlled the mayor and
the city council. Official reports indicated mob fignres were oper-
ating in an atmosphere relatively secure from law enforcement.

The Commission began an investigation of Long Branch in May,
1969. The exhaustive probe culminated with public hearings in the
spring of 1970, Among the major disclosures of those hearings
were: '

That a Long Branch city manager was ousted from that job by
the city council affer he began taking counter-action against
organized crime’s influence.

That Russo offered to get the city manag ger job back for that

same person if he wonld close his eyes to underworld influences and
act as a front for the mob.

That impending police raids on gambling establishments were
being leaked in time to prevent arrests despite the anti-gambling
efforts of a then honest police chief. That police chief’s widow
told the Commission of threats to and harassment of her husband
until his death in 1968.

*See State of New Jersey, Commission of Investigation, 1970 Annual Report, 1ssued
February, 1971,
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That the next police chief lacked the integrity and will to
investigate organized crime and attempt to stem its influence.

After the Commission’s public hearings, the police chief resigned
and the electorate voted in a new administration. The Asbury Park
Press commented editorially that the Commission’s hearings did
more good than four previous grand jury investigations.

Also, during the Commission’s probe of the Long Branch area,
the Commission’s special agents developed detailed fiscal informa-
tion and records relating to corporations formed by Russo. Copies
of that information were sent to the United States Attorney for
New Jersey in Newark and were used in obtaining a 1971 federal
indictment of Russo on a charge of failure to file corporate income
tax returns, He pleaded guilty to that charge and received a three-
year prison sentence.

4, Tue MoNmoutTH CoUunNTY PROsSECUTOR’S QFFICE¥®

The Long Branch inquiry quite naturally extended to the
Monmouth County prosecutor’s office, since the prosecntor had
prime responsibility for law enforecement in thig county. This probe
determined that a disproportionate share of authority had been
vested in the then chief of county defectives. Twenty-four hours
after the Commission issued subpoenas in QOctober, 1969, the chief
committed sutcide.

Public hearings were held in the winter of 1970, Testimony
showed that a confidential expense account supposedly used for
nine years by the chief of detectives to pay informants was not
used for that purpose and could not be accounted for.

The testimony also detailed how that fund was solely controlled
by the chief with no county audit and no supervision by the county
prosecutor. In fact, the then connty prosecutor testified that he
gigned vouchers in blank, and without the knowledge they were to
be used to pay informants.

The Commission, after the hearings, made a series of recom-
mendations to reform the county prosecutor system. A principal
recommendation was for full-time prosecutors and assistants.

*See State of New Jersey, Commission of Investigation, 1970 Annual Report, issued
February, 1971.
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A state law, since énacted, has established full-time progecutorial
staffs in the more populouns counties of New Jersey, thereby pro-
viding the citizenry with better admunstrated and more effective
law enforcement. The Commission in subsequent pages of this
Annual Report recommends to the Governor and the Legislature,
on the basis of faets presented at the Commission’s narcotics
hearings during 1973, that a bill be enacted providing for full-time
prosecutors in all counties, so that all will have the experfise and
eoncentrated effort needed to operate effectively amid the com-
plexities of modern law enforcement.

5. PRACTICES OF THE STATE DIVISION OF
PURCHASE AND PROPERTY¥

The Commigsion in February, 1970 began investigating charges
of corrupt practices and procedures involving the State Division
of Purchase and Property and suppliers of state services. Publie
hearings on that matter were held in the spring of that year.

Public testimony showed payoifs to a state buyer to get cleaning
contracts for state buildings, rigging of bids on state contracts,
renewal of those confracts without bidding, unsatisfactory per-
formance of work called for under state contracts, and ﬂleg‘al
contracting of such work.

After the investigation, the state buyer was dismissed from his
job. Records of the investigation were turned over to the State
Attorney General’s Office which obtained an indictment charging:
the buyer with misconduct in office. He pleaded guilty and was ﬁned
and placed on probation for three years,

This investigation met with immediate correctional steps by the
State Division of Purchase and Property to change several pro-
cedures so as fo prevent reoccurrences of similar incidents.
The Commission commended officials of that Division for moving.
so rapidly to tighten procedures and to better protect the pubho
purse.

* See State of New Jersey, Commission of Inveshgatlon, 1970 Annual Report, 1ssued.
February, 1971,
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6. ‘TuHE BUILDING SERVICES AND
MAINTENANCE INDUSTRY®

The probe of the Divigion of Purchase and Property brought to
the Commission’s attention anticompetitive and other improper
practices and influences in the building services industry. A follow-
up investigation was carried out with public hearings being held
in June, 1970.

Testimony showed the existence of a trade organization designed
to thwart competition by limiting free bidding and enterprise.
The hearings also revealed that a union official with associations
with organized crime figures was the real power in the trade
organization and that coerced sales of certain detergent cleaning
products .and/or imposition of sweetheart eontracts were some-
times the price of labor peace.

Another disclosure was that a major organized crime figure in
New Jersey could act as an arbiter of disputes between some
cleaning companies.

The hearings served to alert legitimate people and firms, directly
and indirectly involved in the building maintenance industry, to
the unserupulous and unsavory elements in those areas. Also,
the information developed in the probe was forwarded to the
United States Congress’ Select Commitiee on Commerce in re-
sponse to that panel’s request for aid in investigating the infiltra-
tion of organized erime into interstate commerce.

Counsel and special agents of the Commission testified at length
before that Committee at public hearings in Washington in June,
1972. Senator Warren &, Magnuson, the committee chairman, later
wrote the Commisgion that the testimony by 8.C.I. personnel, plus
the cooperation of the S.C.I. staff in assisting the Magnuson Com-
mittee’s research, greatly enhanced the effectiveness of his Com-
mittee’s hearings. ‘ :

The Senator wrote the S.C.L.: ‘“It is only through the assistance
of organizations such as yours and the professionals associated
with them that progress can be made in the effort to expose the
cancer of organized crime in interstate and foreign commerce.”’

*GSee State of New Jersey, Commission of Investigation, 1970 Annual Report, issued
Februdry, 1971. ) ' :
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7. TrE HupsoN CounNTy MOSQUITO
EXTERMINATION COMMISSION®

- During 1970 the Commission received complaints about possible
corrupt practices in the operation of the Hudson County Mosquito
Extermination Commission. The subsequent investigation led to
publie hearings at the close of 1970.

The mosquito commission’s treasurer, almost totally blind, testi-
fied how he signed checks and vouchers on direction from the
agency’s executive director. The testimony also revealed shake-
down type payments made by the New Jersey Turnpike and other
organizations with projects or rights of way in the Hudson
meadowlands, the existence of a bank account kept secret by the
executive director from the panel’s outside auditors, and kickback
payments by contractors and suppliers of up to 75 per cent of the
amounts received nnder a fraudulent voucher scheme.

One result of this investigation was abolition of the Hudson
County Mogqguito Extermination Commisgion which served no valid
Governmental function and whose annual budget, paid for by the
taxpayers of Hudson, was approaching the $500,000 mark.

Additionally, records of the investigation were turned over to
the Hudson County Prosecutor’s Office which in 1971 obtained
congpiracy and embezzlement indictments against the Mosquito
Commission’s executive director, his fwo sons, the Commission’s
secretary, the Commission’s engineer, and a Commission foreman.

The executive director pleaded guilty to embezzlement and in
June, 1972 was sentenced to two to four years in prison. His sons
pleaded gmlty to conspiracy and were fined $1,000 each. The other
three indictments were dismissed.

8. MISAPPROPRIATION OF FUNDS IN THE
GOVERNMENT OF ATLANTIC CouNTty'

The Commission in 1970 was asked to make a thorough investi-
gation of the misappropriation of at least $130,196.00 in public
funds that came to light with the suicide death of a purchasing
agent in Atlantic County government. The Commission in De-

* See State of New Jersey, Commission of Investigation, 1970 Annual Report, 1ssued
. February, 1971.

4 See Report on Misappropriation of Public Funds, Atlantic County, a Report by ihe
New Jersey Commission of Investigation, December, 1971.
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cember of that year issued a detailed public report which docu-
mented in sworn testimony a violation of public trust and a break-
down in the use of the powers of county government.

That purchasing agent, through a scheme involving fraudulent
vouchers, endorsements and other maneuvers, diverted the money
to his own use over a period of 13 years. The sworn testimony
showed that for years prior to 1971, monthly departmental appro-
priation sheets of many departments contained irregularities
traceable to the agent but that no highly placed county official ever
tried to get a full explanation of those irregularities.

The testimony also disclosed that after county officials were
first notified by the bank about the false check endorsement part
of the agent’s scheme, an inadequate and questionable investiga-
tion was conducted by some county officials and that for the better
part of three months thereafter, nothing further was done to try
to determine the true amount of public funds involved.

Copies of the Commission’s report were sent to Freeholder
Boards throughout the state for use as a guide in preventing any,
further instances of similar misappropriations of funds. As a
result of fiscal irregularities uncovered in the probes not only
of Aflantic County government but also of county agencies in Mon-
mouth and Hudson counties, the Commission has recommended
that Heensed county and municipal auditors be mandated to exer-
cise more responsibility for maintaining integrity in the fiscal
affairs of government, with stress on review on an on-going basis
of the internal controls of county and local governments.

9, DEVELOPMENT OF THE POINT BREEZE AREA
OF JERSEY CITY*

The lands that lie along the Jersey City waterfront are some
of the most valnable and economically important acreage in the
state. The Commission in the spring of 1971 began an investigation
into allegations of corruption and other irregularities in the devel-
opment of the Point Breeze area of Jersey City as a confainership
po-rt and an industrial park.

The investigation showed that that particular development,
undertaken by the Port Jersey Corporation, could offer a classic

*See State of New Jorsey, Commission of Investigation, 1971 Annual Report, issued
March, 1972.
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and informative example of how a proper and needed development
project could be frustrated and impeded by umproper procedures.

. Public hearings were held in October, 1971. Testimonial dis~
closures included a payoft to public officials, improper receipt of a
real estate commission, and irregular approaches to the use of
state laws for blighting urban areas and granting tax abatement.

The Commission concluded from this investigation that recom-
mendations for possible corrective legislative actions were in
order. Bills have been readied for introduetion in the Legislature
for ecarrying out the Commission’s proposals for amending the
statute on brokerage fees in sales of public lands to bar more
effectively payment of those fees fo purchasers of the lands,
changing the urban blight and nrban redevelopment plan laws, and
studying ways of making more effective the existing tax abate-
ment law.

During the course of this investigation the Commiggion heard
testimony from an official of the Port Jersey Corporation that he
had to make a payment of $1,200 to a city official prior to issuance
of a building permit for a warehouse in the waterfront develop-
ment project. After the public hearings, the Hudson County
Prosecutor’s Office was given access to the Commission’s files in
this investigation. A Hudson Grand Jury subsequently returned
a bribery-extortion indietment against the man who was building
inspector for Jersey City at the time of the alleged payoff. Trial
of this matter was still pending when this report went to press.

10. TACTICS AND STRATEGIES OF ORGANIZED CRIME*

Although not a sworn member of an organized crime family,
Herbert Gross, a former Lakewood hotel operator and real estate
man, became during 1965-70 a virtnal part of the mob through
involvement in numbers banks, shylock loan operations, cashing of
stolen securities and other activities.

In order to free himself from a State Prison term for extortion,
he did during 1971 cooperate fully with the OQcean County Prosecu-
tor’s Office in prosecutions that office was pursuing. That office
made Gross available to this Commission in December, 1971.

Gross’ testimony during two days of public hearings by the
S.C.L in February, 1972 pinpointed the character and the relentless
and ruthless modes of operations of crime fignres in the Ocean

* See State of New Jersey, Commission of Investigation, 1972 Annual Report, issued
February, 1973. o
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County area and their ties back to underworld bosses in the
northern part of the state and in New York City. His testimony
was corroborated by a number of witnesses, including officials of
the Ocean County Prosecutor’s Office, the City-County Organized
Crime Task Force for Essex County, and the Organized Crime
Section of the New York City Police Department.

One of the highlights of Gross’ testimony was his account of
how a New York City erime family consigliere ajudicated a dis-
pute involving two underworld groups at a meeting at a storefront
type social elub in New York City.

. The hearings also showed how mobsters completely encircled
and infiltrated a legitimate motel business in Lakewood. The
former restaurant concessionaire at that motel festified that
through shylock loans arranged by organized crime figures, he
lost assets of about $60,000 in six months and had to leave town
a broken and penniless man.

Records of the 8.C.I. on this investigation were made available
to federal authorities who during 1973 obtained an extortion and
conspiracy indictment against nine men identified as organized
erime figures in New Jersey and New York, including the indi-
vidual reputed to be acting as leader of the Genovese crime family.
The indictment covered a dispute over a shylock loan which enlmi-
nated with an underworld “‘sitdown’’ or ‘‘trial’’ in New York,
all as first described by Gross in his 1972 festimony before the
S.C.I Trial of the nine individuals was still pending when this
report went to press.

The hearings generated some of the most extensive news media
coverage of any of the Commission’s public actions and that helped
to achieve a principal purpose of this particular investigation,
namely to add to the public’s knowledge and awareness of orga-
nized crime’s strategies and tactics and to help maintain a high
level of public fervor for a bold fight against erime by all arms of
0'ove1nment

- Indeed, New Jersey law enforcement officials testified that the
public heanngs were & valuable confribution to the task of con-
stantly demonstrating the need for vigilance against organized
crime. The hearings showed further how organized crime follows
population growth in areas undergoing rapid suburbanization.
The hearings, therefore, served as a warning and example to other
areas of the state now undergomg or about to undergo that type
of growth.
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11. PROPERTY PURCHASE PRACTICES OF THE
STATE DivisioN OF PURCHASE AND PROPERTY®

The Commission during 1971 received information that the state
may have overpaid for land for the site of the new Stockton State
College in Galloway Township, Atlantic County. Subsequent field
investigations and private hearings extending into 1972 showed
that the state’s purchase of a key 595-acre tract for $924 an acre
was indeed an excessively high price.

Substantially the same acreage had been sold only nine months
earlier by two corporations headed by some Atlantie City business-
men to a New York City-based land purchasing group for $476 per
acre, which was about double the per acreage price of two compar-
able large-tract land sales in the Galloway area. The Commission
in public report, completed during June, 1972, cited two eritical
flaws as leading to excessive overpayment for the land by the state:

Inadequate and misleading appraisals of land that
had recently changed hands at a premium price at a
time when the college’s site search was common
knowledge in Aflantic County.

Lack of expertise and safeguards in the procedures

of the State Division of Purchase and Property to

. enable the Division to determine the fanlts in the
appraisals and correct them.

The report stressed a number of recommendations to insure
that futare instances of faulty appraisals would not go undetected.
The key recommendation was for post-appraisal review of all
appraisals received by the Division of Purchase and Property.
The review would be done by experts in the Right-of-Way Division
of the State Transportation Department, with provision for the
Purchase and Property Divigion to hire expert outside reviewers
in cases of emergency. Another prinecipal recommendation was
that no appraisers be listed ag eligible to do work for the Division
until those appraisers have been pre-qualified as meeting rigorous
standards.

The Commission’s recommendations were implemented by execu-
tive orders in the Division. Ag a result, the taxpaying public is
agsured of proper protective procedures in the state’s purchase of
many millions of dollars of properties now and in the years ahead.

*See Report and Recommendations on Property Purchase Practices of the D1v15|on
+ of Purchase and Property, a Report by the New Jersey State Commission of Investi-
gation, issued June, 1972, 1
8



12. SECURITIES AND BANK FUNDS MANIPULATIONS
IN MIDDLESEX COUNTY®

Investigative activities by the Commission during 1971 in
Middlesex County directed the Commission’s attention to Santo R.
Santisi, then president of the Middlesex County Bank which he
had founded. The resuliing full-scale probe by the Commission’s
special agents and special agents/accountants concentrated on
Santisi-controlled corporations, in particular the Otnas Holding
Company, and ultimately broadened to investigation of certain
transactions at the Middlegex County Bank.

The probe uncovered schemes by Santisi and his entourage
involving the use of publicly invested funds in Otnas solely for
their own personal gain, apparently illicit sale of stock publicly
before required state registration, and misapplication by Santisi
of hundreds of thousands of dollars of funds of the Middlesex
County Bank, Those funds went in the form of loans to members of
the Santisi entourage who either personally or through their
corporations acted as conduits to pass on the funds for the benefit
of Santisi and some of his controlled corporations.

The Commigsion as part of this investigation held a series of
private hearings which extended into 1972, At the request of
federal bank examiners, who were fearful abouit the effecfs of
adverse publicity on the bank’s financial position, the Commission
did not as intended proceed to a public hearing state on this investi-
gation in the Spring of 1972. Instead, the records of the investi-
gation were made available to the examiners, and the Commission
referred the matter to federal aunthorities for any prosecutorial
action they might deem in order. Federal authorities later arrested
Santisi on charges of misapplication of bank funds while he was
chief executive officer of the Middlesex County Bank. Santisi has
since pleaded guilty and was sentenced to three years in prison.

Since by the end of 1972 Santisi’s arrest had made public some
of his manipulations, the Commission found it in order to report
publicly for the first time on this investigation in its 1972 Annual
Report. That report stated that the S.C.1. investigation may fairly
be said to have rendered public service by protecting the investing
public from further exploitation by Santisi and his cohorts.

*See State of New Jersey, Commission of Investigation, 1972 Annual Report, jssued
February, 1973. ' '
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13. TuEe OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL
OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY¥

In the Summer of 1972 the then Atforney General of the State
of New Jersey, George F. Kugler Jr., requested that the Commis-
gion investigate relative to his office’s handling of the matter which
ultimately resulted in the State’s indicting and obtaining a con-
spiraey conviction of Paul J. Sherwin, then Secretary of State, in
connection with a campaign contribution made by a eontractor who
had bid on a state highway project. The Attorney General thereby
invoked the provision of the S.C.I.’s statute which provides that
the Commission shall investigate the affairs of a state agency at
the request of the agency’s head.

. The investigation was a major undertaking which the Commis-
sion commenced, to carry out in August, 1972. In the course of
the full and thorough investigation which extended into early 1973,
the Commission took from 22 witnesses sworn testimony consisting
of more than 1,300 pages of transeripts and also introduced and
marked 60 exhibits consisting of more than 300 pages.

The Commigsion in January, 1973 nnanimously adopted a resoln-
tion to make a public report which included in their entirety the
transeripts of testimony and the exhibits.. This was pursuant fo
the Commission’s desire and obligation to make full and complete
public disclosure of the investigation to the people of the state
and their elected and appointed officials.

The report, replete with all transeripts and exhibits, was for-
warded to the Governor and all members of the Legislature and
to all news media. In addition, copies of the report were supplied
to individmal citizens on request until the supply was exhausted.
The more than 1,600 pages of the public report continue to bhe
available for public serutiny, with 12 copies on file at the State -
Library and additional copies on file at the Commission’s office.

In issuing the report, the Commission expressed publicly its
gratitude to John J. Francis Hisq., the former Justice of the New
Jersey Supreme Court, who served, without compensation, as
Special Counsel to the Commission in the investigation and report
preparation. The Commission’s report concluded as follows:

~ *See Report on Investigation of the Office of the Atftorney General of New 'J’ersey,
A Report by State of New Jeérsey, Commission of Tnvestigation, issued January, 1973.
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An overriding factor in the background of this
unfortunate affair and in the many similar ones which
are constantly appearing on the public scene is the
political contribution. It is common knowledge that
altruism is rarely one of its characteristics. In our
jndgment the political contribution, direet or indirect,
by individuals, associations or corporations holding'
or aspiring to hold contracts for public work, supplies
or services, and the aceeptance of the contribution by -
appointed or elected officials or by political parties,
is a malignant cancer rapidly metastasizing through
the blood stream of our political life. Unless the
giving and the receiving of such contributions are
made eriminal under a statute which provides a rea-
sonable mechanism for digcovering and preventing
them, our governmental structure is headed for most
unpleasant erosion.

14, THE WoOREMEN’S COMPENSATION SYSTEM

- The New Jersey system for compensating individuals for
employment injuries had by early 1970’s become the object of
another period of intense serutiny and analysis. Much of the
concern appeared to be attributable both to revoicing of past
criticisms and to statistical indications that the system had gone
awry and strayed from the goals and concepts envisioned for it.
One such indication was that only 41 cents of each dollar paid for
Workmen’s Compensatlon insurance coverage was going to the
injured worker in the form of award dollars.

In addition to old arguments and statistical trends, there were
persistent reports and allegations that the atmosphere of the
system had reached a point where irregularities, abuses and even
illegalities were being ignored or tolerated, all to the detriment
of the goal that the system operate in the best interest of the
injured worker.

" The mounting hue and ery over the ills of the gystem prompted
the State Commissioner of Labor and Industry to request an
investigation, with that fask eventually going to the S.C.IL
The probe commenced with inquiries which by late 1972 demon-
gtrated the need for a full investigation not only of the Workmen’s
Compensation system but also of certain velated heat treatment
abuses in the liability or negligence field. The facts amassed
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during this comprehensive investigation of all levels of the system
were presented at nine days of publie hearings in the State Senate
Chamber in Trenton in May-June, 1973,

"The Commission just recently made its final report and.
recommendations to the Legislature and the Governor in a 338-
page public document which covered the full range of the investi-
gation. Briefly, the Commission notes in this summary section
that the hearings and final report documented a number of abuses
which included the costly practice of making unwarranted allega-
tions in compensation claims, a pervasive atmosphere conducive to
lavish gift-giving and entertaining and to questionable conduct by
some judges, and the use by some law firms of favored treating
doctors or ‘“house doctorg,”’ an abuse which lends itself to over-
treatment of patients and even ontright bill padding. Three judges
were given disciplinary suspensions becanse of facts brought out
at the S.C.1. hearings, with one eventually being dismissed from
office.

The final report of the S.C.1, presented in detailed statufory
and/or regulatory language 13 priority proposals for immediate
actions to halt abmses and 15 additional recommendations all
designed to improve the atmosphere and the mode of operation
of the Workmen’s Compensation system.

15. Tue DISTRIBUTION OF DONATED FEDERAL SURPLUS
PROPERTY AND SCHOOL PURCHASING PROCEDURES

A citizens’ complaint was received by the 8.C.L in January, 1973
via reference from a IFederal law enforcement agency and
prompted the Commission to make inquiry into the handling and
distribution by the state of federal surplus property donated for
use in schools and other institutions. The inguiry resmlted in ad-
ditional citizens’ complaints being received and a consequent full
investigation which extended fo questionable procedures relative
to the business affairs of the Passaiec County Vocational and
Technical High School in Wayne. The investigation was capped
by five days of public hearings conducted at the Passaic County
Courthouse in Paterson.

The 8.C.I.’s final report and recommendations on this investi-
gation are presented on subsequent pages of this Annual Report.
Suffice it to state here that facts brought ont at the hearings showed
a woeful lack of atiempts by the school’s purchasing agent, who
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also was its business manager, to obtain truly competitive prices
for many goods pur@hased the purchasing of substantial amounts
of goods and services for the school through middlemen with one
middleman’s markup exceeding 100 per cent, and testimony that
one middleman had made regular payoffs to the school’s pur-
chasing agent. Additional facts presented at the hearings showed
the. purchasing agent had converted the services of school em-
ployees to do jobs at his home and that the school had become a
virtual dumping ground for millions of dollars of federal surplus
property, much of which was trucked by school employees in school
trucks and on school time to the barn on the private residence
grounds of the then Director of the State’s Surplus Proper’ty
Agency. .

Th.e; recommendations of the S.C.L. detailed later in this report
offer corrective steps to achieve an independent, well-run state
agency for distribution of federal surplus property, to direct

" Boards of Education throughont the state to establish procedures

for in-depth overseeing of all school purchasing, and to mandate
that there he compliance with the competitive bidding procedures.

16. Tur DISRIBUTION OF NARCOTICS AND
Law ENFORCEMENT PROGRAMS

Narcotics and their relationship to law enforcement in New
Jersey are a natural area of concern for the Commisgion since the
huge profits to be made from illicit narcotics trafficking are an
obvious lure to criminal elements. As a result of an increase in the
S.C.I’s intelligence gathering during 1973 relative to nareotics,
the Commission obtained considerable information about certain
eriminal elements in Northern New Jersey. A subsequent investi-
gation provided a wealth of detail about trafficking in heroin and
cocaine, replete with high rigks, high profits, violence and death.

The Commission in December, 1973 held three days of public
hearings on this investigation. Those hearings, and the recom-
mendations resulting from them, are presented in detail on sub-
sequent pages of this Annual Report. Briefly, two witnesses,
testifying under aliases and wearing veils to conceal their faces,
told about their involvements in actual heroin and cocaine traffick-
ing, their testimony including accounts of one killing and an at-
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tempt by criminal figures to get one of the witnesses to kill another
individual. Expert witnesses were called to detail the international
and interstate flow of heroin and cocaine into New Jersey and the
programs and problems of law enforcement agencies responsible’
for the fight against narcoticg distribution.

As reviewed on subsequent pages of this report, this investiga-
tion had ‘signiﬁcant collateral results which led to the 8.C.L playing
an important role in solving a gangland style killing and a stolen
jewelry fencing operation.

The 8.C.IL%s final recommendations flowing from this investi-
gation include proposals for new legislation and expansgion of
existing avenues and modes of law enforcement, with emphasis on
inter-county capabilities by law enforcement officers,  larger
amounts of ‘‘buy money’’ and ‘‘flash rolls’’ essential to further
penetration of the upper levels of narcotics operations, full-time
prosecutors and staffs for all counties to attain greater attention
and expertise in the narcotics fight, and revision of narcotics laws
1nclud1n0 sterner penalties for the non-addiet pusher.
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- COLLATERAL RESULTS FROM INVESTIGATIONS

A Homicipke Is SOLVED

~ On April 17; 1972 the decomposed body of a man was found
floating in the recently thawed waters of Tardosky’s Pond in
Greenfield Township, lackawanna County, Pennsylvania. A
Lackawanna County Coromner’s report found that the individual
had been shot four times in the head. The report estimated the
body had been in the pond four to six months. Pennsylvania law
enforcement authorities believed the pond froze over shortly after
the body was dumped into if. :

- Initial attempts to identify the body were unsuccessful, and
until 1973 the body remained listed as that of an unidentified white
male. During the Summer of 1973 the S.C.1. was increasing its
intelligence gathering in the narcotics area as part of the prelim-
inary stages of its narcotics investigation. One result of that
continuing effort was the reference of data to the S.C.L by Fssex
County Prosecutor Joseph Lordi’s Organized Crime Strike Force,
John A. Matthews ITI, Project Director. That agency in a probe
prompted by receipt of information from Carloe Boceia, regional
head of the Federal Drug FEnforcement Agency (DEA), came
across matters which were beyond its jurisdiction and venune and
which were appropriate for reference to the 8.C.I. under its statu-
tory mandates fo cooperate with, aid and assist law enforecement
officials within and outside the State of New Jersey. :

"Using the reference of the data as a starting point, S.C.I. Special
Agents developed information which made it apparent that the
body of the unidentified white male in Lackawanna County,
Pennsylvania, was that of one Jed Feldman, who was 21 and last
“known to reside at 311 Mount Prospect Avenue, Newark, when in
late 1970 he disappeared. Feldman was known to law enforce-
~ment aunthorities in Essex County as an individnal engaged in
alleged burglary ring activities in Northern New Jersey and who,
immediately preceding his disappearance, was wrongly fingered
as a police informant.

“The investigation leading to positive identification of Feldman’s.
body was carried out by S.C.I Special Agents Cyril T. Jordan
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and Anthony N. Rosamilia. After obtaining opinions on the
nature of the dental work done on Feldman’s teeth by interviewing
some Newark dentists, the agents checked records of the Essex
. County Sheriff’s Office and Probation Office. That check determined
that Feldman had served time in a state reformatory for v101a.t1011
of parole. -

The agents then examined the reformatory records and found
that Feldman had had dental work done there by a Newark dentist
regularly retained by the institation to treat inmates’ teeth. The
agents received confirmation from the doctor that it was he who
had done the work on Feldman’s feeth. Additional confirmation
was recelved from officials of the New Brunswick firm who had -
made the plate which was involved in that dental work, The
agents established a second source of identification of the body
from a ring found on that body. The ring bore the initials J.F.
Jed Feldman’s father, Abraham, when shown the ring, identified
it as originally his ring which he had given to his son after havmo*
the initials ehanged from A.F. to J.F.

. After identification had been achieved, there followed two Weeks
of coordinated investigative activities by the Pennsylvania State
Police and New Jersey law enforcement authorities. That in-
vestigative activity led to the obtaining by Paul Mazzone, Distriet
Attorney for Tackawanna County, of arrest warrants from a
Pennsylvania magistrate charging three men individually with
the murder of Feldman.

Two of the individuals were arrested in the early morning hours
of October 25, 1973 ag fugitives from the Pennsylvania warrants
by Detectives of Prosecutor Lordi’s Essex County Organized
Crime Strike Force, accompanied by Special Agents of the S.C.I.
and Pennsylvania State Troopers. They are Gerald Donnerstag;
46, of Belleville and Gerard Festa, 43, of Newark, The arrest of
Festa took place as he aftempted to flee from an attic window.
Donnerstag and Festa were extradited to Pennsylvania where they
have been indicted by a Lackawanna County Grand Jury on
charges of murder. They were in the Lackawanna County Jail,
ha.vmg been unable to post $100,000 baﬂ each, pending frial When
this report went fo press.

The third individual, one Harold Elis, 40, was arrested in-
Florida where he was living at the time and returned to Pennsyl-
vania. e, too, is in the Lackawanna County Jail, having been
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unable to raise $100,000 bail. Elis’ whereahouts in Florida had
been determined by Special Agents Jordan and Rosamilia by an
investigation involving a canvass of Newark area schools, after
the two agents heard talk on the streets in Newark that FKllis had
a girlfriend and that they had run away together in 1972. The
canvass led to the finding of documents at one school which showed
that the girlfriend had children and that she and her family had
moved to a certain town in Florida. The S.C.I. transmitted this
information to Pennsylvania State Police who arranged for Elhs )
arrest and return to Pennsylvania.

- The Commission was gratified to receive favorable comment
for the 8.C.I.% role in the matter of the Feldman homicide from
both Prosecutor Lordi and John R. Bartels, Administrator of the
United States Department of Justice’s Drug Enforcement Admin-
istration. Those comments are printed in the section of this Annual
Report entitled, “OTHER ACTIVITIES—Liaison with Law
Enforecement Agencies.”’

JEwWELRY FENCING SOLVED

In developing information relative to the Commission’s narcoties
inquiry, 8.C.1. Special Agents also received data about an alleged
burglary ring operating in Hssex County. The data was turned
over to Prosecutor Lordi’s Fssex County Organized Crime Strike
Force, members of which after further investigation arrested on
October 5, 1973 the two proprietors of a long-established Newark
jewelry store and charged them with receiving stolen property.
Strike Force Direetor Matthews said a Livingston man identified
a gold necklace which he purchased at the store as having been
stolen from his home and that the Bamberger’s store identified
some $28,000 worth of rings and watches as part of the loot taken
in a burglary earlier in October.

‘The two ndividuals arrested, Frank Martin, 54, and his son,
Richard, 28, both of Hdison and owners of Martin and Souns
Jewelers, Newark, were subsequently indicted by an Essex County
Grand Jury on charges of conspiracy and receiving stolen property.
Trial was still pending when this Annnal Report went to press.

SOME CRIMINAL REPERCUSSIONS
‘One of the highlights of the testimony of IHerbert Gross, the
real estate and hotel man who became a virtual part of the
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underworld in Ocean County, at the Commission’s 1972 public
hearings on organized crime was his account of how a $5,000
shylock loan he incurred became the subject of a gangland rivalry
dispute, with Gross being severely beaten in Lakewood by John
(Johnny D) DiGilio, the Hudson County-based mobster, and two
of his musclemen-enforcers, John (Red) DeF'azio and Jerry (Nap)
Napolitano. - The dispute, Gross testified, eventnally led fo his
being taken to New York for an underworld *‘sit down’’ or *‘trial’’
held in the back room of a store in New York City. The ‘‘judge’’
was Frank (Funzi) Tieri, said to have assumed leadership of the
Genovese crime family. Tieri, according to Gross, ruled that
Gross should be under the control or ‘“‘owned’’ by John DiGilio
via- DiGilio’s underworld supervisor, Pasquale (Patty Mack)
Macchiarole. During the ‘‘trial,’” DiGilio made threatening
remarks to Gross. -

Following the S.C.1.’s public hearings, the Commission’s data
developed in this organized crime investigation was made available
to federal authorities. After further investigation by the Federal
Organized Crime Strike Foree, a Federal Grand Jury returned
extortion—econspiracy indictments against Tieri and other under-
world figures, inelnding DiGilio, Anthony (Tumac) Acceturo,
DeFazio, Napolitano, Vincent J. (Jimmy Sinatra) Craparotta,
Macchlarole, and Onfrio (Novia) Milazzo, all mentioned by Gross
in his testimony before the S.C.I. Trial of those individuals was
still pending when this Annunal Report went to press.

The 8.C.L, during its 1971 probe of the development of the
Point Breeze area of Jersey City as a contfainership port by the
Port Jersey Corporafion heard testimony alleging that an official
of that corporation had to pay $1,200 to a Jersey City official in
connection with the issuance of a building permit for constructlon
of a warehouse ‘in the development project.

The Commission’s data on this investigation was made available
during 1972 to the Hudson County Prosecutor’s Office. An indict-
ment charging Timothy Grossi, who was a Jersey City Building
Inspector at the time of the alleged payoff, with extortion and
conspiracy was returned by a Hudson Grand Jury in 1973. Trial of
this matter was still pending when this Annual Report went to
press,

Additionally during 1973, Santo R. Santisi, the former President
of the Middlesex County Bank, was, along with three other indi-
viduals, indicted by a Federal Grand Jury on charges involving
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misapplication of hundreds of thousands of the bank’s funds.
Santisi durmg that same year pIeaded guﬂty to the misapplication
eharge and is now serving a prison term in the Federal Peniten-
tiary in Atlanta. His brother, John Santisi, also pleaded guilty and
wasg given a suspended sentence as wag Arthur W. Brinkman, an
attorney, after his plea of guﬂty The other individual, Felix
Cantore, who was a member of the bank’s Board of Directors, has
pleaded guilty and was sentenced to a year in prigon.

The summary section of this report reviews briefly the Commis-
sion’s initial discovery of the misapplications of the bank’s funds
in the S8.C.Is 1971-72 investigation of Santo Santisi and his
various schemes and how the Commission in 1972 referred data
developed in this investigation to federal authorities.

-During 1973, Joseph Seaman, the individual who was dismissed
from his post as a state buyer due to the S.C.I.’s 1970 probe of
certain State Purchase and Property Division practices, pleaded
guilty to a State Grand Jury indictment for misconduet in office.
He . was fined and placed on probation for three years.

ForMER Mabison TownNsHIP OFFICIALS ARE INDICTED

Ag part of its 1972 investigation of abuses in municipal planning
and zoning practices in various parts of New Jersey, the Commis-
sion developed data as to alleged corrupt practices in connection
with some development projeets in Madison Township, Mlddlesex
County

The Commission had planned fo present testimony relative to
Madison Towunship at the public hearings which commenced in
September, 1972. Those hearings, however, were suspended after
a day and a half because of litigation which sought to bar the
publie appearance of three key witneses who had testified in private
before the S.C.L. as to irregularities in award of development
permits in Hillsborongh Township, as well as Madison Township.

The legal action by Angelo Cali, John Cali and Edward Lesho-
witz, all involved in business enterprises engaged in development
operations in New Jersey, resulted in prolonged litigation which
twice reached the New Jersey Supreme Court. The second occasion
before that Counrt resulted in the Court’s on July 5, 1973 reversing
lower court findings and orders adverse to the Commission and
ruling in favor of the Commission’s stance that the three indivi-
dnals, all of whom had been- granted witness immunity by the
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8.0.1, should be required to appear as witnesses at a publie hear-
ing in accord with obligations imposed on them by the Commis-
sion’s statute.

During the prolonged litigation, however, the Commission was
responsive to a request by the Middlesex County Prosecutor that
his office be granted access to the Commission’s records developed
in this investigation relative to Madison Township. Immediately
thereafter, the Prosecutor began a full Grand Jury investigation
and requested that the S.C.I. take no further public action in this
phase of its investigation of municipal planning and zoning abuses
until the Prosecutor had completed his probe and the prosecution
of any indictments which might result therefrom. The Commission
has honored that request.

Just as this Annual Report was going to press, the Middlesex
Grand Jury retorned indictments involving charges of extortion,
bribery, misconduct in office and perjury against three former
Madison Township officials in connection with a series of alleged
home development kickback schemes., The Middlesex County
Prosecutor’s Office in announcing the indietments stated that the
Grand Jury began ils investigation after receipt of information
developed by the S.C.L in its probe and that some more mdmtments
were expected to be returned.

The three former township officials and a summary of the
counts alleged against them in the indictments are: Donald Tierney,
45, now of Short Hills and a former Madison Township Couneil-
man, charged with one count of giving a bribe, two counts of
extortion, and one count of misconduct in office ; Joseph Pandozzi,
43, of Madison Township, a former Chairman of the Township
Planning Board, charged with one count of giving false informa-
tion and taking of bribes and one count of offering a bribe; and
Donald Borst, 57, of Madison Township, another former Chairman
of the Township Planning Board, charged with three counts of
false swearing to the Grand Jury that he had not distributed, paid
or presented money to inflnence votes of public officials. All three
individuals are free on $5,000 bail each.

THREE JUDGES SUSPENDED

" A portion of the Commission’s public hearings in the Spring
of 1973 on the investigation of the Workmen’s Compensation
ste alt with the conduct of several of the Judges of Compell-
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sation ‘who preside over Workmen’s Compensation Courts.” The
testimony at the hearings prompted the State Commissioner of
Labor and Industry to impose disciplinary suspensions on three
Judges, one of whom was later dismissed from office. :

Jndge Alfred D’Auria was suspended for five weeks at the end
of which he clected to retire. Testimony at the S.C.I. hearings
showed that Judge D’Auria had consistently had his lunches paid
for by attorneys and doctors who appeared before him regularly
in Compensation Court, that he was the only Judge of Compensa-
tion being chauffered by the shorthand reporter assigned to him
by the reporting firm to which he regularly awarded the maximum
fee permissible, that he had asked for and received a Christmas
party paid for by a respondent insurance company whose attorneys
appeared regnlarly before him, and that at his request, an attorney
whose firm was regularly appearing before the Judge in compen-
sation matters bonght him a pair of shoes and once paid his Bar
Association dues.

Judge Joseph Grzankowski was disciplined with a five-day sus-
pension after testimony at the hearings showed he had sold a set
of incomplete law books to the law firm of Rabb and Zeitler at a
time when that firm had compensation matters before the Judge.
The amount of the sale was $2,339. The Commission received two
professional appraisals one of which stated that the books at the
time of the sale in 1971 were worth $1,025 and another which stated
that at the time of the sale, the highest conceivable value of the
books would be $1,750 but that that figure should be considered a
high one at which negotiations might start. Judge Grzankowski
in an appeal to the conrts has questioned the power of the Com-
missioner of Labor and Industry to effect disciplinary suspensions
of Judges. That appeal was still pending in the Appellate Di-
vision of State Superior Court when this Annual Report went to
press.

Judge James J. Bonafield was under suspension ordered by the
Commissioner for six months at the end of which time he was
dismissed from office by order of the Governor. The Appellate
Division of State Superior Court subsequently upheld the Gov-
ernor’s dismissal of Bonafield when he appealed that dismissal
to that Court.

Through data developed principally by the S.C.1.’s reconstruct-
ing two bank accounts and finding papers in a number of Jegal
actions and by the testimony of Bonafield’s secretary and the
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attorney whose name Bonafield used to mask a law praetice, the
publie hearings demonstrated factually that after January 7, 1970,
the day after which by law Judges of Compensation were pro-
hibited from practmmg law, a law practice was ma,mta,med at
Bonafield’s law office in Clifton, that he was directing and con-
trolling that practice but using the name of the other attorney
on statlonery and legal papers, and that at least $7,733 was paid
to the Judge out of a bank account maintained in conneetlon Wlth
the proceeds from that law practice.

In initiating dismissal proceedings against the J udo e, then
Governor William T. Cahill directed that Bonafield be given an
administrative hearing at which he could cross examine witnesses
and produce witnesses in his own behalf. After the conclusion of
that public hearing, the hearing officer, John J. Francis Esq., a
retired Justice of the New Jersey Supreme Court, found beyond
a reasonable doubt that Bonafield had practiced law after .the
cut-off date and had continued to do so until July, 1972. Mr,
Francis recommended that the Judge be dismissed from ofﬁce in
the mterest of preserving the integrity of the ecourts.

After review and study of the matter, the Governor found that
Bonafield had practiced law contrary to the statutory han against
s0 doing and ordered that Bonafield be dismissed from office.. .

A FEpERAL INQUIRY

The Commission’s 1972 Annual Report reviewed in some detail
how the United States Senate Committee on Commerce, headed by
Senator Warren ¢. Magnuson of the State of Washington, held a
signifieant round of pubhc hearings in Washington, D.C., that year
based largely on the S.C.I.’s investigation of the bmldlno mainte-
nance industry in New Jersey. Four members of the S.C.I. staff
testified at those hearings that the S.C.I. probe showed, among
other things, the existence of the New Jersey Contractors Manage-
ment Assoclatmn as a competition-thwarting organization oriented
toward 1nsur1ng that member building maintenance companies
held sway in their respective terrltorles with their customers
guaranteed. A call was sounded at the healmos in Washington
for a federal probe of possible anti-trust violations. During 1973
representatives of the United States Depaltment of Justlce S
Anti-Trust Divigion came to the 8.C.I. offices in Trenton where
-records of the S.C.1.s investigation were made available, along

Wlﬂl bﬂeﬁBOﬁhv S.C T _stafl memhers
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CONTINUED CONFRONTATION

As previously noted in the summary section of this report, the
Commission has since 1969 pursued a policy of continued con-
frontation of individuals identified by law enforcement authorities
as ranking members of organized crime families by subpoenaing
them to testify before the Commission. The policy is in keeping
with the Commission’s statutory mandate to investigate with
particular reference to organized crime and is in furtherance
of the goal shared by all agencies dedicated o the effective enforce-
ment of the laws, namely that the intelligence available on orga-
nized crime activities in New Jersey be as comprehensive, authentic
and timely as possible. None is in a better position to'impart
first-hand data about the underworld’s operations than those who
are identified as being involved in organized crime.

Since 1969, nine individuals said by law enforcement authorities
to be either leaders and/or ranking members of organized crime
have elected to go to jail rather than tesiify responsively before
the Commission ag the law requires of them. In each case, they
have been judged by the State Superior Court to be in civil
contempt of the Commission and have, by order of that Court,
been confined to the State Correctional Center in Yardville until
such time as they purge the contempt by hecoming responsive
witnesses before the Commission.

Civil contempt has been wviewed by the courts as a coercive
measure” designed to force an individual to do his duty under the
law, as opposed to criminal contempt where a man is punished with
a sentence to vindicate the court. During 1973 three of the indivi-
duals incarcerated at Yardville for ecivil contempt promised in
State Superior Court to be responsive witnesses. The Court
immediately in each case freed the individuals on their posting of
$25,000 bail each.” One of the three, Ralph (Blackie) Napoli,
changed his mind and refused to testify. He was recommitted by
the Court to Yardville.

#*Louis Anthony (Bobby) Manna, ofie of the nine individuals incarcerated in Yardville
for civil contempt of the 5.CI., did during 1972 carry an appeal to the Appellate
Division of State Superior Court, contending among other things.that the indeterminate
nature of civil contempt incarcerations constitutes cruel and unusual punishment as
prohibiteéil;)by the Eighth .Amendment of the United -States . Constitution. . (Continued
on page o R
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The other two individuals, Nicholas (Nickie) Russo and
Nicodemo (Little Nickie) Scarfo have appeared before the Com-
mission in private sessions. They have been continued nnder
subpoena while the Commission proceeds to develop this phase
of this organized crime investigation.

Tour of the nine who have been incarcerated at Yardville for
civil contempt have been listed by law enforcement authorities
as organized crime chieffans. They are Gerardo (Jerry) Catena,
Joseph (Bayonne Joe) Zicarelli who confinues to serve a state
prison sentence for a bribery-conspiracy convietion, and Angelo
Bruno and Anthony (lLittle Pussy) Russo, both of whom during
1973 were given temporary releases by the Superior Court for
treatment of serious medical ailments but who are subject to return
to Yardville when medical requirements so permit.

Besides Catena and Napoli, those individuals in Yardville for
civil contempt at the time this Annual Report went to press were
John (Johnny Coca Cola) Lardiere and T.ouis Anthony (Bobby)
Manna.

A CHiLLiNG EFrecT

A, derivative result of the Commission’s policy of continued
confronfation of reputed organized crime figures has been to
cause some individuals to remain outside New Jersey’s borders
to avoid being served a subpoena by the Commission,

The Commission argued otherwise, and the Court in 1973 found in the Commission’s
argument a totally adequate and concise respomse in denying Manna’s appeal and
aﬂirmmg the lower court ruling. The Appellate Court wrote in pertinent part:

. The indeterminate feature of the contempt procedure does not constitute
cruel and unusual punishment. Civil contempt is employed as a coercive
sanction to compel the witness to do what the law made it his duty to do.
Penfield Co. v. S.E.C., 330 U.S. 585, 590 (1947). Civil contempt is
designed to provide a litigant with a remedy against an opponent’s
refusal to do what he ought to do. Criminal contempt has as its pur-
pose the vindication of the authority of the court through punistunent
of the wrongdoer. United States v. Consolidated Productions, Inc., 326
F. Supp. 603, 606 (C.D. Cal. 1971). This distinction a.ccordmg o plic-
pose md1cates that a party incarcerated under a civil contempt order
is not enduring a sanction which the Eighth Amendment mtended to
limit. The principle has aptly been stated that such a man “carries
the keys to his prison” in his own pocket. Staley v. South Jersey Realty
Caa1190 A. 1042, 83 N.J. Eq. 300 (1914). He need mt be incarcerated
at

In Wyman v. Uphaus, 100 N.H. 436, 130 A. 2d 278 (Sup. Ct. 1957, the
New Hampshire Supreme Court considered a similar argument and re-

. jected it. That result was affirmed by the United States Supreme Court -
sub nom Uphaus v. Wyman, 360 U.S. 72, 81 (1959).
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The Commission’s intelligence sources indicate that among those
avoiding appearances in New Jersey are Anthony (Tumac)
Agcceturo of Livingston, now residing in Florida; Anfonio (Tony
Bananas) Caponigro of Short Hills, reported to spend most of
his time in Florida; John (Johnny D) DiGilio of Paramus, now
residing in Brooklyn; Carl (Pappy) Ippolito of Trenton, reported
to have moved first to the Morrisville-Bristol area of Pennsyl-
vania and snbsequently fo Florida because of actiong by Penngyl-
vania authorities; Antonio (Zapep) Piscopo of the Seaside area,
reported to be living in Florida, and John (Johnny Keyes) Simone
of Lawrence Township, now living in Florida. Additional under-
world figures now avoiding appearances in New Jersey due to
8.C.L activity are Joseph Paterno and Frank (The Bear) Basto,
both of Newark, and Joseph (Demus) Covello of Belleville. :
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CITIZENRY COMPLAINTS

(The Commission’s Role as Ombudsman)

. Each year the Commission receives a hundred or more com-
plaints from individuals throughont the State. The citizenry quite
naturally views a bi-partisan agency with broad statutory powers
as a sort of ombudsman. While citizenry complaints have been and
continue to be a source of investigative leads, the Commission
trusts the public will realize that mere allegation, suspicion and
rumor, unsupported by any substantial and meaningful faets,
cannot form the basis for an investigation. The Commission addi-
tionally would remind that by both statute and policy, the Commis-
sion cannot and will not referee the many political disputes
attendant on elective polities.

The ecomplaints received each year by the S.C.I. range from
allegations of eriminal offenses to reguests for help in personal
matters. Each complaint is evaluated by the Commission’s staff,
and, at a minimum, a letter of reply is sent to all but those who
insist on anonymity. Often the Commission is helpful in directing
2 citizen’s atfention to other remedies when the complamt obvi-
ously does not fall within the Commission’s powers or duties.

A eitizen making a complaint alleging a serious conflict of
interest or wrongdoing should first consider what factual basis he
can present to the Commission, since a complaint of this nature,
1if seemingly sincere and reliable, usually requires the staff evaluate
the complaint by preliminary inquiry.

One can readily perceive that with the volume of complaints
received, many valuable man-hours of the time of Commission’s
staff can be consumed by such inquiries which often result only in
the realization that the alleged abuses are insignificant or non-
existent. Because of the size of the Commission’s staff in relation
to the requirements put on it by major investigations, qualitative
decisions must be made on the basis of credible evidence, or its
lack, whether inquiry will be made and whether an inquiry will be
extended to a full investigative stage which requires interviews
and examinations of documents, analysis of fiscal books and records
and, if the faets justify, the taking of testimony at private hearings.
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This section of this Annual Repoit presents examples of some
of the citizen complaints received by the S.C.I. during the past
vear and the Commission’s response {o them.

As noted in the summary part of this Annual Report, it was a
complaint by citizens, directed to the S.C.I. by a Federal law
enforcement agency, which prompted the Commission to make
ingniries about the state program for distribution of federal
surplus properties to schools. The complainants were able to
direct the Commission’s attention to substantial facts relative to
the mishandling of some of the surplus properties. The Commis-
sion’s inttial inguiries prompted further citizens complaints which,
because of credible evidence uncovered, led fo the S.C.L’s full
fledged mvestigation of the business affairs and purchasing prac-
ticés of a large vocational high school in Northern New Jersey.
The subsequent pages of this Annual Report review how that
investigation led to five days of public hearings at which numerous
irregularities and abuses were aired and a factual basis establlshed
for maklno recommendatlons for corrective actions. :

In another citizen oomplamt matter, the complainant brought
with him volumes of data which he had compiled and which he
behoved indicated illegalities in the zoning decisions by a Central
New Jersey community’s government. Examination of the
volumes, however, showed the data was ambigunous and subject to
several interpretations and conld not be substantially ecorroborated.
The ‘eomplainant was informed of the 1nsuperab1e corroboration
and credibility-of-evidence problems and the inquiry was brought
to a close. o

A third example of a citizen complaint reeeived durmg 1973
dealt with complainant’s bélief that the State had O*rossly overpald
for the purchase of property for highway purposes in a Northern
New'J ersey shore area commumty The Commission’s evaluation
inquiry found that the price paid was reasonable, since laws rela-
tive to'condemnation made it necessary for that purchase to include
the valué of costly machinery on the desired property. The Com-
missiotr explained the S.C.I. analysis of the transaction as bemw
vahd to the complamant and the matter was ‘marked as elosed



OTHER ACTIVITIES

LiA1sON WITH LAw ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES

The Commission has sinee its inception emphasized the
maintenanee of close liaison and cooperation with law enforcement
agencies at all levels of government Indeed, it may be said that
emphasis of this policy is one of the prmclpa,l keys to the aceom-
plishments of the Commission to date.

The web of criminal element activity is so complex and in such
a constant state of flux that no investigative agency can afford to
be an island unto itself. Through mutual interchanges of informa-
tion between this Commission and the Federal Bureau . of
Investigation, the Federal Drug Enforcement Agency, the Federal
Organized Crime Strike Foree, the United States Attorney’s Office,
the State Attorney General’s Office, the State Police, the County
Prosecutors’ offices, and local police departments, the full weight
of data gathered and filed by all agencies ean be brought to bear
in the constant effort to keep pressure on and beat baek crlmmal
elements, organized and otherwise.

Hardly a week goes by without representatives of one or more
law enforecement agencies visiting the Commission’s offices to
examine records and discuss matters with the Commission’s staff
and without members of the S.C.I. staff doing likewise af the
offices of the various agencies.

‘During 1973, as reviewed in previous pages of -this Annual
Report, the policy of close liaison and cooperation resulted in
the 8.C.I.’s playing an important role in solving a gangland style
homicide. Cooperative investigative actions by the Federal Drug
Enforcement Agency (DEA), the Essex County Prosecufor and
his Organized Crime Strike Force, the Pennsylvania State Police
and the District Attorney for Lackawanna County, Pennsylvania,
resulted ultimately in the arrests of three individuals now.charged
with murder in connection with that homicide. Prosecutor Joseph
Lordi of Essex County commented at the time of the arrests of
two of the three individuals in his county:

This is a graphie demonstration of what can be
done by law enforcement through eooperation based
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-+ con mntual respect and confidence,-and it-certainly is - -
... another true validation of the merits of the State -
« - Commigsion of Investlo'atlon as an - aid to law _
- enforeement. - : :

Afte1 the atrests in Hssex of the two individuals, the Commission
expressed in 4 letter its appreciation of the cooperation afforded
by the Federal Drug Enforcement Agency and informed the DEA
of the resuits of the cooperative investigatory effort. In response,
the Administrator of that agency, John R. Bartels Jr., replied in
a jetter to the Commission: ‘

. Tt ‘was gratifying to learn that the information -
' developed by members of the Narcotics Task Force
*_in Newark, New Jersey, and forwarded to your office
brought about the arrests of Gerard Festa and Gerald
Donnerstag in connection with the ganwland homicide "
.. -of one Jed Feldman : : -

‘ I would like to thank you for the excellent coopéra-
. . tion that yon and your staff have rendered the DEA -
' Task Force Program.

. The files compiled by this Commission in its three and a ha,lf
vears of full operation have become most comprehensive and. ex-
tensive. The Commission’s special agents have been assigned on a
sta.tew1de, continuing basis to obtain and analyze large amounts of
information that now are on file, as well as to determine .current
trends and directions of orwamzed erime. The investigative staff
carries out that mission i:hrough surveillance, cultivation of
informants, and intelligence gathering. The data is compiled and
returned to the Commission’s offices where it is evaluated and
placed in a current file. Investig at1ons are 1n1t1ated on the ba51s
of the evaluated data. : -

: S’mce,_orgamz.ed crime is interstate as well as intrastate in
nature, the Commission has continued to stress active membership
in the nationwide Law Enforcement Intelligence Unit (L.F.1.0T.).
That network consists of 204 state and local police departments
and other agencies throughout the United States. The organiza-
tion’s aim is to keep abreast of the whereabouts and activities of
suspected criminal individuals through confidential investigation,
surveillance and maintenance of laison with 0fﬁe1a1 and other
sources of mformatlon '
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The Commission during 1973 responded to 47 requests for
information from L.E.IU. affiliated agencies in other states.
The Commisgion during the year in 30 instances asked for and
recelved information from agencies In other states on the back-
ground and whereabouts of suspected organized erime figures and
operations with possible connections to underworld activities in
New Jersey.

COOPERATION WITH THE LEGISLATURE

By consistent and definitive court interpretation of statute, the
Commission has been found to be primanly a legislative agency
and it is structured as a Commission of the Legislature. Quite
naturally, therefore, the Commission has always considered co-
operation with the Legislature to be a primary funection of this
a4gency.

The Commission takes pride in the fact that the Joint Legislative
Commiftee on Ethical Standards has now come to view the S.C.L
as its continuing fact-finding arm in any substantial dispute that
may arise from allegations of violations by legiglators of the
State Conflict of Interest Statute, The Commitiee, on the bagis of
the facts found by the Commission, would render judgment as to
those allegations.

¥

So far, the Committee hag not had canse to refer any matters
for faet-finding. The Commission’s presence as the possible fact-
finder, however, continues to make it unnecessary to expend state
funds to support any retention by the Committee of expert legal
and investigative personnel to cope with any fact-finding missions
which might arise.

“During 1973 the Commission was gratified to receive a letter of
appreciation from the then Chairman of the Legislature’s Local
Government Ithics Study Commission for the S C.I1.’s presenta-
tion, made by Counsel B. Dennis O’Connor, of its proposals for
an effectlve statewide code of ethies to applv to county and mu-
nicipal governinents. The Commission in the subsequent section
of this Annua.l Report reasserts its recommendations in this area.
Shortly after Mr. O’Connor’s presentation before the Comm1ttee,
the Passaic-Clifton Herald News commented as follows in pertinent
part:

B. Dennis O’Connor, counsel for the erime com-
mission and its spokesman at a legislative hearing on
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conflicts of interest and ethies in publie office, out-
lined the commission’s suggestions. These sugges-
tions are the result of investigations which the crime
commission has made into charges of crime and cor-
ruption among public officials.

The commission says that John Doe, who is elected
to the couneil in his community, has a right to know
_exactly what he cannot do because it would be un-
ethical, even though not eriminal. There is no guide
for John Doe now except his conscience. And every-
one knows the conscience lords it over some people
but has no influence af all on others.

- John Doe cannot get help from a lawyer unless his
question is about the legality of what he has in mind
to do. The lawyer can tell him that it is legal or
illegal and that’s it. On ethics the views of lawyers
vary as widely as those of ordinary citizens.

Therefore, says the crime commission, the legisla-
ture should do two things. First, it should provide a
code of ethies for the information of public officials,
the veterans as well as newcomers. Second, there
should be an official agency to keep am eye on public
officials to catch lapses from ethical conduct. An
official in doubt ought also be able to turn to this
agency when he wants a definite answer to a question
about the ethics of an act. The agency shounld be
able to say it ig ethical or unethical.

The suggestions are excellent. The fellow who uses
his official posifion fo line his pockets may not be
committing a ecrime, but no amount of high-flown argua-
ment will convince the public that what he is doing
is right and has to be tolerated.

PrivATE HEARINGS

Private hearings held by the Commission play a vital role in
the 8.C.I’s investigative process. They are used to follow-up and
explore fully data uncovered by the inguiries and analyses made
by the Commission’s staff. Witnesses are examined under oath
and pertinent docoments are introduced and marked as exhibits.
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The record established at private hearings, where' the: Commis-
sion is made totally aware of ‘what witnesses will say under oath,
forms the basis for determination by the Commission whether an
investigation should proceed to a public action stage or.whether:
the available factual picture justifies onIy private communications
and referral of matters to other ageneles N

Furthermore, aft tor pr Nate testlmony is 1mt1a11y takem the Com-
mission frequently expends considerable additional investigative
effort in seeking corroborative and supportive data as part of
the painstaking deliberative and evaluative approach followed by
the Commission in reaching a decision on whether:to fake a public
action. In this manmer, the Commission may carefully avoid
unnecessary use of names in public and the cluttering of the public
record with testlmony not meaningfully relevant to a pubhc action.

During 1973 the Commigsion held 41 private heamno- sessions
at which 88 witnesses were examined. To further the progress of
investigations during 1973, the Commission issued 154 subpoenas
for the production of 1eeords and for appearances of Witnesses
before the Oomm1ss10n : . .

Pusric AWARENESS - L _ _

A major responsibility of the Commission is to ‘keep the public
continnally ‘informed.  Indeed, N:J.8.A. 52:9M-11 specifically
directs that the Commission shall keep the publicinformed as to
the problems of organized crinie, problems of crimiiial law enforee-
ment in the state and other activities of the Comunission. Tt is
quite obvious that the Legislature in creating thiz Commission
desired that it help to maintain an informed and aroused public
supportive of crime fighting efforts and to deter public apathy
and Iethargy which can lead to the ever-present d.anoexs of
organized crime bemg 1gnored

The Commission’s basie forms of communications with the
public are its public reports and public hearings. Those reports -
and hearings receive extensive coverage in the news media. Copies
of the Commission’s reports also are sent fo citizens requesting
information about the Commission. As part of the Commission’s
continuing . effort to keep the public informed, members of the
Commission are available to speak’ before appropmate 0"roups as
the Oommlsswn 8 schedule permlts
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' LEGISLATIVE RECOMMENDATIONS

The Cbmmission respectfully requests the Grovernor and the
Legislature take under advisement the recommendations, advanced
below, on proposals for new legislation.

NarcoTics LAws

The Commission’s final recommendations based on its 1973
investigation and public hearings on illicit narcotics distribution
and its relation to laws and law enforcement programs are pre-
sented in detail in the ‘‘Final Recommendations’’ Section of the
complete. review of that probe in subsequent pages of this
Annual Report. The final proposals for legislative action are,
therefore, presented only in brief summary form below. They
recommend actions which wounld :

° Amend the State Controlled Dangerous Substances
Act (N.J.S.A. 2:21 et seq.) to provide for imposition
of a mandatory minimum prison ferm of 10 years,
with no possibility of parocle, and a maximum of life in
prison for a non-addict seller of hard core drugs
(enumerated in Schedules One and T'wo of the Con-
trolled Dangerous Substances Act) who can be shown
to be the head of a mnarecotics trafficking operation.
This same amendment would increase the maximum
fine for this type of offense to $100,000. Existing
penalties have no mandatory minimum sentence
requirement and provide for maximum sentences of
12 years in prison and a $25,000 fine. The Commis-
sion’s proposal in this area is in accord with the
S.C.1.%s belief that harsher sentences for non-addict
sellers of narcotics are in order but that the goal
of effective law enforcement would best be reached
by continuing to give the courts some leeway in
1mposing sentence,

¢ Enactment of measures designed to increase,
through monies seized in arrests, the amount of “buy
money’’ and ‘‘flash rolls’’ for use by law enforcement
agencies 1n further penetrating narcotics operations,
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particularly the upper levels of illicit distribution
operations. The measures would

a) Deem moneys seized in narcotics arrests to be
contraband and make it unlawful to return those
monies to persons claiming to own same, except
ag provided for in cases ending in acquittals.

b) Mandate that County Treasurers in all
counties where there ig a County Narcotics Strike
Toree or Squad institute and maintain Special
Narcotics Funds to consist of all money seized
~and lawfully retained in marcoties arrests.

c) Establish that there shall be no minimum
amount required to be in the various Special
Funds but that there shall be a2 maximum amount
Limit for those funds, ranging from $50,000 for
the most populous counties to $5,000 for the least
populous counties,

d) Provide procedures for the proper super-
vision and control of monies in the Special Funds
and for doe process in the securing orders for
forfeiture of seized monies.

* Require physicians and others authorized fo write
prescriptions fo apply in person, or through their
authorized agents with identification credentials to
be shown tfo printers, when ordering preseription
pads.

* Make it a disorderly persons offense to sell, offer
for sale or dispense or distribute any substance
which is portrayed by the seller or distributor to be
a controlled dangerouns substance.

* Allow agents in the employ of a county’s Narcotics
Strike Force to follow investigations across county
lines in the interest of forthering more suecessful
enforcement of narcotics laws.

® Provide for free, mniual interchanges of agents
among varlous Narcotics Strike Forces so that agents
with particular expertise and ethnic origin will be
readily available for effective infiltration of varlous
groups engaged in narcotics trafficking.
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° Wstablishment of full time Prosecutors and stails
in all counties in the state in realization of the in-
creasing importance of those offices as viable arms
of modern law enforcement programs.

THE WORKMEN’sS COMPENSATION SYSTEM

Just recently the Commission, in a 338-page public report
to the Governor and the Legislature, made its final review and
recommendations relative to the S.C.1.%s extensive 1972-73 investi-
gation of the Workmen’s Compensation System and certain
abusive practices found common to both the compensation field
and the negligence or liability field. The Final Recommendations
section of that report proposed in detail, including suggested
statutory and regulatory language, the enactment of 13 bills and
two joint resolutions which, together with the taking of additional
proposed administrative actions, would in the S.C.1.’s opinion
provide a sound framework for elimination of abuses and progress
toward an improved system.

Accordingly, this Annual Report will present in brief, summary
form only those legislative enactment proposals for which the
S.C.I. has requested priority action as ‘‘Immediate Corrective
Measures’ needed to halt further abuses and illegalities as
uncovered in the investigation. Those proposals ask for enactment
of bills which would:

® Provide for significant strengthening of the powers
of the Director of the State Division of Workmen’s
Compensation with emphasis on specific powers,
ineluding mitiation of removal proceedings against
Judges of Compensation, to achieve the goal of an
expeditious, well administered and excellence-
. oriented Workmen’s Compensation system. The mea-
sure would provide further for a seven-year term for
Director as a way of insumlating the Workmen’s
Compensation Division from the impaect of political
changes and of encouraging development of the
Directorship as a high level, career type post.

® Increase the salaries of the Judges of Compensation
and the Division Director by fying the salary of a
Compensation Judge to that of a County District
Court Judge ($34,000) and the salary of the Director
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to that of a Superior Counrt Judge ($37,000). Higher
salaries are needed to improve the caliber of the
Compensation Judiciary by attracting the. best pos-
sibly qualified individualg to that Bench. The S.C.I.
observes, however, that any raising of the Judges’
salaries should be accompanied, as recommended by
the 8.C.I,, by a Bar Association screening process of
potential nominees to the Compensation Judiciary.

® Make it a misdemeanor for a doctor to knowingly -

submit a false medical report intended for use in any

© legal or administrative proceeding. This measure is’
needed "as an additional tool to counter knowingly
misleading or frandulent bill padding practices as
: uncovered in the S.C.L’s 1nvest1gat10n ‘

* Require, under possible penalty of being a dis- .
orderly person, that doctors render true, aceurate and
itemized copies of bills to patients for treatment ren-
“dered in instances where the bills will form the basis
of a legal claim. A further requirement of this bill
is thafs the doctor by -his signature attest to the
actuality and accuracy of treatment rendered, a provi-
- sion whieh would protect a patient in event of a

_ eriminal prosecution of a doetor who had treated that .

patient.

* Require petitioners to move to obtain & Workmen’s
Compensation Court order allowing medical treat-
ments not anthorized by the respondent employer or
his insunrance company. In a companion step, the
S.C.L has written the Director of the Workmen’s
Compensation D1v1s1on, urging him to issue appro-
priate directives to insure that the motions are heard
promptly. : -

* Ban outright the praetice Whereby some law firms
pay doctors only a part of their fees if settlements in
court were ‘“low,”’ thereby effecting a form of con-
tingency fee system which tends to breed abuses of
high fees, overtreatment and false reports of
treatment. : :

* Tmpose a 25 per cent penalty payment on employers
or their insurance companies who unreasonably or
negligently delay in initiating payments of temporary
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disability benefits to injured workers. The S.C.I
believes the 25 per-cent level will be effective in spur-
ring prompt payments of these benefits which are
designed to partially replace wages lost due to job
connected injuries.

® Require insurance carriers doing business in New
Jersey to report all remittances of $600 or/ more fo
physicians in a calendar year to the Secretary of
State. This is the same type of information now
required to be reported om the Federal Imternal
Revenue Service Form 1099. The S.C.1. found wide-
spread non compliance with the issuance of Form 1099
by insurance companies, a failure which tends to
encourage some physicians to divert ineome through
creation of cash hoards which can he used covertly
for improper purposes.

® Make it a duty for the Director of the Workmen’s
Compensation Division to approve appropriate
booklets explaining to employees their opportunities
‘and rights under the Workmen’s Compensation
statute and requiring employers to provide the book-
lets to all employees. The proposed bill is designed
to encourage the approval and use of one standard
booklet but leaves room for more than one such
publication.

* Make it a misdemeanor for doctors to knowingly or
negligently employ an x-ray technieian who does not
have a valid certificate to engage in the activities of
that type of techmician, Testimony at the public
hearings found that instances of use of unlicensed
personnel to administer x-rays in some doctors’ offices
posed a threat to personal health in the state.

* Qutlaw the practice of two-tier billing by doctors
- whereby a differential of as much as 200 per cent
higher is charged for treatments in Workmen’s Com-
“pensation and negligence actions than the doctor’s
- normal charges.

~® Kstablish a five-member special Commission to
- study the number and types of doctors needed by the -
“state to expand fully the effectiveness and scope
of the informal process and the rates at which those
doctors shonld be compensated. The testimony of
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expert witnesses at the public hearings delineated
the facts that the state-paid doctors who examine
individuals and evaluate their injuries in the informal
process are much too few in number and underpaid.
The result has been a tendency to bypass the informal
proecess, since hasty, unthorough examinations and
evaluations have given that process the adverse repu-
tation of not awarding the injured worker his due.

® Require C.P.A. audits of insurance companies in
Lieu of state examinations and rate-making examina-
tions by C.P.As of the Compensation Rating and
Inspeection Bureaun, the insurance rate-setting body,
at least once every two years,

¢ Permit the Governor fo appoint to the Board of
Governors of the Compensation Rating and Tnspec-
tion Bureau three voting members who are not asso--
cilated with the insurance business and who will
represent the public interest on that board.

° Tstablish a nine-member study commission, specifi-
cally authorized to employ expert actuarial staff, to
study in depth the following Workmen’s Compensa-
tion, insurance rate-making areas brought info
guestion at the 8.C.1.’s public hearings—1) The possi-
bility of an Open Rating system; 2) The inclusion of
investment income in the rate-making structure, and .
- 3) The possible uge of actual paid losses and costs,
propeﬂy adjusted for trends and/or 1eglslat1ve
changes in the rate-making process.

Locar CONFLICTS OF INTEREST STATUTE

The question of what will constitufe fair and effective action for
establishing a code of ethics to govern the conduet of public officials -
at the county and munieipal government levels has quite rightly
been the subject of lengthy study in the Legislature. The Commis-
sion takes note of a number of recent calls to action in this area
and expresses the hope that needed legislation of this type will
soon be enacted in the near future. Tn that spirit and hope, the
Commisgion restates ifs recommendations,

Annual Report for 1972, which were as follows:
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®* Knaetment of a statute which would create a
Uniform Code of Ethics for county and municipal
officials, together with an agency for enforcing such a
code. The Commission suggests further that any
statute along those lnes meet the following
standards:

a. There be sufficient specificity in the Uniform
Code of Ethics to clearly define to all who hold
public office exactly what is expected of them,

b. That the Uniform Code of Ethies be applicable
to all municipal and county employees through-
out the state.

¢. There be created a non-partisan agency to
administer the code for the sake of uniformity.

d. The Agency he given sufficient power to initi-
ate, hear, receive and review allegations that
public officials are in violation of the Uniform
Code.

e. The Agency be given sufficient power to
recommend to the appointing authority suspen-
sion or remcval of persons from public office and
imposition of fines upon those found to be in
violation of the Uniform Code of Hthics.

f. That the Agency be empowered to render
advisory opinions to those public employees and
officials throughout the state who are in doubt as
to their status.

The Commission, from experiences with investigations at the
county and local levels, finds a confusing vacuum of ethical guide-
lines for official conduct, a vacuum amounting to something much
less than the public deserves and expects and which leaves the well
intentioned public official without any firm gunidelines for his con-
duet. Existing statute is woefully lacking as to specific guidelines.

VEHICLE FORFEITURE STATUTE

The Commission requests again enactment of a bill, which has
been reintroduced in the 1974 Leovﬂafme making %ubmct to auto-
matie forfeiture to the state of any automobﬂe boat or airplane
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nsed or intended for use in the perpetration of any misdemeanor
or high misdemeanor or to transport any person perpetrating such
an offense. Forfeited vehicles would become property of the state
and any agency of a county or a municipality could, on demonstrat-
ing appropriate need, apply for and obtain the use of those
vehicles. ‘

The Commission notes that expensive vehicles frequently are
used by ecriminals as a cover for weapons, contraband and the
fruits of the crime. They supply a capacity to strike without warn-
ing and leave without a trace. Enactment of a sfatute of the type
recommended would make the criminal apprehensive as to the
forfeiture of an expengive automobile and also would provide law
enforcéement officers with ideal nndercover vehicles at no expense
for use in apprehension of law violators.

LAND DEVELOPMENT

The Commigsion’s investigation and public hearings on the de-
velopment of the Point Breeze area of Hudson County into a
modern containership port demonstrated the need for improve-
ments in some statutes, with stress on greater coordination and
plannmg in the development and redevelopment of valuable lands
in New Jersey. Aeeordmoly, the Commission made several re-
commendations for legislative action. Three of those recom-
mendations have, in consultation with the Legislative Services
Agency, been drafted into bill form. The bills wounld:

* Amend the Local Lands and Buildings Law
(P.I. 1971, c. 199, C. 40A:12-1 et seq.) to effectively
bar any payment of brokerage fees on sales of public

- lands to purchasers of such lands. The Commission
notes once more that if purchasers receive even part
of the brokerage fee paid by a municipality (as hap-
pened in the Point Breeze development), they are in
effect getting a refund which lowers the amount they
had to pay for the public lands,

* Amend the basic Blighted Area Statute (P.1. 1949,

c. 187, C. 40:55-21.1 et seq.) to require a municipality
to adopt a redevelopment plan before commencing
any clearance, development of a blighted area. This. -
measure would end the possibility of a municipality’s
declaring the existence of blight in an area, acquiring
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and disposing of real property in that area, and
proceeding with clearance and redevelopment thereof,
all without having adopted a coraprehensive plan

..t for redevelopment of the area.

* Create a Dbi-partisan commission containing both
Legislative and Executive appointees to study and
analyze the Urban Renewal Corporation and Associa-
tion Law of 1961 (commonly known as the Fox-Tance
tax abatement law) which is intended to attraect
. .private capital to urban redevelopment projects.

. . The study’s goal would be to attempt to find ways

~ to make that statute an even more effective tool for
stopping urban decline and stimulating redevelop-
ment projects.
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INVESTIGATION OF NARCOTICS DISTRIBUTION
AND ITS RELATIONSHIP TO LAWS AND
- LAW ENFORCEMENT PROGRAMS

THE BACKGROUND OF THE INVESTIGATION

Despite major advances in the number, comprehensiveness and
sophistication of law enforcement programs fo combat narcotics
distribution, illicit trafficking in narcotics remains the source and
canse of a major menace to public health and public safety. The
huge profits to be made from the illicit distribution of drugs are
an obvious lure to c¢riminal elements ranging from individmals
associated with organized crime to street hoodlum types whose
penchant for almost any form of law breaking for monetary gain
makes them natural conduits for the flow of narcotics to the ulti-
mate users of them,

The best interests of law-abiding society are, of course, seriously
harmed whenever criminal elements find and nurture lucratively
illicit ways of money making. That harm, however serious, pales
in comparigson to the horrendous human damage and ruination,
egpecially tragic among voung people, wrought by narcoties ad-
dictions and to the grave threat posed by the necessity to commit
crimes, often of violence, fo finance addietions.

Since illicit distribution of narcotics is the key to their wide-
spread use, the Commission during 1973 decided that the dis-
tribution area should be the foeus of increased intelligence gather-
ing by the Commission’s staff. This move by the Commission was
an extension of its continuing interest in the narcotfics problem,
an interest quite naturally emanating from the mandate of the
Commission’s statute to investigate in conneetion with the full
enforcement and faithful execution of the laws and with matters
affecting the public peace, public safety and publie justice.

As a result of the intelligence gathering move, the Commission
obtained considerable data as to certain eriminal element opera-
tions, including narcotics distribution, in the Northern New Jersey
area. Accordingly, a full investigation was unndertaken, with
private testimony being taken in the latter part of 1973.
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The investigation revealed in considerable detail the methods
of illicit trafficking in the hard-core drugs of heroin and cocaine,
replete with high risk, high profits, violence and even death. The
detail also showed how illicit narcotics distribution operations can
become intertwined with other criminal elements and activites.

The Commission determined on the basis of the detail uncovered
that meaningful public hearings could be conducted to once more
alert the public to the continuing presence of the narcotics menace
and to present an overall picture of illicit narcoties distribution
and the programs and problems of law enforcement agencies re-
sponsible for combating narcotics trafficking.

The public hearings were held December 18, 19 and 20 in the
State Senate Chamber in Trenton. Among those testifying were
& number of witnesses expert in the areas of narcotics entry and
distribution and of narcoties law enforcement.

TaeE MIDEAST SOURCE VIA FRANCE

Robert W, Greene, an Edifor of Newsday, a major daily news-
paper published on Long Island, and Knut Royce, a reporter for
that paper, devoted most of 1972 to an investigative reporting
assignment relative to the production and movement of heroin to
the United States. The investigative team they headed spent three
months on preparatory research in the United Stafes, three months
in Turkey and three months in Southern France. Their expertise
in the international flow of heroin into the United States earned
them widespread acelaim. Called as the first witnesses at the
publie hearings, they initially outlined, as summarized below, the
international nature of heroin’s ultimate entry into the United
States: '

® The best grade of poppy, the basic source of heroin,
is grown in an area which includes Turkey, Afghan-
istan, Tran and India. Until recently 80 per cent of
all the heroin reaching the United States originated
in this area. Because of the recent ban on poppy
growing in Turkey, a ban which Mr. Greene predicted
will be short lived because of a change in political
adminigtrations in that country, Turkey’s percentage
as the source of total heroin reaching the United
States has fallen to 50 per cent. Other poppy grow-
ing areas are in Sontheast Asia and Mexico.
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<7 ® Sticky chunks of gum are extracted from the poppy, . -

. with the gum bemo known as raw opium. That gum . :

follows two basic avenues of movement. One is into ..

~-the legal world market as morphine. The govern- ..

ments allow poppies to be grown for this purpose and .. .~

H _ buy legal raw opium at a set price. The second basie

" poppy farmer a price higher than the government’s-

avenue involves illegal sale into the heroin maiket. e __
The underworld induces these sales by offering the:' ++

set price. The farmer obliges by understating his™
actual poppy production to the government, hiding
the remainder and then selling it into the illicit herom
- market. o S .

o Once into the flow of the 111e0a1 market the raw
opium is reduced to a powder morphme base and,.| o
moved to Tstanbul for shipment by a number of routas = "
to France. A principal route is called the Northeast
Passage where the morphine base is smuggled by, . .-
txjuelf:s, cars, buses and other methods thr 011031' o
" Bulgaria and Austria to Germany where it is Ware-'f-i"-«“-f’l
housed in Munich by Turkish laborers. Final ship- .-
ment is made by way of a 24-hour delivery service

- to Southern France where laboratories are set up . =

to refine the morphine base into heroin. Mr. Greene -
emphasized the key part France plays in the dls’smbu- RRIRREE
tion of heroin by stating at-one pomt

I want to emphasize the fact that France is the . . .
nerve. center of the world heroin trade, it is the . - ..
Wall Street of heroin, :

When there are customer demands from the =i
United States, the biggest single customer,
France will put out calls to Turkey to Mumch ;
to other places for supply. '

© After the refining process in France, the heroin is
smuggled into the United States where there are an
estimated 500,000 heroin addicts, with the greatest
concentration of addicts, an estimated 300,000 being
in the New York Metropolitan area which includes
New Jersey. The amount of heroin coming into the
United States annually is eight to twelve tons.
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INEFFECTIVE CusToMs CHECKS

Messrs. Greene and Rovee personally travelled the smuggling
routes from Turkey to France. Mo test the effectiveness of
European cugtoms they placed two one kilo sized plastic bags filled
with powdered sugar in their suitcases. The powder could only be
differentiated from heroin by taste. They also placed the two hags
of sugar on the dashboard of their car as they traveled through
one of the smuggling routes. Messrs. Royee and Green told how
they proceeded across national boundaries.

A. (By Mr. Royee.) Yes, we put them in the suit-
cage for the flicht from Istanbul to Vienna. The
suitcases weren’t opened cven though Vienna
happens to be one of the points, one of the points
where morphine base enters on its way fo Munich.

‘We then put the fwo bags of sugar on the dashoard
as we approached fronticrs.

From there on out, we drove. We backtracked from
Vienna, went down into Yugoslavia and crossed over
the Yugoslavian-Austrian frontier. Nothing. There
was no inspection to speak of, They did stop us at
the frontier simply to check our passport and to
stamp a temporary entry visa, but they made Tno in-
spection at all.

From there we drove through Austria into Germany -
at a frontier post on the auntobahn, main autobahn .
crossing through Germany. The Austrian enfry porf,

1 think, was Salzburg. . It’s between Munich in
Germany and Salzburg in Austria. We crossed
through there. Absolutely nothing.” They waved us
on. There was such a mob of cars that they actually
wave you on, don’t even bother to look at passports

A, (By Mr. Greene.) This is with t]ns stuff in
plain view. We were trying, literally trying, to be
stopped and we couldn’t slow down crossing the
Austrian border, German border to less than forty
miles an hour, they were waving us by so frantically.
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A. (By Mr. Royce.) Then on through Germany
into Strasbourg in France. Again at the frontier
they waved us on. A very casual glance at our pass-
port, as I recall there, but nothing beyond that. They
were particularly concerned when I took pietures
that there was—*‘Pictures verboten’’ they shouted.
That was it.

Then we backtracked from Strasbonrg, We went
down back into Germany down into Switzerland in
Bagil, Basil. Across the frontier from Basil, Switzer-
land mto St. Lio. Nothing. Again, a,bsolutely nothmb,
with the two sugar packaoes on the dashboard.

- Finally, we tested the southern routes from Turkey
into Marseilles, the more direct ronte that bypasses
Munich, the one that goes across Menton in France
from Ttaly. They had arrested several months earlier
a Turkish senator at that post based on information
they had received earlier.

We went over there with the glassine-—with the
sugar again, and once again were waved through.
Nothing.

Mr. Greene had heard continued declarations by the United
States and France that the French government was now cracking
down very hard on heroin manufacture in France. He and Mr.
Royce decided to test the French border at three major crossings
with the powdered sugar, again in plain view. They were waved
by at all times even though they slowed down {rving to have the
customs officials see the exposed bags. However Mr. Greene noted
that a different attitude was taken towards the young traveler:

A. Of course, we might point out at the same time
we saw a number of French Customs guards gathered
around a rather obvious Volkswagen painted with
daisies and peace symbols, and there were six of them
gathered around there looking for marijuana while
the simulated heroin sailed right by sitfing in the
window of two people driving a Mercedes, therefore
a more respectable car. -

. T think the point is, you can literally move herom.
or morphine base right across Kurope at will
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RELUCTANCE TO MOVE AGAINST THE HEROIN TRADE

There has been, according to Mr. Greene’s testimony, a relue-
tance on the part of the French Government to move against those
people engaged in the heroin trade. Two reasons have been given
for this inaction. One is the fact that heroin is not a threat to
France gince there are only about 20,000 addicts in the country.
The second reason is that many members of the French underworld
aided the government by forming counter insurgency groups to
fight terrorists during the Algerian crisis. There were thus favors
owed to many who gravitated to the heroin market after the
Algerian confliet, and the government more or less kept ity hands
off the operations. Messrs. Greene and Royce testified further:

A. But looking at the arrests and looking at the
seizures, it’s easy to see. that what they have heen
focusing on has been the local problem itself. They’re
going after the street pusher, they’re going after the
addict himself. But the major international trafficker
has been left virtually untounched.

“We found, for instance, that in 1972, despite all the
fanfare of the erackdown on heroin pushers, that they
had actually seized less morphine base than they had
in previous years, in the year 1972.

oo # ES # #*

The arrests that they made were significant again
in numbers only when you saw the application to the
problem in Southern France itself, In other words,
there were hundreds of arrests made, but of those
hundreds only sixty had anything to do with the inter-
natlonal flow, and most of these were small-time
couriers. -

_ Q. Mr. Royce, statistically, was there any decrease
W the volume of herown that was coming into the
United States during that period of time?

A. None that we could detect.

Q. So, in effect, what you’'re saying, then, is the

. ._'Freﬂch e%forcement program, at least as of mfad 1972
-~ is inadequate? ~

AL (By Mr. Royce) Yes.
- hT



Tar Narcorics FLow FROM MONTREAL
AND SOUTH AMERICA

Once refined, heroin, according to Messrs. Greene and Royee,
moves to the United States in a number of ways. The witnesses
discussed two principal ways in particular. One is by way of
Montreal where an organized crime family handles the shipments
to the New York-New Jersey area. A second route is by shipment
to South America and then to the United States, with the major
point of entry being Miami from South America directly or South
America to Miami via Mexico. Mr. Greene explained how heroin
ultimately reaches the New York-New Jersey area from Southern
Florida:

A. When it has moved in throngh South Florida,
the major trangit area is from South Florida again up
to the New York-New Jersey area.

One of the principal shipping groups not connected
with organized crime in this country has been the
emergence of a very large Cuban syndiecate, which has
been moving the transportation of heroin from the
Florida area to the New York-New Jersey area with
particular emphasis on storage in places like West
New York, Union City and other places with a grow-
ing Cuban population.

There is also the air enfry where small amonnts—
one, two and three kilos—move in through airplanes
into the United States into the New York-New Jersey
area through airports such as Newark Airport,
Kennedy Airport, others.

One of the more frequent ways of moving now is to
move 1t on an airplane that lands in another place, not-
where you want to bring it, and then transfer to a
domestic airline and then move it back info New York-
New Jersey,

WHAT Is 7HE MATTER WiTH YOUR CHILDREN?

Mr. (reene suggested that law enforecement alone could not
completely halt the narcotics problem in the United States because
of the extent of addiction, especially among young people, in this
country. To emphagize the problem, he noted that, except for the
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Orient where there is a long history of opium addiction, the United
States has the most serious drug addiction problem in the world.
He stressed that even though opinm originates. in Turkey that
country has no opium problem. Mr. Greene added:

A, If we find the answer to this problem of why
drugs are so attractive fo our children, then perhaps
we can proceed to cure our drug abuse ecrisis. But
until then, as one of Turkey’s leading exporters of
heroin told us, ‘““Heroln is the most profitable busi-
ness in the world.”” Given this huge profit margin,
no matter how vigorous our law enforecement agen-
cies, there will always be people willing to supply
the demand. We must find the reasons for the de-
mand. As an aged opium farmer in the tiny Turkish
village of Degermenderes asked ns last summer,
““We grow opium, but we do not nse it. Our children
do not use it. What is the matter with your children?”’

ON Wuo ConTrOLS HEROIN AND COCAINE
DistriBUuTION IN FLORIDA

One of the expert witnesses who festified at the public hearings
was Lieutenant Alan Richards, Supervisor of the Narcotics In-
vestigation Section, Organized Crime Bureau, Dade County,
Florida. ILieutenant Richards was able to shed considerable light
on the exact nature of the groups controlling distribution of drugs
in South Florida and how those drugs were shipped to some parts
of New Jersey. The witnesses made the following observations
at the start of his testimony:

* (lose proximity and accessibility to Latin America,
South America and the British territories has firmly
established South Florida as the leading import
center of drugs from those areas. They are then
transshipped throughont the United States and more
prevalently the Kastern Seaboard. Since the enact-
ment of the new narcotics laws of New York State,
some operations have been moving into surrounding
areas of New Jersey and Penmsylvania.

* Due to the supply and demand made on South
American laboratories, large seizures of cocaine and
heroin are now rare. Smugglers as a rule make
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several trips with small amounts of drugs rather than
taking a chance of being caunght with a large quan-. .
tity:-that would be both costly and difficult to replace.

* The controlling interests in the Southern drug dis-
tribution network are the blacks and the Cubans, who
import and distribute millions of doHars worth of
heroin and cocaine annually. They are financed in-
dependently without the approval or backing of the
Northern organized crime syndicates.

® Heroin has been steadﬂy on the decline recently and
control of heroin importation and distribution in
South Florida has passed from the Cuban elements
to highly organized black groups. Sales of large
quantities of heroin are rare, and the pr oduct avail-
able on the streets of Miami is usually poor, averaging
3 per cent purity. Héroin is usually imported at 80 per
cent purity at a price of $24,000 a kilo. When this is
finally broken down for street sale, the kilo will ulti-
mately gross $300,000,

* Cocaine is the most Wldely sought aftel and avall—
_able drug in South Florida. A kilogram of 60 per
_cent purity will wholesale for about $24,000 and ulti-
‘mately will retail for as much as a kilo of heroin.

Lieutenant Richards explamed in some detail the or galﬁmtion
and operational methods of the typical black and Cuban drub dlS-
trlbutlon organizations in South Florida: :

A. For too long we have belahored the the(ny of
organized crime cartels as the controlling factor of
all h1gh1y organized and specialized crzmmal activity
in this nation. The Black and Cuban organizations
of South Florida are as well organized, althomh ad-
mittedly on a. smaller scale, than any so-called
organized fa:mlly They operate through force and
fear, engage in corruption of public officials, amass
huge profits and also invest into legitimate busmesses
Although Black and Guban organizations have no
direct organized crime sanctions or control, they are,
nevertheless to be considered a viable and hiwhly
organized self-perpetuating ‘and insidious threat to
the. health and welfare of this nation.
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A typical Black organization closely resembles that
of the stereotype organized crime family. Distribu-
tors are referred to as lieutenants, and a level exists
between these lieutenants and the leader of the orga-
nization who act as a buffer and tend to isolate the
leader from direct involvement with the working or
the street level. These drug organizations have no
drng importation capabilities, but rely on Cuban
contaets for all of their cocaine and some of their
heroin. “The majority of their heroin is confracted
from Northern sources directly involved with orga-
nized erime in New York and New Jersey areas,

Black organizations are characterized as tightly-
knit groups whose membership is restricted to a select
" and hand-picked elite. Control remains stable and
. firm. Associates work for the privilege of appoint-
ment to higher responsibility. Transgressors are

" dealt with swiftly and usually violently.

- Latin drug organizations are chalactenstmally of
Cuban’ decent and operate on a clannish basis, the
hierarchy bemg ‘composed of either relatives or
friends of longtime proven relationships. Infilfration
by eithér American operatives or unfamiliar Latins
has been relatlvely unsuccessful. :

Cubans have lmp01 tation capablhtles of cocame,
. heroin and marijuana, but prefer cocaine which is
more difficult to detect and in greater demand.

#® S E % %

Cubans are inherently enterprising and continually

strive to better themselves. For this reason the struc-
ture of the Cuban organizations is loosely interwoven.
It is net uncommon for groups to exchange or loan
_personnel, provide drugs on consignment to a group
that may have run out of available supplies, or even
to pool their financial resources in order to purchase
blgger lots of dmgs at more reasonable prices.

. Although a Cuban group or Latin group is charac-
terized as headed by a certain persom, in some in-
stances it may only be a titular head of a group whose
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power may now rest with an npeoming member of the
group. Because of their enterprising nature, under-
Lings are continually looking to start their own organi-
zations or move up to prominence in their existing
group. This is condoned as long as no effort is made
to bring diseredit or harm to the original organization.

~ The average Latin American citizen fears the drug
organizations and generally lacks confidence in the
American policing system. For this reason, assistance
from the Latin popunlation is rare.

INSTANCES OF THE DruUGS FLOWING NORTHWARD

Becanse of his knowledge of investigations which originated in
Florida but proceeded across state lines, Lieutenant Richards was -
able to show a direct link between the illicit drug trafﬁcking in the
Miami area and the transport of drugs, cocame in par’tlcula.r to
certain areas of New Jersey:

A. I have two instances where drugs were being
moved from Miami to Union City. One was by the
owner of a paint and body shop who secreted the
cocaine in the door panels of vehicles at hig paint and
body shop, had them driven to New York and to Union
City where they were off-loaded and distributed. '

‘We had another case of a Miami widow. She was a
widow of a prominent cocaine dealer who was killed
while resisting arrest by agents of the Drug Xnforece-
ment Administration. She assumed confrol of his
organization. Known as the Queen of Cocaine, she
was personally involved in bringing large amounts of
cocaine to Union City. She was also arrested. -

T might point out at this time, too, is the tra:nsship-'
ment of these drugs from Miami to this area for the
most part is not being turned over to local drag dis-
tributors but is a continuation of the Miami organiza-
tions who have established themselves in this area so
that they are responsible for importing the drugs to
this country via Miami, transshipping it to this area
where the same organization then dlstrlbutes it to the
local market. =
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. Q. Are you saying, them, Lieutenant, that the
Cuban operation that we have here in New Jersey is
simply a subsidiary of the main operation which exists
w the Miaomi area?

A. Yes, for the most part. We have established
some eight different substantially large Cuban organi-
zations in Miami that have capabilities and contacts
or have extended themselves to this area.

Q. Lieutenant, if it will not jeopardize any pending
tnwestigation that you might have, could you identify
this Queen of Cocaine for our Commission?

A. Her name is Maria Brezot and she is the widow
of Jnan Rostoy.

The first subject I mentioned with the car lot is
Lionel Gonzales.

Q. Have you seem any other instances involving

any other cities in the State of New Jersey?
. A. We have one more that I’ve indicated here,
"which was an operation to Hlizabeth, New Jersey,
which I understand is in close proximity to Union
City. In thiscase we had the subject who was trans-
porting cocaine on a regnlar bagis, also by automobile,
and this subject is currently under active investiga-
tion. 1 couldn’t reveal hig name to von.

THE Hupson CouNTY PROBLEM

John J. Hill, Jr., Assistant Prosecntor of Hudson County, tes-
tified that the Prosecutor’s Office for that county had gathered
considerable intelligence information relative to the existence and
operation of Cuban-directed drug trafficking in the Union City-
‘West New York area of the county. He said that due to the
language barrier and the clannishness of the communmity, law
enforcement officials are faced with almost insurmountable difficul-
ties in trying to function effectively in that community. Mr., Hill
explained further:

A. This becomes more complicated when the
Cuban group will not even accept or cooperate with
non-Cuban Latins. They exclude them from all of
their operations and will not in any way participate
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with someone that they do not know through family
relationships or through long association.

Q. Are you addressing these remarks, now, to
that group within the Cubon community that {raffics
wn narcotics drugs?

A. That is correct; that is correct. By no means
do I want to say that the entire one-half of Union
City is involved. But I would point out that that com:
plicates the problem. A law enforeement agent in
a community of that size knows, rather the community
knows and those lawbreakers know that he’s there
in a very short time. Surveillances under those cir-
cumstances are almost impossible.

One of the purposes of the Commission’s public actions is to
arouse citizen support for law enforcement efforts. The Com-
migsion was pleased to note, therefore, that after the testimony
relative to Cuban drug operations, a gronp called the Ad Hoc
Committee to Uphold Cuban Honor, with offices in Elizabeth, took
a large display advertisement in the Elizabeth Daily Journal, said
advertisement bearing the headline “‘Jail Cuban Drug Peddlers,
An Open Letter to Federal State County and Local Officials and
All Honorable Men and Women of Our Community.””"

In the advertisement it was stated that the 99 per cent Cubans
of integrity, who are honest and decent citizens, once again were
raising their voice to condemn any and all illicit drug traffic and
“asking all our fellow Spanish-speaking citizens to provide the
most ecomplete and tofal cooperation to local officials to STOPR,
once and for all, the illicit traffic of drugs in our commuunity.”’

- The Commission in a communication with Carlos Ferrer: of the
Ad Hoe Committee stated that the group’s advertisement was
exactly the type of healthy citizen responsge intended to be stlmu-
lated by the public hearings. ,

AN INCREASE IN PIrLL UsaGE
SPELLS A PRESCRIPTION PAD PROBLEM

Drug trafficking in Hudson County, Mr. Hill said, has been
fairly constant over the past few years, although the hablts and
tastes of the drug users have been subaect to some change. There
has been a decrease in the use of heroin in most areas. Mr. Hill
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said he felt that decrease was due to a combination of law en-
forcement efforts and inereased public awareness of the health
dangers attendant on injections of heroin, As heroin use has
declined, there hag been a corresponding increase in the use of
cocaine and pillform drugs, including preseription drugs. Mr.
Hill, producing what appeared to be authentie preseription blanks
bearing a doctor’s name, and his phone number and a narcotics
registration number, described a. growing problem in the pre-
scription pad area: .

Q. Well, what is the significance of this otherwise
seemingly quite lawful pad or piece of paper from

a prescription pad of a doctor?
A, Well, the significance of this, Mr. Sapienza, is
. .that when a local supplier of pills no longer has a
.. stash to go to and cannot get his hands on something
to sell on the street, he will attempt to obtain and seil:
blank or forged preseription pads. The preseription
form ig selling in our area at this time $5 for a blank

prescnption for:m

. One form? ‘

A. One form, $10 for & foroed prescuptlon form

The particular forms that you’re looking at-are
forms that were ordered by a detective in Umon City.
He presented himself In. attire egnivalent to that
of a doctor along with a litflé black bag at a printer’ 8
and identified himself as a doctor and for $10 had a
thousand of these blank pr escmptlon forms filled out.
So, this is one area that we’re looking into now.. -

We do foresee it as a problem as tastes in this area
of controlled dangerous substances inerease.

Apparently there is no requirement or regulations
or restrictions on the printing of forms which can
subsequently be used after being forged to obtain all
types of controlled dangerous substances and pre-
seription legend drugs.

Q. Well, throughout your area is it possible for an
addict to buy one of these forms and inscribe there-
upon a particular prescription, go to cmy pharmamst
and get it filled?
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A. Yes, he can, and what is usually done is, he
will, through his intelligence community, determine-
someone who uses a particular type of prescription
legend drug validly, He will, upon that person’s
next trip to the doctor’s, view that preseription and
attempt to duplicate it on his own blank form. Unless .
there would be careful serutiny on the part of the
person who fills the preseription, it can easily pass for
the real thing. ”

Q. Is this kind of scrutmy generally lackmg at
this pownt in time?

A. In my opinion, it is very much so, ves.

Sinece New York presently ha,s. a much tougher drug law than
New, Jersey, Mr. Hill was asked to give his opinion of the impact
of this law on the New Jersey narcotics sitnation:

+ A, From a law enforcement standpoint, I would
have to say at this point that there has been no notice-
able impact. Now, by that I mean, we do not see many
more people on the streets or many more New York-
based residents on the street distributing drugs within
Hudson County.

But this, of course, is not the end-all and be-all with
regard to whether or not drug traffic is moving from
New York to New Jersey. I think we have to take into
consideration a lot of things. "

The reason that we don’f see it is twofold. One, you
must realize that the people who are conducting the
drug operations at this point in New York, the
entrepreneurs, so to speak, those who have control of
the operation, are not the people on the streets of
New York. The people on the streets of New York

“are the addict pushers who don’t have a lot of control
over where they operate and under what cireum-
stances. Of course, New York, with their new drug
law, has very severe penalties. But until those
penalties are used consistently over a period of time
and the heat comes to the man who is actually in
charge ‘of the business, he’s not going to give up a
‘multi-thousand-dollar-a-week business to come over to
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New Jersey. And once he does come over to New
Jersey, if the heat should be applied in New York,
he won’t come with fanfare. He’ll come in quietly and
he’ll secrete himself in some community in New
Jersey and he will get the lay of the land and, feel
ont the law enforcement techniques before he starts
to operate and before we can begin to enforce against
him.

" So, at this point in time we have had no appreciable
movement ag I see it in drug traffic within the Hudson
County area as a result of the New York Drug Law.

Q. Do you think it’s possible that if the New York
Law, that tough law, is enforced consistently, that
you might see more of the entreprencurs or the bulk
sellers of this narcolic drug coming nto New Jersey
to attempt to escape the harsher penalties in New
York?

A. T think that you will. T think that if it is applied
effectively at all levels. Tt will do no goed simply to
apply it very strictly at the lower levels, at the addict-
pusher level, because he doesn’t have much control
over his existence. But when it is applied effectively
at the entrepreneur level, yes, they have no choice.
They’re good businessmen. They’re going to move.

A ViEw ON LESSER VIOLATIONS

Mr. Hill recommended the decriminalization of cerfain lesser
narcotics vielations combined with an increase in funds and man-
power to combat the serious drug offenses. He explaimed:

A. What I meant was to decriminalize those which
can effectively be handled at the disorderly persons
level or at some other Ievel while turning full force of
the law against those areas in New Jersey which are
the subject of the stricter drug laws now in New York.
For example, the possession with intent to dispense
and distribute and the actual distribution of various
controlled dangerous substances. T am in no way
asking for deeriminalization in those areas, but a re-
newed effort in those areas beefed up by manpower
and money to effectively handle those areas. With the
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manpower we have now, we cannot effectively reach
all those areas, so we’ve got to do one of two things:
Decriminalize some of the non-dangerous, really non-
criminal areas, and beef up those areas where we can
effectively use the men and the money.

CocAINE TRAFFICKING IN NEWARK

The phase of the public héarings dealing with actual cocaine
and heroin distribution operations in the Newark area featured two
principal witnesses, one a woman and the other a man. For obvious
reasons, the idenfity of these two witnesses who testified as to
actnal drug dealings and to violence and even death resulfing
therefrom, was protected by use of aliases and the veiling of their
- faces during their public appearances. The woman was identified .
only as Mary Smith and the man only as John D.

Miss Smith lived her entire life in Newark until 1971 when she
moved elsewhere to start a new life. In 1968 she first met a man
named Alvin Little who ran a tavern in Newark. She began to
live with Little shortly after their first meeting and learned during
1970 that he had become involved in the distribution of narcotics,
principally cocaine. The paragraphs below summarize Miss
Smith’s testimony as to her knowledge of how Little trafficked in
drugs:

* From being present at a number of transactions and
attendant conversations in the house in which she
lived with Little, she saw and heard how Little ob-
tained his supply of drugs from Raymond Freda and
Austin Castiglione. Freda and Castiglione were
present in the house when the purchases were made,
engaged in conversation with Little relative to the
sale and resale of drugs, and participated in the ex-
changes of bags of narcotics, with the largest single
amount involved in the transactions being $25,000.

® From being a witness to the conversations and
transactions, she also learned that Freda and
Castiglione went to the Bronx in New York City twice
a week to purchase their drug supplies and that they
also- went to West Virginia to purchase addltlonal
drugs .
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¢ She sometimes made the payments for purchase of
the drugs from Freda and Castiglione on behalf of
Little. She did so by taking money Little would give
her, depositing it to her own account and then writing
checks to the J.V. Construction Contracting Co.,
owned by Freda and Castiglione. She identified four
checks, marked as exhibits, as being payments to
Freda for drngs. The checks, signed by Miss Smith,
were made payable to the aforementioned company
and endorsed by Freda. The company had never done
any contracting work for Little or Miss Smith.

- * When Little received a supply of drugs from Freda
- and Castiglione, he would then sell it either
. directly to users on the street or sell it to other in-

.. dividuals for resale by them in the sfreets. These
latter type sales took place at the New Main Street
Luncheonette, HKast Orange, owned by Sylvester
“Rogue’ Maddox; the Akabis Talent Agency on
Springfield Avenue, Newark, and a restaurant called
the 55th Dimension in Newark, owned by Dave
Sheffield.

SOME KIDNAPPINGS AND A BROKEN BACK

There came a time in 1971 when some of the individuals fo
whom Little sold drugs were kidnapped. Dave Sheffield was the
first victim. A $10,000 ransom was paid for his return. Rogue
Maddox also was kidnapped, and a request was made for a $45,000
ransom. Miss Smith testified the $45,000 was to be in the form
of cocaine stuffed in a receptacle that was shaped like an ice eream
cone. Little, according to Miss Smith, borrowed that amount of
money from Freda and Castiglione and, abiding by instructions,
left it under a street light near the South Side High School in
Newark. Rogue Maddox was not immediately freed. Miss Smith

told how he was eventually found:

Was Rogue ever released?
Yes.

Where was he found?
In a gutter by Martland Medical Center.

PO PO
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Q. And what was his physical condition at that
fime?

A. He was beaten up. His back was bhroken.

Q. And is he, in fact, now o paraplegic as a resuil
of that?

A. Yes.

A Bap Loap anp A HoMmicipDe

Miss Smith testified that in 1971 Little became involved in a
large narcotics deal involving a $87,000 transaction. She said
that Little was fo receive a large supply of cocaine from Freda
and Castiglione for resale to an individual in Passaie. The deal,
according to Miss Smith, never wag consummated because the
““‘load’’ of cocaine involved was ‘“bad’’ or not of sufficient purity.
Miss Smith testified as to what happened subsequently on the night
of August 29, 1971 at Little’s tavern:

A. Two men came into the bar and agked for Alvin
and—well, one man came in the bar and asked the
bartender for Alvin. Alvin went outside and they put
a gun in his back and they took him off in a car.

). Alvin was taken from the bar and taken away -
w a car? - S

A. Right.
Q. And was this a short lime after the eighty- .

seven-thousand-dollar deal was supposed to be trans:
acted?

A. Yes.

Q. It was about two weeks afterwards, wasn’t 4%
A. Yes,

Q. And when was the next time that you heard of
Alvin’s whereabouts?

A, That Tuaesday.

Q. And wmwhat manner did you hear of his where-
abouts?

A. The police told me that they found him dead
in Passaie,
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@Q. He had been shot in Passaic; is that right?
- A. Right.

After Little’s death Miss Smith received threatening phone
calls which asked her to come up with the $87,000. She testified
she became so apprehengive that one night she didn’t go home
but rather checked into a motel in Newark. Two men, she said,
that night broke into her motel room, robbed her and threatened
to throw acid in her face if she did not give the $87,000 in two
weeks. Miss Smith stated she never did learn of the whereabouts
of the $87,000.

Miss Smith’s testimony about Little’s drug-buying relationship
with Freda and Castiglione was corroborated by that of the other
. veiled witnesses who, as previonsly noted, testified at the public
hearings under the alias of John D. Testimony by Mr. D was that
he was involved in an operation which sold heroin in bulk to Freda
and Cagtiglione. He was asked for further knowledge he might
have of those two individuals:

Q. Do you know whether there was any sort of
‘a business relationship between Castiglione and
Freda?

A. Oh, yes.

Q. What was that?

A. They were partners for many years. They
were in the cocaine business before I came around;
in the narcotics business for a good number of years.
They controlled most of the cocaine operation at that
time. They sold large guantities of cocaine in the
Newark area.

Q. Do you know who their main customers were?

A. Well, T know of one of them. Are you talkmg
abont the heroin or the cocaine?

Q. Cocaine.

A. Well, there was an individual by the name of
Alvin Little who bought guantities of cocaine from
Raymond Freda and Austin Castiglione.
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FREDA TESTIFIES

The Raymond C. Freda, now of Boonton but formerly of
Newark, who was mentioned in the testimony of Mary Smith and
John D-appeared before the Commission in private session Decem-
ber 13, 1973 during the final stages of the investigation. The
Commission questioned him at length, with particular reference
to any associations or transactions he had with Alvin Little, Mary
Snnth John D and some other individuals. Freda at the outset
of his téstimony conceded he had been arrested some 10 times
since 1952 on eriminal charges which included a plea of guilty by
him and a federal prison sentence of five years in a bank robbery
case.

‘The Commission belicves the pertifient excerpts of Freda’s tes-
timony, presented below, illustrate the difficulties which can be
eneountered in attempting to elicit facts from individuals involved
in the Commission’s continuing investigation of organized crime
operations.. At the private hearing, the real names of Mary Smith
and John D were used. Those real names have been deleted for
the purposes of this public report and the aliases have been ingerted
as parenthetical matter. The excerpts of Freda’s testimony, follow :

Q. You never at any time supplied cocaine
A, No, sir.
- Q. ——to Alvin Little or ... ...
(Mary Smith)?
A, No, sir.

Q. Did you ever ha've any conversation with either
...................... {Mary Smith) or Little wath
regard to cocaine?

A, Yes.

Q. Under what circumstancesy -

A. Alvin Little. T told him that I could have got
him cocaine and I beat him for $20,000.

Q. Well, didn’t he, in fact, beat you for $83,0002
A. No. I took $20,000 of his money and I never
gave it back to him.
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CommsstoNeEr FarLeEy: Will you explain the
specific details about that?

Tar WiTNEss: In other words, I told Alvin Little
- that I was going to get him cocaine. It was just a,
you know, just a story I made, fabricated, to get
$20,000 from him. I took the $20,000 from him.
"He gave me 10, and then another 10,000 and T never

~ got him nothing. I kept the money.

Q. How long after that was he murdered?

A. Gee, I don’t remember. It was during the——
I think it was during the summer months When 1 took
the money off him.

Q. And it was also durmg the summer months of
1971 that he was murdered. Isn’t that yowr recollec-
tion, also?

A. No, I don’t recall. I don’t recall exactly When
Monte got murdered. I don’t. ‘

CommisstoNer FarLey: Let’s establish this for
. 'the record, if we could. Thig particular transactlon
with the ‘$20,000,——

Tar Wirxess: Right,
Comurssiorer Fartey: —when did that occur?

- Tar Wrrness: I don’t know. It was sometime
during the summer months, because he gave me
10,000——

Commissionrr Fartmy: Of what year, sir?

- Ter Wirwess: It was the same year that he got
- killed. I don’t recall exaetly the year, sir.

Commissroner Berrini: So if he got killed in *71,
it was in the summer of '71 that this

Tae Wrrness: Right, T did take 20,000 of his
money. I toock 10,000 the first, 10,000, and then
a gouple of days later he gave me another 16,000.

CommissioNEr  BurTini: Were these eash
payments? '

Tar Wirness: Yeah, he gave me cash money.
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Commissioner Berrini: Do you know what kind
of denominations they were? -

TEE Wirness: No, I don’t remember the denomi-
nations. I know T took $20,000 from him and
I kept it. '
ssse# % #*

Q. Who initiated the conversation, you or Little,
with regard to the cocaine? '

A. Alvin Little.

Commissioner Berrizt: Can you tell us what
he asked or how the conversation went?

Toar Wrrness: I don’t reecall exactly, you know
but I did beat him for the money. I took the man’s
$20,000, I know that, and I used his money.

Q. What did you use it for?

A. Spent it. Clothes, everything.

Q. $20,000 worth? .

~ A, No. Naturally I spent some money on clothes,

cars. You know, 20,000 don’t go far today.

Q. Mr. Freda, weren’t you; in fact, in 1971 dealing
in narcotics?

A. No, no, I did not deal in narcotws

. COMMISSIQ_NER Bermini: Did you ever deal in
narcotics?

Tar Wirness: fver deal, actually deal in nar-
cotics? T refuse to answer that question.

CoMMIsSIONER FARLEY : One question, sir. Was
Mr, Little, to your knowledge, dealing in narcotics?

TR WI:TNESS‘ : I.don’t know.

CommrssioNEr FarLey: Other than the fact that
he asked.you to get him $20,000 worth of heroin?

 Taz Wirsess: Right, he asked me to get him
heroin. I told him it would cost him $20,000. I took
the man’s $20 000 and I never gave him anythmg

% # % ¥ *
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CommigsioNeEr Lucas: And you’re telling this .

committee, out of the blue, for no reason thtle 8ays

to you, “Get e cocaine’’?

~day.

Tyuz WiTness: That’s right. People do it every

Commsstonts Liucas: And at that poinf he hands
you $10,000 as part of the 20,000 package?

Tar Wirress: No, no, he didn’t hand me 10.

) I told him, ‘“I’ll shop around and see if I can find

somebody for you.”’

. Tn the meantime, T went back to him and told him,

| yes, I can get it for $20,000. He gave me 10,000,

He gave me another 10,000 and I kept his money.

EXAMINATION BY COMMISSIONER BERTINI:

=

> ?#gae PO PO PO B0 PO PO

The truth is, you took the money?
T took it. :

You didn’t get taken over?
No.
But the story you told Little was you were taken

he money?
Right, and I kept the money.

- Do you think he beheved youd
“What? ;

. Do you think he believed you?
" Right, he dld beheve me.

Did he ask you where the pafrty was?
No.

D@d he ask you where the herown was commg
what the source would be?

0.

Z s

- Never asked you that?
0.

2

=1
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EXAMINATION BY COMMISSIONER LUCAS:

Q. Did he tell you where the $20,000 was comang

from?
A. No. I didn’t care. I just wanted it.

Q. Did you ever buy any narcotics from a man by
the mame of ... ... ......... (Johwn D)2
A. T take the Fifth Amendment.

@. Did you ever sell any marcotics to a man by
the name of .. ... ... ... ..... .. (John D)2
A. Take the Fifth Amendment.

Q. You're positive, though, that you never bought
any narcotics from Jerry the Jew Donnerstag,
though; is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Andyou could never have done it inadvertently;
that’s o fact, isn’t if?
A. What do you mean ‘‘inadvertently’’?

Q. I mean if you ever bought narcotics from him,

you would know it,
If I bought from him¢

Yes.
Sure, I would know.

B

Did he ever give you narcotics?
I take the Fifth Amendment.

Q. Didn’t he have an arrangement where he would
give you the marcotics on consignment and, as you
sold the junk, youw would pay him?

A. Take the Fifth Amendment.

Q. Other than Downerstag, Mr. Freda, what was
your source of narcotics in —72-'73%
A. Take the Fifth Amendment.

PO BO

SoME GUNS, ‘A RIFLE AND SOME ARRESTS

In the wake of Little’s death, Miss Smith thought she might
try to step into Alvin’s shoes and take over cocaine distribution
beeause Little was a principal contact in the supplying and selling
of the drug to the black population in Newark, As a result of a
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conversation along those lines with Dave Sheffield, a meeting was
arranged for her to meet with him and falk about the matter
further, Miss Smith testified the arrangements for the meeting
involved three of Sheffield’s henchmen, armed with guns and a
rifle, picking her up and taking her to a Howard Johnson’s Motel.
She explained further how the display of weapoury ended in the
arrests which included herself and Sheffield: _

Q. And where were these men carrying their guns
when they were in the Howard Johnson’s Motel?
., A. In their pants.

Q How about the rifle?
: A, They had it down, stuck down in the pants

; Q Were they parading up and down the kall in
the Howard Johmson’s Motel?
AL Yes.

Q And what was thew pwpose there?’ Were they
guards? .
AL, Yes.

Q. And, in fact, did the -police come as a result of
the weapons which were thered:

- A Yes, they did.

Q. And you were arrested, were you not?

- A. Yes. :

Q. Were you arvested with all the individuals who
were there ol the time?
A, Just David Shefﬁeld and myself

Q And were you charged with possession of a
wearpon?
A. Yes.

- Q. And at that time or a short time dftemm_rds You
spoke to representatives of the Essex County Prosecu-
tor’s Office, didn’t you?

A, Yes, 1 did. .

Q And for the first time revealed the story whwh

'yuu re telling this Commission today; is that right?
A, Yes,

Q. And after you spoke to the prosecutor s office,
 that i3 when you left the state; is that mght??
‘A. Yes. S
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AN FARLY INVOLVEMENT IN DRUGS

' As previously noted, the witness identified by the alias of John
D, like Miss Smith,* appeared at the public hearings with his face
velied Mr. D at the time of the hearings was 27 years old, six
of which already had been spent in jails and prisons. He had had
by his own self description, since youth a penchant for a. Iife
of crime involving not only narcotics dealings but also burglaries
and some stickups and bookmaking.

His associations with various eriminal elements in the Northern
New Jersey area made him a particularly informative witness as
to narcoties distribution and how that operation can become inter-
twined with other criminal activities. Mr. D discussed how he
became involved in narcotics at an early age in the festimony
summarized in the paragraphs below:

® When he was 16 there were a lot of narcoties flowing
through his neighborhood with a resultant h1gh
number of ;]unkleq or addiets. One day a coupie of
addicts who were without sufficient funds induced
Mr. D to help purchase heroin from a local pusher.
Tollowing this purchase, Mr. D used hevoin for a
time bef01e deciding the distribution of the drug
was where the money was to be made.

* After that decision, he found a source of heroin
supply in a small hotel in New York near 72nd Street
and Broadway where he bought the drug from a man
known to him omnly as Phil. Mr, D described his
operation as relatively small-time in which he would
buy for $27-30 a half load of heroin consisting of
15 bags which he would sell on the streets in New
Jersey for $5 to $6 a bag. That operation terminated
after a year and a half when he was arrested for
possession of narcotics and served two years in jail.

* Upon release from jail, he got involved in a cocaine
distribution business in the Belleville-Nutley-Newark
area with a man he identified as Phillip Russo. He
said the operation was similar to his previous heroin
operation, with the drug being purchased in Spanish
Harlem in New York and then sold in New Jersey for

#Some photographs, including pictures of the veiled witnesses, taken durmg the public
hearings appear on pages 86a to 86e of this report.
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about double the price paid in New York., The opera-
tion netted him about $500 per week. This operation
lasted about eight months, it, too, being terminated
by Mr. D’s being arrested and sentenced to jail,

SoME ORGANIZED CRIME ASSOCIATIONS

Mr, D’s second prison sentence was in the Caldwell Penitentiary.
It was there that he became seriously ill and was transferred to
the Martland Medical Cenfer in Newark. The oceupant of the bed
next to him was a man named Vietor Pisauro with whom Mr, D
developed a close relationghip. 'The witness explained further
about Mr. Pisauro and Whele this association led Mr. D: ‘

- Q. Did there come a poimt in time when i came-
to your knowledge that he was a member of organized
.crimed.
A, Correct

Q. Do you know with whom ke was associated in
organized crime?

A. He was-a member of the Boiardo family.

- Q. The Boidrdbl:}”am'ily?l
A. Correct.

Q. Did he tell you at any time during your stay in
the hospital to look him up when you got out of prison
for the particular sentence you were serving then?

A. Yes, he told me this.

Q. And didn’t you, in fact, in 1968, when Yyou were
released, look him up?
A, My first day after my release I looked him up.

Q. And where did you locate him?

- A, At the First Ward Democratic Club located in
Newark, New Jersey.

Q. Do you recall what your first conversation with
M r. Pisouro was when you looked him up that day?

A. Well, he just told me to hang around the club,
and I hanged around for about a month before I, I
received any work.
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Q. Well, as a result of this new rela,téonship with
Pisauro, did you find yourself involved in any new
illegal activities? . .

A. Correct,

Q. Without going into any great detail, could you
tell us generally what type of illegal activities you got.
. wmwolved n?
" A. Burglaries, some stickups, bookmaking, shy-
_locking. And I was also involved in transportation of
_ illegal pharmaceutical products at that time,

Having made contacts in the Newark area, Mr. D soon met other
1nd1v1duals from the Hudson County area Whom he learned were
involved: in organized erime type- operations, Mr. D said one of
his associations was with I.ouis Parisi of Butane Industries, Jersey
City, which the witness said was a front for the distribution of
“hot”’ or illegally obtained goods. Mr. D went into more detail
about his involvement with Parisi:

Q. Well, what specifically was your involvement
with Parisi and these tllegal phormaceuticals?

A. Parisi put me to work for him at $100 a day to
transport this product called Librax.

Q. Librax?
- AL Yes.

Q And what was Lzbmm? Did you know at the
time?

A. Librax, I beheve,‘ 1s a new form of Librinm, It’s
a.depréssant or anerve pill, some kind of a nerve pill.

I would deliver this stuff for him, and, alse, I made
other contacts on my own and made my own deliveries
for a profit.

Q. To.whom did you deliver this stolen Libraz for
Parzsz?
A. There was a fellow up in Lake Hopatcong Who.
_o_wned a chain of drug stores. I don’t know his name. I
- never heard his name. I met him once, and T used to
deliver the Librax with Louile up to one of the Ware-
houses for his drug stores.
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Q. On any of these trips to Lake Hopatcong. did
you meet any other individuals whom you considered
to be associated with organized crime?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. Who did you meet? ,
A. I met Frank Condi, also—well, that’s Frank
Cocchiaro, also known as Frank Condi.

Q. When you met him, was he introduced to you as
Condi or Cocchiaro? '

A. Condi.

Q. And did you have any type of ilegal transac-
tions with Mr. Condi?

A. Yes. I used to deliver, deliver Librax to his
home, approximately, about once a week.

Q. Do you know where he was living at the time?
A. In Deal.

Q. And you delivered the stolen drugs to him in
Deal? .
A, Yes.

Q. And you have previously for our Commission
identified photographs of Mr. Condi; is that correct?

" A. That is correct,

Q. So there is no doubt in your mind that that was
Framk Cocchiaro that you were delwering that Libraz
to?.

A. That was Frank Cocchiaro.

AssORTED CRIMINAL VENTURES

During 1970-72, Mr. D was involved in varying illicit ventures.
His testimony as to those ventures is summarized in the para-
graphs below:

®* In 1970, Mr. D was moving guns from South
Carolina to the New Jersey area and selling the
weapons at a profit until he was arrested and charged
with possession of eighty one pistols and two bur-
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glaries. - The guns were to be delivered to ‘Teddy
Riviello who is presently serving 10 years in federal
prison. Mr. D was assisted by Bill nga who also had
organized crime fies. :

° After release from prison, Mr. D went back into the
marcoties business with a man named Thomas
Goldrick of Belleville.. Cocaine was once more pur-
chased in,SpaniSh Harlem for resale in New Jersey.
He was paying between $4560 and’ $600 an ounce
depending on the quality of the cocaine.” Also at this
time he and Goldrieck were robbing jewelry stores to
supplement their income. In June 1971, Mr. D was
arrested for a jewelry stlckup and was sentenced. to
mine months in the Morris County Jail,

® Upon hig release from jail, Mr. D organized a bur-
glary ring in Morrig County. The stolen merchandise
was fenced in Newark through an individual named
Jerry Festa, an operation Whlch required Mr. D to
visit Newark several times per week.

THE HUGE PROFITS IN HEeroIN

Before contlnumg with more of Mr, D’ testunony, it would be
wise to digress here so that the reader has a basic understanding
of the huge profits to be made from illicit heroin sales and how
those -profits * are  achieved - through a multi-level process of
distribution. As can be seen from Chart Number One on Page 83
entitled ‘“Price-Volume Progression’’, there are four levels in the
distribution process, commencing with importation and proeeeding
through Supplier, Bulk Dealer and Street Supplier.

Beginning with the supplier who obtains relatively pure heroin
from the importer, the heroin is ‘‘eut’’ or reduced in purity at
each level by adding inert ingredients. Thus, it ean be seen that
each four ounces of relatwely pure heroin 1mpo1ted ends up as
40 ounces of quite low purity heroin. With handsome profits bemg
taken at all levels of distribution, the $3,500 price for the four
ounces of imported heroin increases some twentv fold to $60,000
at the street sale level. : :
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A SUBSTANTIAL HEROIN OPERATION

As previously noted, Mr. D testified that merchandise stolen
by his burglary ring in the Morris County area was fenced in
Newark through an individual named Jerry Festa. The frequent
trips Mr. D made to Newark in connection with this operation
resulted in his once more becoming involved in narcotics trafficking. -

This time it was a substantial heroin distribution operation in
Newark which, Mr. D testified, he set up in November, 1972 with
one Jerry Donnerstag, also known as Jerry the Jew. Their opera-
tion was that of a bulk dealer, although Mr. D also acted a street
supplier in some sales, Their principal supplier was a man known
to Mr, D only as George from Fort Lee who had heroin importing
eontacts in New York.

Mr. D testified he and Donnerstag purchased up fo a kilo of
heroin per week from George, depending on their customer
demand. They had a number of ‘‘weight customers’’” who as street
suppliers would purchase from an eighth to a guarter of a kilo
a week and cut it and put it on the streets. As previously noted,
Mr. D testified Raymond Freda and Austin Castiglione, Who dealt
with Alvin Little, were among the weight buyers.

In addition to acting as a bulk dealer, Mr. D also acted as a
street supplier for some heroin sales. Even though he had to
gplit the proceeds with Donnerstag, he still made thomsands of.
dollars per week. He testified further.

Q. Would you describe your street operation?

A. Well, I had anywhere between six and ten
dealers in the ¥issex County and Morris County area
and I would supply them with heroin already bagged
up to put it in the street. 1 would give them fifteen
ten-dollar bags. When they sell fifteen ten-dollar
bags, they would have $150. They would take $50 and
put it in their pocket and the other would be turned
over to me, and, in turn, T wounld fake $50 and put it
in my pocket and I would turn the remaining fifty
over to Jerry the Jew.

Q. Your split with Donnerstag was fifty/fifty, then,
at that point?

A. In the beginning I was only getting twenty-five
per eent, but then after I learned the business fairly
well he gave me fifty per cent.

#* . * %* *
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Q. Approzimately how much money were you mak-
ing a week as a result of this operation?

A. This operation, I’d say, anywhere between 6
and 7,000 a week.

Q. What did you do with all that money?
A, Had a good time.

NarcoTics FINANCES DETAILED

Mr. ID was in an excellent position from his work experiences
to provide in detail how the narcotics distributor reaps his huge
profits. He told in brief how the supplier receives heroin of 80
to 90 per cent purity from the importer and adds an equal amount
of inert mmgredient, so that ome kilo would be ‘‘eut’ into two
kilos of forty to forty-five percent pure Heroin. The bulk dealer
after purchasing from the supplier adds one ounce more of an
inert ingredient to each four ounces purchased from the supplier,
with the resulting five ounces being thirty-two to thirty-gix per
cent pure heroin. Mr. D went on to explain how the heroin purity
is further diminished as it is finally prepared for street sale.
His testimony, making reference to HExhibit 18 which appears as
Chart T'wo on Page 86 of this Annunal Report, follows:

A. You take a quarter of an ounce of the thirty-
- two to thirty-six per cent and mix it with three-
quarters of an ounce of mannite and quinine. This
will give you an ounce out of a quarter of an ounce

of the thirty-two to thirty-six per cent. .

Q. So you were adding three limes as much inert
wmgredients as pure heroin; is that right?

A, Right, so that with an ounce of the thirty-two
to thirty-six per cenf, after I finish cutting it T
would have four ounces, or an eighth of a kilo of street
heroin.

Q. That’s right. And on a larger scale, if you took
two ounces of the thirty-two per cent heroin, you
would be adding six ounces of inert ingredients; is

that right?
A, Correct.
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Plotograph hy New Jersey Newsphotos

The witness testifying under the alias of Jobn D and wearing a veil to
proteet his identity grips a gun, shown to him by Commission Counszel B,
Dennis O'Connor, at the point in the public hearings on naveoties when
this withess testilied that the weapon was given 1o hity by o erhuinal ele-
ment individual who wanted John 1) (o execute a “contract” or kill a nuamn,
John D decided not to do se and, instead, began rooperating with law
enforeciment anthorities,
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Photog?aph by New Jersey Newsphotos
Commission Counsel Michael R. Biavage uses a chart in questioning the witness John D
about the details of his illicit hercin distribution operation in Newark and the high profits
reaped from operations of this type.



Photograph by Martin IVArey, Trenton Times
In this photograph taken during the Comnission’s public hearings on
nareotics in the State Senate Chamber, Commission Counsel Michacl R.
Siavage (far right, foreground) questions the witness, alias Mary Smith
whose head is veiled to protect her identity, about illicit cocaine distribu-
tion, Immediately to the left of Mr. Siavage is the Commission’s certified
shorthand reporter, John Prout, In the hackground are Commission Coun-

sel B, Dennig (’Connor on the lower dais and, fron: left on the upper dais,
Counnissioners David &, Lucas, Thomas R. Farley (Acting Chairuaa for
the hearings), and Charles L. Bertini.
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Photograph by New Jersey Newsphotos
Among the law enforcement offieials who testified at the publie hearings
about narcoties strike forces were Richard L. Slavitt (right), Assistant
Essex County Prosecutor and Director of that County’s Bureau of Nar-

coties, and Detective Joseph M. Pariso, Chief of the Bureaun’s Investigative
Siaff,



Photograph by New Jersey Newsphotos
David S. Baime, Deputy State Attorney General and Chief of the Appellate
Section of the State Division of Criminal Justice, testifies ahout suggested
changes in New Jersev's nareotics laws.
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- Q. And ending up with eight ounces of four to
fow and o holf per cent pure heroin, whick is our
no'rmal sireet stre%gth 18 that right?

A. Correct.

. @. Now, Mr. D, this portrays, this exhibit which
has been marked 18, portrays the prices that you
would receive heroin for and the approximate profits,
and the price which you would be able to sell it for and
the profits; is that right?

A. Right,

(). And you would buy an ezghth of a kilo from
(icorge for $4,0008

A. Correct.

Q). Is that right? Or sometimes $4.500 to $4,0bf)?
A. Right.

Q. And he would normally make about a five-hun-
dred-dollar profit on that, right? -

A. Right.

- Q. But this profit line here is higher tham the
mere $500 because George is cutting it; isn’t that
right?

A, Correct,

Q. Inother words, when George begins with a kilo
of pure heroin and cuts zt he ends up with two kilos
of heroin? '

A. He has two kilos. That’s double the amoqnt——- .

Q. That’s right.
B AL worth.

). Now, moving down to the street supplier, then,
which you were in one occasion, you purchased that
eighth of a kilo for $4,5002 ‘

A, For 4,000, yes.

Q. 34,000, that’s mght
Al Yeabh,
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. And you would be able to sell it for @ great
deal more, wouldn’t you?

A. Make about 16,000 on the purchase of an eighth.

#* * * * *

Q. And your original eighth of a kilo has been split
up into four ounces of heroin and you're wmaking
$4,000 per ounce of this original kilo; 1s that right?

A. Correct.

Q. So that you end up with four fimes 4000 or
$16,0002

A. Correct.

Q. For an original four-thousand-dollar invest-
ment? ‘

. A. Right.

. So that your final profit would be $12,0007
A, $12 600 1s correct.

o. How many times were you making that mwh
money, Mr. D?

A. What do you mean by the question?

.  When you were cutling heroin wn this manner,
you were making approximately $6,000 o week; is that
right?

A. Yes, around that area.

No STOMACH FOR A CONTRACT

As a result of his deep involvement with narcoties, Mr, D was
during 1973 given a contract to ‘‘hit”’ or kill an individual felt to
be in the way of certain criminal elements. Mr. D was shown a
sawed-off shotgun and, after identifying the weapon as his, was
asked: :

Q. Where did you get it?

A. T received it from an associate in the narcotlcs
business. I was given a contract to perform and I
reneged on the contract, I didn’t want to do the eon-
tract, and this is the weapon I was supposed to hit the '
guy with.
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- @. You never carried out the contract?
A. No, T never— '

Q What did you do instead?

A. T got word to the individual I was supposed to
hit and told him; got word to him through, through
friends fo let him know hig life was in danger'.

Q. And didn’t you also go to special agents of the
Drug Enforcement Administration in Newark?

A, Correct.

Q.. And as a result of going fo them you became a
witness for the Commission; is that correct? '
A. That is correct. '

[T
FroM MiaMI TO NEWARK

Instances of transportation of drugs from Miami to Newark
were established at the hearings through the testimony of John A.
Matthews ILI, Project Director of the City-County Organized
Crime Strike Force of Kssex County. Mr. Matthews was able fo
review some of the results which evolved from the 1971 arrests at
the Howard Johnson Motel, an action deseribed previously in the
testimony of the witness who appeared under the alias of Mary
Smith. He explained that a second female, referred to at the
public hearing only as Miss X, had been arrested in that action
and had subsequently been interviewed by members of his staff. A
tape recording was made of that interview, and Mr. Matthews
testified relative to pertinent parts of the tape, which were played
in the public hearing chamber. The facts which emerged from that
tape-accompanied testimony are summarized below:

* Miss X was a narcoties courier who brought from

Miami to Newark both cocaine and heroin. In fact, she
~had just delivered a supply of narcotics to Newark
- when she was arrested in September, 1971,

* Miss X was vague in her descrlptlon of her suppher N
of drugs in Florida, identifying him only as Dan. Mr.
Matthews said the vagueness could be atiributable to
her probably being, as disclosed by his investigation, a
prostltute who Was given. supphes of narcotlcs by her

- pimp to take to Newark.
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* When Miss X arrived in Newark, she madé initial
contact for delivering the narcotics by phoning the
556th Dimension Restaurant in that city, a business
operated by Dave Sheffield, previously referred to in
the tGStHIlOIlV of Mar 'y Smith, :

¢ Under the final arrangements for her role as nar-
cotics courier, Miss X received $325 for bringing three
punces of narcotics (worth a total of $6,000 in the
illicit heroin market to Newark). Out of that $325, she
had to pay for her air fare and lodging. Mr. Matthews
estimated she netted about $100 on each trip. He at-
tributed. that 1ela1,1veIV low payment to Miss X to her
p1obab1e prostitute-pimp relationship Wlth the sup-
plier in Miami.

Mr. Matthews explained why heroin was carried in such small
amounts from Miami to Newark in 1971 : ‘

A, At this time there was a crackdown on the large,
or larger dealers in Hssex County, which was bearing -
some frumits. Hlectronic surveillanece had resulted in
the  identity and apprehension and - conviction of
several major dealers in the county. There was a less-
available supply. . '

Also, there was the problem that time of Alvin
Little and the fact that he had, Just prior to this, been .
* killed and no one had yet stepped in to fill his position, . -
so.that there was a tight market in the Newark area
and it was necessary to reach ountside the area and get
it into New Jersey.

. Q. And the tight market produced o little bit of .
desperation on the part of the dealers; is that right?

A. Yes, it produced desperation and a little hlo'her
p11ces than might otherwise have been pa,ld

In response to questions by the Commigsioners, Mr. Matthews
made the following observations about the impact of and trends
in the nalcotlcs problem :

. Q. From your expericnce, is there any conmction
between orgamized crime and the trafiic in norcotics?

- A, Based on my experience; ’phe1e is a definite
eonnectlon between the two, yes, sir. I think the last
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witness who testified here gives an indication of that.
Actually, both witnesses who have testifled here this
morning. The names which he mentioned are the
names of people connected with organized erime, also
connected or dealing in the area of narcotics.

There is a tremendous profit, as the last witness.
has indicated, and organized crime is always quick to
jump into an area when there’s a profit to be made.

C Q. One guestion, Mr, Matthews. From your expe-
rience, 18 violence a necessary associate of the tmﬁic
in-narcotics? : :

- Al Tt appears that it is, because theie is a tremem
dous profit involved in 1t As the last—the first
witness this morning detailed, there were a series of
kidnappings, which resulted in violence. There were
many deaths in the area. There’s a lot of double-
crossing in the area and violence is. a natural part
of the narcotics traffic.

. @. Have you discerned any change in the type of

- (lmg that’s being put on the street today?

A, Today, as opposed fo two or three years ago,
there is a much b1gger market for cocaine than there
used to be. There is a lessening of the use of heroin,
or heroin on the street, and an increase in the use and

presence of cocaine on the street.

- Q. From your background and experience, does
cocaine generally come up from the south to the %orth
rather tham from the European route?

A. Yes, it does. It’s South America, or Mlaml
Florida, and up through that way. Much C‘uban traﬁc
m this area.

. Q. And do you have any opimion as to why the
heroin markel seems to be diminmishing?

A. The Federal Government has made inroads in
the I'ar Hast areas with the growth and exportation
of heroin from those areas. The Federal Government
also has created the Regional Drug Abuse Offices
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which have had an effect on larger dealers in heroin,
and the general public became quite upset with heroin,
I think those are all factors which led to the decline in
use of heroin.

Tue NEw YOork DruG Law

During 1973 New York State’s new and severe drug law took
effect. The Commission was interested in hearing what initial
impact that law might have had or could have in the future,
especially in relation to the possible need to adjust New Jersey’s
narcotics laws to deter a mass move of drug traffickers across the
Hudson River to New Jersey. Frank J. Rogers, Special Assistant
Distriet Attorney for the City of New York, appeared as an expert
witness to testify, about the new New York law.

Mr. Rogers and his staff are responsible for the enforecement
of that new law for the entire city., He explained that he has
co-equal jurisdiction with the five Distriet Attorneys for the
various areas of the city and that in 1972 special Narcotics Courts
were established in the city to concentrate solely on offenses
involving the sale and possession of narcotics, which, as in New
Jersey law, are referred to as controlled dangerous substances.
Mr. Rogers outlined some of the principal provisions of the New
York’s new drug law, beginning with an instance of confrast to
the old law: '

~A. Under the old law, if you possessed sixteen
ounces, or a pound, of heroin, cocaine, or if you sold
that amount, you were 1iabIe for the most severe
punishment of fifteen years to life imprisonment.
Today that has been reduced to the sale of one ounce
or the possession of fwo ounces or more, so that it has
been cut sixteen times.

* 3k 3* #* *

A. What it means is this: That if you’re con-
victed of the sale of one ounce of heroin, the judge
has no alternative but to sentence you to a minimum
term of fiffeen years to life, which means that you
must serve fifteen years plns one day before the parole
board can consider you for parole. You may serve
the rest of your natural life, S
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If the judge desires becanse of your background or
whatever aggravating factors may exist, he can
sentence you to sixteen, seventeen, up to twenty-five
years to life.

Q. Suppose there are witigating factors on the
other side?

A, If you’re convieted of what we now call an A-1
felony, he must sentence you to fifteen to life. He
has no discretion at all. If after you serve the mini-
mum amount of time set by the court, fifteen vears or
sixteen years, and the parole board desires to parole
you, you're on life parole. You never get off parole,
go that you can always be brought back for a violation
of parole, whatever the conditions of parole are, and
reincarcerated.

# e * * *

If vou sell or rather—yes, sell between one-eighth
of an ounce and one ounce, it is what we call an A-2
felony. Of if you possess between one and two
ounces, that’s an A-2 felony, the minimum term for
which is six years to life, the maximum eight and a
third to life. '

* * * #* *

If you sell any amount of a narcotic drug, any
amount at all, and that’s the usual nickel bag, as we
call it in the city, a five-dollar bag of heroin that con-
tains somewhere close to a grain, purity 2%, that’s
an A-3 felony and again it’s a life sentence, the mini-
mum of which is one year, which means that you must
do one year and a day before you’re eligible for
parole, The judge, however, could set the maximam
minimum of eight and a third years for that violation.

Mr. Rogers said one immediate impact of the new drug law
has been a decrease in the number of felony arrests for narcotics
offenses, and he gave some reasons which he feels might have
prompted that trend. He also was of the opinion that it still is

too early to tell what the full impact of the law will be.
pertinent excerpts of his testimony in these areas follows:
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© A. 1 can tell-you at this juncture that in Septem-
“ber of 73, the first month that the new bill was in
effect,” comparing it to September of ’72, we had
50.8% less felony narcotic arrests in the city. We
thought that might be a momentary thing. It was not.
Tn Ootober of ’73 comparing it to October of 72,
there was 31% Iess felony narcotic arrests. Tn
‘November, '73, compared to 72, 38% fewer persons
were arrested for felony narcotic violations,

A, Well, T think there are three reasons for the
reduction in felony arrests in the City of New York.

Number one is the scarcity of heroin because of the
Federal law enforcement effort drying up to a great
degree, the Furopean market. The Southeastern or
Southeast Asian market has not become that sophis-
ticated to make up for it yet. It’s basically now
alien-sailorg-jumping-ship type of thing. It is not a
real sophisticated distribution network. '

The second reason is that there has been major
steps made or accomplished in the City of New York
with a joint Federal-state-municipal law enforcement
and prosecutorial effort.

# # #* * *

In what is proposed in a narcotic enforecement
system, no competing ageneies; everybody who is in
narcotic enforcement workmo under one umbrella
“outfit, and it really has been WOI‘klIlO' out, so that the
joint effort has also contributed to the reduction. But
although it is a bit early with the law only in effect
approximately a hundred days, it is a bit early to
say, but 1 firmly believe that the new drug bill has
~caused some portion of the decrease even if it’s only
a wait-and-see attitnde. Let’s see what happens in
the court. We have approximately in Manhattan
160 indietments under the new law and we have had
approximately eleven or twelve dispositions under
the new law. But it won’t be until we’re able to pub-
lish the figure of something like 200 people being

sentenced to life imprisonment that you will really :

get the full impact of the law across to the people.
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Mr. Rogers explained that despite it severe provisions, the riew
New York law does leave some room for prosecutorial diseretion :
. The key to the restriction. of what a prosecutor can: . .:
 now offer a defendant as & lesser plea is indictment.. . .[;
Before indictment the prosecutor can offer anythihg. .-
roAfter indietment the prosecutor is restricted. In .o .-
other words, I think the State Legislature left nus with ... .
the ball in the lower court in the first few days of the
‘handling of a eriminal prosecution because they didn’t
want the upper eoart congested more than it is at the
'present time. .
- In the drug area, if you’re indicted for any of the
three A felonies, either an A-1, an A-2 or an A-3, you
must plead to an A felony, which means simply this:
if you sell ten tons of heroin, the most I can indict you
foris an A-1. I can give you an A-3 plea. If you sell
one bag of heroin, the most I can indict yon for is A-3
and I can give you no plea, no lesser plea.

Q. So there is no plea bargaining for the lesser
offenses, felony off enses?

A. No. If you're down into the B, C and D areas,
vou can. But B, C and D normally 1s~¢we]l you can
.see it has nothmg to do with the sale of any hard—core
drug. It has to do with dangerous depressante et
cetera.

Up to date, Mr. Rogers "said, there was no great exodus of
pushers known to New York authorities going to neighboring
states. However Rogers stated:

‘There is no question in my mind that once the
pusher fully appreciates the Welght of the law. As 1
‘'said before, the attorneys still do not appreciate that
‘the bill aﬂeets not only the narcotic area but the non-
narcotic area. Once the pusher appreciates the weight
of the law, let’s say, March, when they find 200- 300
people being sentenced to prison for life, that they
would move their Operatlon It seems to me quite
logical that they will move it into the Weehawken-Fort
Lee areas, et cetera, which practically, you know,
border New York City, or up to Greenwich, Connecti-
cut, or some place like that.
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ProGrAMS OF THE CUSTOMS SERVICE

The task of attempting to keep drugs out of the United States
has long been one of the responsibilities of the United States
Customs Service. Fred R. Boyett, Regional Commissioner of that
Service for southern New York and New Jersey, testified in an
expert capacity and commenced his testimony as summarized
below:

® The recent scarcities of available drugs on the street
reflect improved enforcement at all levels and a redue-
tion in the amounts of drugs entering our borders
illegally. A balanced and integrated attack which
maintaing pressure against all facets of the drug
problem has aided this success. However, this current
Iull eannot be expected to continue indefinitely. The
payoff is too high for the worldwide srmiggling com-
bines to remain dormant for a long period of time.
They will be back with increased attempts at smug-
gling hard narcoties. It is incumbent upon Customs
to successfully accomplish 1ts mission of preventmn
detection and deterrent,

® The Customs Service must have an integrated en-
forcement program not only to apprehend and eon-
found the smuggler but also fo meet the inereased
demands placed upon the Service by the dynamie
growth in the international trade level. There are
now over 300 ports of entry in the U.S. Interdiction

. units are in place along with sophisticated communi- .,

. cations equipment. Detfector dogs provide a special
interdiction capability and Custom boats and air-
planes are constantly employed in the effort. Com-
plementing these specific enforcement activities is
the efforts of Customs special agents in uncovering
instances of fraudulent importations, organized crime,
cargo theff, major conspiracies, neutrality and other
‘related categories. A small but significant phase of
these investigations which can produce leads to large.
scale smugglers of heroin and other drugs is the de-
tection of apparently legitimate firms whose true
business is to act as a front for illegal activities in-

- volving organized erime.
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Mr. Boyett discussed the feasibility of the use of detector
dogs, trained to locate narcotics caches, by the State Police or
ioeal drug enforcement operations:

A. We have worked with the New York Police and
the New Jersey State Police in specialized cases. The
dogs do have a drawback in thatf they have very ag-
gressive tendencies and it is not a practical thing to
search people with dogs. We never have our dogs in
proximity of passengers. The only things that we
examine with the use of dogs are cars, trunks, cases, -
cargo, things that are not closeby to people, because
when one of our dogs does alert on a narcotic, he is
‘quite aggressive. He would literally tear it fo bits,
and if it were on a person, the person would not be in
too good a ghape.

Q. Well, is this something that comes about be-
cause of the training, or are these dogs naturally that
way?

A. Well, the dogs are selected for aggressiveness,
in the first place, and, as I said, a lot of them were
attack dogs in the military, so they’re big and they’re
strong and it does come about as part of their
training.

The alert can’t be just a sniff or a paw. It really is
a considered attack on the thing and it is rewarded by
the trainer giving him the reward that he seeks, and
that’s his affection and, literally, ““nice dog.”’

The seizure statisties of the Customs Service reflect that the use
of heroin is declining while use of cocaine is increasing. Mr. Boyett
was asked:

Q. Do you have any opinion as to what is causing
the decline of heroin? _

A. Well, T have my own opinion and I think it’s
shared by some of the other so-called experts in the
field.

I believe that we have attacked the demand side of
the equation quite heavily, and T think that the state,
local and Federal programs to alert children to the
dangers, and the school programs, university pro-
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i graims; are' now bearing fruit in that it’s just not a i

i o thing to do any more. Kids are turning to ether
t]:unfrs as they did in our days, I suppose; aleoholi -

and . other forms of release, or rehef or Whatever
they’re. seeking.

- : Mr. Boyett, one thing that our ('omfm,@sswﬂ %8
‘attempting to ‘do is to frame areas wherein we can
‘make recommendations to our Leg@slatwe for action
to fight narcotics. Now, are you soying that an educa-
tional -approach will be effective?”
A, T thinkit’s been very effective’in decreaslng the
demand for heroin and in alerting first-time users that
the guy who'’s really touting you to use heroin is not
‘your friend, he’s really the worst enemy youn’ll ever
have, and I would suggest that we continie to work in
that ,-(j_ir.ection. , ,
Q. Well, do you think that the educational aspect
15 equally as important as the law enforcement aspectg’
A. Well, quality is a real hard thing to put your
finger on. I think that our enforcement efforts are
terribly important. I think that the deterrent effect
that Customs and other interdiction units have is-a
major contributor to the decline of heroin on the
street, and the lack of availability even further
mclmes someone who might have used it not to use it,
'so I don’t know whether I can say 40%, 60% or What
* you know, but I believe that we should go on in much

., - the same direction. 1t’s like the old thmg that what
... you 're doing is working, you keep doing it.

Q. Then as a United States Customs commissioner, -

would it be a fair statement to say thal your advice to
the State of New Jersey would be to give the two
aspects equal priority?

. A. I would say that they should give both pmomty
Mr. O’Connor, T really don’t know, as T said, whether
equality of resources in these dlI‘QCthl’lS and that’s

literally what we're talking about, dedication of finan-
cial resources, which would have the largest payoff.
I think that there’s going to be a continuing decline
in the;use ‘of heroin just through Federal efforts, but
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T believe that the states can speed up by laying high
priority and ask for utilization of drug 1nterdlct1on
and drug deterrent efforts. v

A NEW FEDERAL PROGRAM

The Un1ted States Justice Department’s newest agency in the
narcotics area is the Drug Enforcement Agency (DEA). It is the
major governmental arm for suppression of narcotics trafficking
in illicitly produced drugs sueh as heroin and cocaine. A second
major program of the agency is the elimination of unlawful diver-
sion of legitimately produced drugs such as barbiturates and
amphetamines. The agency has for these purposes some 2,000
criminal investigators stationed both in the United States and
around the world where drug traffic originates or transits.

Mr. Arthur Lewis, Regional Director of the Drug Enforcement
Administration, for an area including Philadelphia and parts of
New Jersey, appeared as an expert witness to tell of that agency’s
ﬁndmgs and’ programs. He began by explaining the focus of his
agency’s work:

- A. Working with such small numbers of persom:lel
and attacking a problem of such vastness and com-
plexity, it is obvious that the targets of our activity
must be-earefully selected and that the great burden
of law enforcement in this area falls inevitably upon
the state and municipal police. Our strategy is, there-
fore, a simple and direct consequence of this. If is
first to attack the criminal elements who make the
drug traffic possible at the international and inter-
state level and, secondly, to provide as much sapport,
leadership, training and direct assistance to state and
mumclpal police forces as possible.

THE NEwW JERSEY DRUG SCENE AND THE BLACK MAFIA

Mr. Lems s knowledge of the present status of drug trafficking
n New Jersey enabled_ him to summarize 51tuat10ns and trends
as of the end of 1973:

~A. Tn the northern part of New Jersey we. ﬁnd
heroin being supplied out of New York City. Most
of this heroin is:the Kuropean type. We are also

99



beginning to see the appearance of brown heroin,
which is being smuggled in most instances into the
United States from Mexico, with some coming in from
Hurope. We are finding large quantities of cocaine
in the traffic. This is coming into the New Jersey
area from Florida. This cocaine traffic is controlled

by people of Cuban origin.

. We are also seeing the appearance in the northern
- part of New Jersey of a hypnotic sedative, Metha-
. qualone This drug is much abused by youngsters

. in the United States and just recently came under
. Federal control,

“In the southern part of New Jersey we find heroin
being supplied by violators from Philadelphia who

... :ship the heroin into Camden, New Jersey, and Atlan- -
- tie City, New Jersey. We are alzo finding violators

who ship heroin into Atlantic City and Detroit, who

are calling themselves the ‘‘Black Mafia,”” the . A

“Family,” or the ‘‘Organization.’”” These groups -
have money, power, and are rapidly gaining more in-
fluerice. They are operating on an interstate and
international level. They are engaged in a struggle
with the old-line eriminal groups for either all or a
share of the heroin and cocaine traffic. They are
ruthless and do not hesitate to kill either their com-
petitors or their associates to establish control and
authority.

- In order to combat any efficient criminal organiza-
tion there must be more efficient law enforcement orga-
nizations. There have been formed, and operational
in New Jersey, task forces made up of experienced
D.E.A. agents, New Jersey State Police, and munici-
pal departments. To mention one, we have the New-
-+ ark Task Force, which operates out of the Newark
., District Office of D.F.A. There has also been estab-

~lished a Cooperative Narcotic Intelligence Committee
‘in New Jersey. The CONIC organization, on which
sit ranking members of the Drug Hnforecement Ad-
‘ministration, the New Jersey State Police, Philadel-
phia Police Department and the Philadelphia District

Attorney’s Office, was formed for the rapid exchange
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of information to avoid the duplication of enforce-
ment effort and to exchange strategic and tactical
intelligence. This has already been effective, but the
area from Washington, D. C. to New York, of course,
stlll remains g major source area.

. One of the drugs which is increasingly coming to_
our attention and is rapidly becoming the drug of
choice is methamphetamine, or speed. Our intelligence
informs us that there are clandestine laboratories
producing multi-pound lots of methamphetamine and
that these illicit chemists are operating between
Philadelphia and Southern New Jersey.

As a result of the intensive enforecoment activity of
the last eighteen months, we are continuing to experi-
ence a shortage of illicit heroin throughout the Kast
Coast. Heroin continunes to be available in most
localities, but the price at both retail and wholesale
levels has markedly 1nereased while the pum’rv has
declined.

There were several areas in the present system where Mr. Lewis
encounters dificulty. There is a problem in setting bail for the
parcotic peddler. He usually has a large cash flow and is a
different type individual than a user. - He has no roots and is
in the business strictly for money. Whatever figure is set as bail,
he has little problem making it and then he skips the area. Another
problem is the sentencing procedures. It has been Mr. Lewis’
experience that ‘““you don’t rehabilitate dope peddlers’. They
should be dealt with in the same way as other criminal offenders
and a second time narcotics offender should be denied the oppor—
tunity for bail, Mr. Lewis said. :

The pattern of drug traffic as it now exists in New Jersey,
according to Mr. Lewis, is varied. The old-line organized crime
types who have been engaged in this traffic for many years have
been to jail and out again and have re-established contacts so
they are even stronger than before. Over the last few years
Mr. Lewis said, there has developed a well organized Cuban system
and in urban areas the black groups are establishing a toehold—
the Black Mafia. To deal with these organizations, they must be
hit fiscally and jail sentences must be increased, Mr. Lems added.
A pertinent excerpt from his testimony follows :
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Q. -One of the things that came. to owr attention is
that because they're orgavized, if you knock one pa,r-“
ticular member of that organization, there is someone
available to take his place very quickly, keep it going
umtil he returns or perhaps keep it going for himself,
Do you think that mandatory sentences or st@]fer sen-
tencing policies would be more eﬁ”ectwe i dealmg
fwzth that orgowization? :

A, Well, very definitely I believe in two things.
One of them is, T believe you must hit them fiscally;
hit them in the pocketbook where it counts. Where a
guy goes to jail, says, ““All I’'m doing is five, 7 and
le’s takmg a million-dollar rigk, 200,000 a year you
can make me go to jail. Why 1101:02

My thmg is a non-bailable oifense, heavy ﬁﬂe, and
the other thing is mandatory penalties, and. I mean
mandatory penalties, life, twenty years, Whatevel
it is. 1'm talking about real sentences, not when you
say life-and the guy gets twenty years. I’'m talking,
when you nail a guy, he knows he’s gone for oood

THE COUNTY STRIKE FORCE CONCEPT

-~ A dozen New Jersey counties in which the majority Of the state’s
populace resides have in recent years established narcotics strike
forees (al=o called bureaus) as a way of mounting a moré coordi-
nated, sophisticated and intense fight against illicit trafficking in
d’fugs The Commisgion elicited testimony at the public' hearings
from representatives of agencies of this type in Union, Kssex and
Ocean counties. The purpose was to obtain facts about the various
programs and their effectiveness and about any problem areas
which might be appropriate areas for recommendations by the
Commission, -

;

Tae UNioN COUNTY NARCOTICS STRIKE FORCE L

John R. Stamler, Assistant Prosecutor of Umon County a,nd
_Executlve Officer of the County’s Narcoties Strike Force, and
Captain Daniel Hennesgsey, a member of the Plainfield Police
Department and Viece Commander of the Strike Foree, appeared
g8 witnesses to describe that agency’s operation.' Mr, ' Stamler
stated that the Union Strike Force emanated from a 1971 deeision
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to bring together representatives of the various municipal police
departments and the Prosecutor’s Office to work as a cohesive unit
in recognition that drugs move across governmental lmes with
relative eage. .

The foree has grown to a present size of three full time attorneys,
13 county investigators, plus a laboratory staffed by two chemists.
Municipal police officers are used in pending investigations only
to. monitor court—approved wiretaps, engage in surveillance, and
?'partlclpate in countywide narcotics raids, Mr. Stamler called the
Union Strike Force a concentrated effort and commitment by the
‘County Prosecutor and the Municipal Police Ohlefs to combat the
flow of drugs.

Mr. Stamler was asked to give his opinion on the effectiveness
of the Union Strike Force’s use of municipal policemen, a practice
not followed by some other county narcotics strike forces. He
answered: .

"~ A. Well, I think our unit has been exceptionally
effective and productive, and I think the statistics will
bear that out. Our method of operation is somewhat
easier to run because the chain of command is within
our own office. We do not have municipal police
officers assigned there five days a week having to
‘answer to a chief of police who has nothing to do with
the operation,

When a municipal oﬂicer is assigned for a period of

time, he works beneath ILi{. Mason and Capt. ..

, Hennessey as the commander and vice-commander,
' We have found our experience satisfactory. We would
77 rather have municipal police officers assigned to work
" within our unit for a given period of time, be it a
month or three months, only because we think we
could accomplish more. However, we recognize the
problems that the police chiefs face in running a mu-
nicipal department, and there are many departments
within our county that have a detective bureau eon-
sisting of one man, who must do everything in police
work, and it would be impractical for him to be as-
signed to the county strike force to work a month at a
time and leave everything else go. It is a question of

prlomtles
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"~ 'We are able to complement the municipal police: :
departments by giving them undercover men. When
we need men to conduct surveillances, be they elee-- - -
tronic or physical, or countywide raids, they provide -
us with the manpower we would not otherwise have.

A PossisLE BUT NOT PRESENT EXODUS

As previously noted, one of the Commission’s interests at the
'public hearings was to garner facts about any possible impact of
the new New York narcotics law. Mr. Stamler had an opinion
similar to that expressed by prior witnesses: : :

A. We have not seen any hard, actual evidence.
We have received intelligence mfmmatlon from in- -
formants, from undercover agents who have had
contact with New York defendants, and it seems that
they are taking the position they’re going to wait and
see just how sincere New York authorities are in
enforcing their law. If in fact they are, do adopt the
‘hard line in enforeing that law, then just practical
economics will dictate they pay the one-dollar toll and
1move over to New Jersey where, for the same _of["ense
they will be exposéd to no more than twelve years in
prison as opposed to life in New York State. But we
have seen no actual evidence of them coming over to
deal in our county, no. Staten Island is only across
‘the water from us.

Mr. Stamler was asked for his opinion on whether New Jersey’s
narcotics laws should be amended to place them on a par with the
new New York law. He stressed in his reply his feelings that
New Jersey narcotics laws were generally adequate but called for
steps to effect firmer incarcerations of offenders:

A. In my opinlon, this is a personal opinion, I am
not speaking for the prosecutor of Union County, that
our law is, or has, I think, adequate sanctions for
dealing with eriminals except for the area that I men-
tioned: I think there shonld be a mandatory minimum
custodial sentence for sale of drugs. I think that if
the judges in this state were made more aware of the
enforcement problem, as well as the social problem of
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drugs, I think they might adopt a more practical out-
* look in the sentencing of drug offenders.

- 'We have nine judges in our eounty, all of whom will
sentence a drug defendant on a Friday and the
sentences will range from the suspended sentence to
a state prison term for the exact same type of offense..
I don’t think that the disparity in and of itself is bad
because that is human nature. I think that the judges,
however, are not qualified enongh in fhe area of drug
enforecement and drug abuse to recognize the prob-
lems. Many of them think it is a social or a medical
problem that is best helped by referring them to some
rehabilitative agency or some type of program with-
out considering that the first step to rehabilitation, as

our former criminal assignment judge used to say, is
a plea of guilty and when the doors of the jail clank
shut ‘ : ‘

Q. Well, with regard to the penalties, then, do you
think that perhaps a more immediate solution might.
be to make this subject the topic of a judicial confer-
ence as opposed to legislation? :

A, Well, it’s a twofold process. Obvmusly, I thmk
the ;Judges should be trained as part of a judicial
conference, However, we are emphatic about the
rieed for mandatory mmimum custodial sentences for
the sale, and that would be strictly the Leglsla,ture s
province. '

Q. Well do 1 You Tnow of any jurisdictions whwh
presently have mandatory minimums ond have had
them for a period of time lomg enough to form am
opwnion as to whether they actually work?

A. Well, Capt. Hennessey pointed out to me last - -

week that J apan has managed to eliminate their drug .
. abuse problem by nnposmg for the smallest amount‘

~ of marijnana five years in prison. T’m not saying

" that’s the practical approach Things are treated a -
little bit differently in this country, and T’m not sug-
gesting ‘anything of that sort.

.. -However, inearceration, firm incarceration, I think,
.wﬂl reform an awful lot of drug dealers and users.
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Both Mr. Stamler and Captain Hennessey found New. Jersey’s
electronic surveillance law to be an effective law enforcement tool:

Q. Capt. Hennessey, perhaps you might be able to
answer this question: In your experience, do you find,
that wire faps are effective in an enforcement pro-.
gram against narcotics? . :

A. It’s my personal opinion that ]eoalmed wire.
taps are the most éffective weapon to come along
within the last twenty years in dealing with narcotic:
drugs and that type of hidden crime.. ' ‘

* * % * *

Q. Mr. Stamler, if you would care to comment.

A. We have worked extensively under and within.
the existing electronic surveillance law. We find
the law to be satisfactory. I think the constitutional:
safeguards are adequate to protect any criminal

* defendant’s rights. They do represent a bit of a pain
in the neck sometimes for law enforcement agencies,
guch as having to travel a great distance to find one’
of the six designated judges who can sign the order.’

The suggestion that we have made several times,
while it does not deal specifically with the narcotic
problem but with the wire tapping statute, is that two.
areas within which organized crime find it profitable
to work are prostitution and untaxed ecigarettes,
neither of which crime are one of those specified in the
wire tap statute as being the subject of a court-
authouzed electronic survelllance

THE EssEx CouNTyY NARcoTICS BUREAU

The Bureau of Narcotics of Essex County is now in ifs eleventh
year of operation, Mr. Richard L. Slavitt, Assistant Prosecutor of
Essex County and Director of the Narcotics Burean, and Detective
Joseph M. Pariso of that Bureau appeared as witnesses to discuss
the Bureau’s operations and current trends in the narcotics scene
in their county. :

The strike force, Mr. Slavitt said, is funded primarily by the
State Law Enforcement Planning Agency (SLEPA) and receives
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other monies from the state and county.  As director, Mr. Slaviti
is responsible directly to the prosecutor. There is also an-advisory
board made up of all the municipal chiefs of police. Detectives
are assigned to field operations ‘and some work exclugively in an
undercover capacity.. The personnel for the bureau -are reeruited
from the Prosecutor’s Office, Sheriff’s Department and various
municipalities of Hssex County.

The bureau, Mr. Slavitt continned, has used court authorized
electronic surveillance on numerous occasions to combat narcotics
traffie. They are not authorized to conduct electronic surveillance
outside of New Jersey so they must go to the authorities in the
other state and request that they conduect the surveillance afte:
presenting the basis for the request. This is necessary, Mr. Slavitf
said, on many occasions due to the flow of narcotics from New
York, Boston or Miami.

TaEeE NEED FOR “Buy MoNEY” AND “FrLasH RorLs”

A major law enforcement tool in the infiltration of narcoties
trafficking is money used by undercover agents to purchase nar-
cotics and to pay informants. These funds are referred as “‘Buy

- Money.”” The undercover agents additionally use these funds tc

display large amounts of money called ‘‘Flash Roll3’’ to drug
traffickers to convince them of an undercover man’s ability to buy
sizable quantities of drugs.

Mr. Slavitt stressed that funds available for ‘‘Buy Money’’ and
“Flash Rolls”’ are presently inadequate, especially for infiltration
of the higher echelons of narcoties distribution. He suggestéd
that action might be taken to empower law enforcement agencies
to make use of money seized in narcotics raids for the purpose of
increasing available funds in this area:

A. We have had occasion to seize great quantities
of money in narcotics raids. We received — we con-
“fiscated at one time $27,000 at an apartment house in
. Newark. Many other times we confiscated many thou-
sands of dollars, We also had oceasion to confiscate,
although we have mnot been able to utilize vehicles

* which have been used to transport narcoties.

Q. And what happens to this money (md tlhr st
vehicles presently? _ ,
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A. The money is handed over to the county trea-

surer. As I understand it, he puts it in a vault In an. -

envelope with the name of the investigation on it and -
it remains there until, perhaps, the trial work or all
-appeals are exhausted, at which time it goes to the
county treasurer. :

Q. Could you see any alternative way of using
esther this money or these cars which would be more
relpful to a bureau such as yours?

A. Wel], T would think that the momnies that we
seize in narcotics raids could practically, at least in

certain years, make us almost self-supporting. That -

might not always be the case, but certainly with the
amount of arrests and confiscations that we make, we
could untilize this money to purchase more sophisti-
cated equipment; to purchase narcotics from other
narcotic offenders. We could utilize this money in
many different ways to more effectively combat the -
problems of marcoties.

* kg * % *

A I would say that in our operation alone, Whlch:: B

T only commenced since October, there have been

- numerous, times when we have needed money of 15, =
20, $30,000, not to spend, pe1haps, but to use as What S

we call ﬂash rolls and that is not available to us.

" 'Now, a flash roll is money which we will expoge to_ .
“a dealer in narcotics, and prior to the deal being .= .

‘ eongummated or prior to him disposing of the money
_ or'whatever, we will arrest that person. This happens
qurte often and it’s the only way that you’re going
to get to a narcotic dealer of any merit. We could

-arrest some now for another ten years, people on the
streets who are addicts, and we’re never going fo
make a substantial impact on the narcotic problem. If
we cannot get to the source, we will never be effective,
and if we ean’t spend money or.show money to get
to the source, we will never be able to be effective.

Q So, what you do, then, if you dow’t have it
“you've got Lo go some place to qet wd
A, Yes, sir.
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Q. And you go to the prosecutor? .

- A. T can go to the ploseeutor for a reasonable
amount of money. If I went to any prosecutor, i
would think, and asked for $30,000, I don’t think I
would meet with much siuccess. T don’t think any
prosecutor just has that type of money.

Q. And-who, in turn, to assist you, however, 'must
then go back to the county treasurer or the bourd of
freeholders to get some large sum of money or make
1t available for you; isn’t that so?.

A. What we do in that situation when we need a
large sum of money like that is that we invariably
have to turn to another anthority. I don’t think there

is the provisions for the freeholders, though I’'m not’ o
positive of this. I don’t know.of a provision that the . =~

freeholders have to give to the prosecutor a large
sum of money, 20 or $30,000, for use in this type of
operation. The frecholders have approved, T assume,
a budget and we’re conﬁned to use money within that
budget.

Q. Then if you con’t gei it 'from' that source and
you must go somewhere else, then it strikes me there
8 @ Z'L'metatwn on where you can go 8n’t the’re? :

A, Yes, sir.

). You're either going to get it from mwther
county prosecutor who has the same limitation. or
you're going to get it from a Federal agency, who,
I assume, is as tight with the money as a prosecutor
18, o you’'re going to get it from the New Jersey State
Polzce wsn’t that so.

"A. Yes, sir. In point of fact, we goto the Federal
authorltles The Drug Enforeement Adminigtration
has worked very closely with ug; Mr., Hambrick, who,
I believe, is to testify tomorrow.

- Aside from purchases, aside from flash rolls, Mr.
Liuecas, there are also oceasions when we—it would
be most beneficial to a narcotic investigation to be
able to purchase, let’s say, 8 or $10,000 worth of
narcotics, and when you do  something like that,
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you're buying the narcoties and youn might never gee
the money again. But that is the way to move up
the ladder.

Q. I am in complete agreement with you, Mr.
Slavitt, and 1 don’t think there is amyone who has
worked in the prosecutor’s office who isn’t aware of
this particular problem both for purchase money and
show money and the loss of time that’s often involved
i 0btaining it ; in some instances, the absolute fmiure
to get it when necessary.

A. Yesg, sir.

THE INTER-COUNTY FLOW AND INTELLIGENCE NEEDS

The inter-county nature of drug trafficking was discussed by
Mr, Slavitt, who expressed hope that a statewide central intelli-
gence system would be established: .

Q. Now, you said before that your agemcy 1is
bounded by Essex County, and that, I assume, is the
extent of your jurisdiction? '

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Have you perhaps already or do you anticipate
running into any problems with the limited juris-
diction which your agents will encounter when in-
vestigation perhaps wll ta,ke them across county
lines?

A, TInvestigation into narcotic activity invariably
takes us across county lines. We try and minimize
it as much as possible, but we recognize, at least, I
recognize that there are significant legal problems
which could be attached to a police officer even nnder
the prosecutor’s auspices going into different
counties, -

Q. How does your ntelligence system work at
present in your office?
. A, We are currently, since we have. just been
established as of Oectober, setting an intelligence
system up. We have a man who is working exclu-
sively in the intelligence area. We’re getting up
files. We hope to have forms ready so that whenever
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a narcotic arrest is- made in Kssex County, these
forms will be sent to us. We, in turn, can send a
notation to the home town of the narcotic offender
so that we will have a record of the narcotic offense.
The Home town where the harcotic offender comes
from, wherever it might be in the country, we will
send this form to so that they can be aware that a
-nareoticviolator resides within their boundaries. We
hope to develop intelligence on key personnel through-
out Essex County who we have reason to beheve are
narcotic offenders.

Q. Cam you think or foresee of any other way & .
narcotics intelligence information might be central- -
teed within the state, for instance? .

A. Mr. Siavage, | Would hope that with the advent
of cooperation between different agencies we might
be able fo some day have a centralized intelligence
system so that we conld feed in something that would
be analogous to what is here in Trenton with auto-
mobile license plates, or some kind of intelligence
system of that nature so that all nareotic offenders
‘throughout the state could be on one kind of central-
ized area and there we could all turn to receive
information on narcotic offenders.

The county strike force concept has been a major step forward
in a more- effoctive fight against narcotics traﬁiokmg in Mr.
Slavitt’s opinion:

A. When you consider that before this strike foree
was in existence the majority of narcotic arrests were
‘made by muniecipal ageneies, you would have to con-
sider that all of these agencies would not have the
manpower or the monetary wherewithal fo buy
sophisticated electronic equipment or fo provide
undercover agents to go to different parts of their
own municipality. For example, if the Nutley Police
Department, and I just pick Nutley at random,
decided to do an undercover operation, they might
find it very difficult, number one, because the Nutley
‘policeman might be known throughout the com-
munity. Ie might have grown up in Nutley. He
might be well familiar with the area in which they
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want him to do undercover work. So, to put him in
‘a small town and ask him, to-aet as if he is unknown
1s unr eahstlc :

_ In add1t10n, additionally, the budget of a town like
that might not have the monetary capability of pur-
.chasing sophisticated electronies equipment so. that
investigations could be conducted with telescopes,
cameras, radio, tape recorders, microphones, things
-of that nature which can make a successful operation.

The availability of heroin and its percentage of purity, according
to Mr. Slavitt; have been declining in recent years ‘in Hssex
County, with a correspondmg upsuroe in cocaine dlstmbutmn
and use:

; A The .availabi]jty of heroin has changed dra-
matically from when I first became an assistant prose--
cutor till today. Approximately four years ago on the
streets of Newark where an addict was arrested we
would find heroin in the quality of perhaps 15%.
During the four years that I have been associated with
" the prosecutor’s office up. until today, our chemist
informs. us that the gquality of heroin taken from an
addict is anywhere between 1 and 4%, so the reduction
in potency of the deck of heroin has been reduced
‘ __-.drama,tleally

Q. Inyour opinion, is a%ythmg takmg the place of +
heroin since it’s become m somewhat short supply? -~ - -
“"A. The most likely drang to take the place, which
‘has arisen in regards toamount of arrests and. things
-of that nature, would be cocaine. Cocaine was taking
‘the place of heroin, gives an exaetly opposite effect on
the human body. Heroin is a depressanf, cocaine i
‘more of ‘a stimulant. Nevertheless, that is the omne
drug that has apparently faken the place of heroin.

o # * * * % o

. Q. Mr. Slawitt, or Det. Pariso, there’s been a great
deal of testimony with respect to the deterioration in
the quality of heroin. What do you attribute this to?

A, (ByMr. Slavitt) Well, I attribute it to the sue-
cessful investigations that have been taken on by the
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narcoti¢ officers, both nationally and internationally;
the cracking down, perhaps, of the factories in
Marseilles; the stopping of the importation; the con-
fiscdation of large amounts of pure heroin would be the
type of thing that would effectively curtail the con-
tinned high quality of heroin.

ORrGANIZED CRIME INVOLVEMENT

Both Detective Pariso and Mr. Slavitt explained the need of
narcotics traffickers to raise money, with Mr. Slavitt noting how
that need is matural area for organized crime loan sharking
activity:

A. (By Det. Pariso) In my experience, a lot of
- times 1 -have heard of instances where we’ll take a
perfectly legitimate businessman who possibly has a -~ =
connection with someone who has a connection with a
large seller of narcotics, and he might go to this. man
and he might say to 11}.11’1 “I need $2o 000 and I'l give
von 30 back next week. g Now, this legitimate. bu31—
nessman doesn’t want to know where his 25 is going.
He ‘trusts him in person. He gives him the $25,000.
A week later he makes 5,000 and doesn’t want to know
where it came from because probably the guy that
came to him is not such a bad guy. Maybe he’s a
gambler. In other words, he shuts his eyes to it. This
has happened.

There’s a lot of times where people want to Zo 1nt0
business and call np three or four people and oet the
money together. We’ve run into that a .few- times.
‘Say they want to buy a couple of eighths, You need
7500. You get 25 from this one, 25 from that one and
that one. ‘\Tow you have 75. You whack it up and set
vourself up in business like anyone else would.

A. (By Mr. Slavitt) I would like to add to that,

.- vaside from the gambling aspect which becomes related.

: to organized crime, we also find large amounts of

- narcotic activity are funded by loan sharks. Their

< money is always being moved, and narcotics is one
- of the quickest ways.to turn into a large profit. -
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. For example, with the charts that have been shown
here today, you can see that for a certam arnount of
money, I believe it was $4,000 you had on the chart,
you éan make $12,000 within a few days This is the
type-of activity that loan sharks enjoy getting into:
There is little risk. They will never tonch the nar-
coties and all they have done is fronted the money and
then they get back a substantlal profit.

, This is all related to organized crime, one of the
' main aspects where orc-‘amzed crime figures come 1111:0 o
e narcotlcs work. o

Druas IN ScHOOLS

Mr. Slavitt noted continued drug use in the schools in the
- following testimony:

Q. What type of drugs do you find on the school
level today? Is it heroin and cocaine or
A, (By Mr. Slavitt) Depending on which schools
you're referring to.

Q. Well, let’s create a dichotomy between pe'rhaps
the urban schools and the hard-core city schools.
A. (By Mr. Slavitt) Fine.

" Q. What do you find on that level?

" A. (By Mr. Slavitt) In that level we have found
heroin and cocaine. We find incidents of amphet-
amines, barbiturates, hallucinogens. LSD is quite
;prevalent there. : -

 In the suburban schools, however, we find very.
little heroin. We do find evidence of cocaine. We find
a large amount of amphetamines, barbiturates, énor-
mous quantities of marijuana, and LSD.

Tur OcrAN CouNTY NARCOTICS BUREAU

Ocean County established a Narcotics Bureau in 1972 after
indictments for narcotics-related offenses had risen in that county
from 24 in 1967 to 301 in 1971. The Board of Freeholders and
the County Prosecutor both requested such a program be initiated
with its principal aim being to.combat illicit narcotics distribution
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in the county. Establishment of  the unit was' endorsed by the
County Chiefs of Police Association and the Mayors of the various
municipalities. Palmer J. Herbert, Captain of Detectives for the
Ocean County . Prosecutor’s Oﬁee and Director of the County
Narcotics Bureat, appeared as a witness to describe the Bureau’s
operation and to offer his views on phases of the narcotics problem.
His testimony began Wlth a discussion, sum.marlzed below, of the
nature of the Bureau:

* The bureau is unique in that it does not make any
arrests except in extraordinary circumstances. It is
primarily an intelligence gathering agency. Members
of the staff will purchase narcotics, identify distribu- . . . |
tors of narcoties and forward mveetlgatlve reports to
~ the local police agency in which the distribution was: >
- made. The police agency is thus responsible for-: - .-
* effecting the arrest of the perpetrator. The indi-- - . i
' viduals of the bureau are then available at time of }
~+ trial or grand jury hearings. This gives the municipal - . .
police departments a say in the operation of the. ! :ii:
bureau, and, in addition, they at times supply man-
power and the municipality itself supplies funds for
buy money, informant fees, and additional sta.ff
members

® Basically, each municipality within the county
gigned a contract with the county and each put $300
into the county general fund. When expenses are
incurred in a partieular municipality, that munici-
pality is billed back for that amount of money. Bills
are sent out on a quarterly basis with all pertinent
information and itemization available. ‘

® There are five or six police departments in Ocean
County with more than 25 officers, Most of them
detach an officer for & period of six months or longer
to work for the burean. Those communities with
insufficient personmnel to assign a police ofﬁcer glve
share of money.

. *0f total operations for the ﬁrst nine months of 1973
‘ the complete costs were $189,000. The bureau was
running -on a SLEPA grant from April 1973 to
April 1974 of $69,000. The burean therefore is more
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' dependent on the municipalifies for. fundmg rather .. -
 than the federal government. Ce

"~ The burean has an advisory board which establishes
" policy. Itis made up of the prosecufor, sheriff, free-
- holder director of public safety and three members of -
the Chiefs of Police Association. There is a director
of the burean appointed by the advisory board as well =~
as deputy director, undercover and surface mves‘m—
gators and a secretarial staff. :

UNDERCOVER PF.OPI.E ARE INDISPENSABLE

Oaptam Herbert stressed the key role played in nareotms law
enforcement by undercover agents. He sees a problem in always
having on hand undercover agents of the proper ethnie origin and
expertise for various probes. He stated that provision for inter-
change of agents among jurisdictions was a much needed step.
His testimony in these areas follows:

Q. Undercover people, I assume from your testi-
mony so far, are the backbone of an agency such as
yours, aren’t they? ..

A. I couldn’t exist without them. They re a
différént type. They’re people. They have a lot of
mozxie. Tt’s-a tough job. T have never worked nnder-
cover in this field, but I can admue and respect those
people that do. ‘ P

. We. have initjated the use of girls undercover in
our bureau, They’re one of the most fantastic thm,gs
that we have done. It’s just been extremely success-
ful, and thanks fo Tt. Grossi, who I see sitting in the
back, we have been able to get them trained and
they’ve just done a tremendous job for us.

Q. Do you have ang %y opmw%, Capt. Herbert, on'the
longevity of an undercover agent tn that field? -

A. We have a sitnation of roughly thlrty—three'
communities and some 600 square miles, but I don’t
think-an undercover agent can last in tha.t area more
than a year unless they came out on the surface, then
went. back under. But in addition to the possibility
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of* being burned, which sometimes will disrupt or
- shorten an undercover’s undercover life, so o speak;
there is a great deal of emotional stress. It’s a
. tremendous tension-type job for undercover agents,
and I.think that after a period of time they need a
break, a rotation or something. T don’t know just
what it is. Yon can see it sometimes. Some it never
happens. Some if happens sooner than others.

Q. Hawve you been able to establish a cross section
of a socicty as far as ethwic and racial groups go with
your agents?

A, To a great extent, yes. We do have a problem
in certain areas. ' ' .

. Have you had occasion to either lend one of
your agents to another agency. or borrow an agent
from another agency for a particular type of investi-
gation which required o particular type of mdividual?

A. Yes. This is a problem. An interchange of
agents, particularly amongst the counties within the
state, is highly desirable and absolutely necessary,
Even an intersfate arrangement is desirable,

I had an incident within the last two months where
a neighboring state wanted an undercover agent and
we happened to have one that fit the particular
qualifications. There was no way that 1 could send
this agent up to work for this state. We ended up
with—again in cooperation of my board of free-
holders, and, T say, the prosecutor have been great
for me. They gave the agent a leave of absence for
a period of two months. The agent was hired by the
foreign state for the two-month period of time, com-
pleted the assignment, and returned and ended the
leave of absence.

‘But you can see it does a lot of things administra-
tively. It interrupts earned vacation time for the
agent, It interrupted sick time. It’s very cumber-
some in this way.
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There was no doubt in Captain Herbert’s mind that'a high
percentaoe of crirnes against property in QOcean County are trace-
able to the narcotics problem He testified further to that point
and asg to the flow of the main supply of drugs into the County

@ Do you see any conmection in Ocean County,
Capt Herbert, between narcotics and other types of
erimanal offenses? : ceel

A. Absolutely.

Q. What percentege would you say of the crime in
Ocean County is drug-related?
“A. Tt’s my opinion that some 70 to 75, perhaps
even 80% of crimes against property—and by that T
mean the muggings, the breaking and entries, the
larcenies and the robberies—are d1reetly or indirectly
related to controlled dangerous substances.

A. As vou know, Ocean County is a centralized
area and you can almost in areas of criminal endeavor -
draw an imaginary line running down through QOcean
County, through Toms River area, from east to west:
Perhaps all that area north of Toms River, Brick
Township, Lakewood, the Point Pleasants, would
appear to beé being supplied from the northern part
of the state and New York City area. -From the south
of Toms River, and I refer to Long Beach Township,
Stafford Township, the island down there, it appears
to be coming from Atlantic City-Philadelphia area.

‘We have had occasion where our undercover agents
on two occasions have been carried into New York
City by Lakewood dealers who have carried them into
New York and we have been. able to buy in the New
York City area from their suppliers and ultimately
turn the D.E.A, people onto the New York Clty-
suppher

118



Tue IMPORTANCE OF FULL TIME PROSECUTORIAL STAFFS

The lack of a full time prosecutorial staff in Ocean is, in Captain
Herbert’s opinion, a major drawback to narcotics enforcement
efforts:

Q. Capt. Herbert, does Ocean County have a full-
time prosecutor’s staff?
A. TUnfortunately not.

Q. Has this had any effect wpon the workings of
your office? I think I heard you say before that some
of your agents draw warrants.

A. This is something—we have a prosecutor and
six assigtants, all of whom are part time. We have two
judges hearing criminal cases at all time. We have
a grand jury that sits regularly. We have additional
other work, reserve work that must be drawn by
prosecators or assistant prosecutors, and there is
just not enough time for the assistants to do all of this
work. Qur investigators have to draw their own
search warrants and go—wire tap warrant, those
that we use, we draw. Investigators draw them.
And it’s just a question if they were full-time prose-
cutors, I think, a lot of these problems wounld be
eliminated.

I personally believe that all prosecutors’ offices
_should absolutely be a full-time position. I think it’s
come to-—requires total devofion of the individual to
that particular job.

‘THE ROLE oF THE NEW JERSEY STATE POLICE

- The New Jersey State Police originally established its Narcotlcs
Bureau to pursue drug law enforcement in 1951 with a staff of
six men. The State Police effort has since been greatly expanded
in terms of staff and programs and represents a particularly
important phase of drug law enforecement throughout the state.

Accordingly, the Commission heard as wifnesses in this area
two State Police Officers, Lieufenant William J. Kennedy of the
Narcoties Burean and Detective Sergeant Louis F. Grossi of the
Drug Enforcement Training Burean. In their initial testlmony,
the witnesses set forth the following facts:
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- * In 1969 the New Jersey State Police, when con-
fronted with the ever growing narcotics problem,
especially in suburban areas, initiated what is consid-:
ered to be the first drug enforcement training agency
created by a state police organization in the country. =
In 1970 an additional 50 men were assigned to drug
enforeement areas to bring the fotal complement to

' seventy-six personmel. By 1971 the stepped up pro-
gram was fully operational.

* The drng enforcement school in Sea @irt is avail-
able to municipal-connty drug enforcement officers as
well as out-of-state police officers. Also instituted was
an advance drug enforeement class for those who have
graduated from the basic course and have gone out to
the field and become more deeply involved in drug
enforcement. The basie course contains not only
legalisties but social and medical problems as well.
Drug identification, drug user identification and the
use of informers are also covered.

¢ In 1969 there were 13,364 drug arrests in New Jer-
sey. By 1972 if had increased to 28,313. According to
Sergeant Grossi, this increase probably reflects both
an increased awareness of the police officer as well as
an inecrease in drug abuse.

Both Lieutenant Kennedy and Sergeant Grossi emphasized that

a major service performed by the State Police to aid county and
municipal level drug law enforcement is provided by the previously
mentioned training school where comprehensive and up-to-date
mmstruction on modern enforcement techniques is given by men
fully trained and experienced in all phases of drug enforcement
work, including the use of undercover personnel and informers.
Lientenant Kennedy commented on services provided by the State
Police:

- A. We do, as a State Police bureau, oftentimes

comment for the Attorney General’s Office on all pro-~

posed drug legislation entered into the State of New

Jersey. We contmue to train local and county police .

as to the awareness of the drug problem in attaining

proficiency in drug investigations.

- However, getting specifically to your point as to :
what we do for the municipal and county police de- -+

120



partments, we offer our assistance in the way of
resoureces, mManpower. Their particular need of us
-oftentlmes is the need for an undercover man to infil-
trate the drug trafficking situation in the municipality
or their immediate area or county, and this demand
for these services are constant upon our personnel.

Like previous witnesses, Lieutenant Kennedy stressed the im-
portance of law enforcement pemetrating the higher levels of
narcotics distribution to achieve more substantial results. He ex-
plained how the Narcoties Bureau is embarked on a priority pro-
gram with high echelon distribution as the target:

‘A. We deployed more manpower in the detection,
identification of individuals we considered to be the
intermediate or even higher level drug traffickers in
the State of New Jersey, and we have been, what I
think, successful in this area because we have achieved
and effected several arrests of individuals who we
identified as intermediary-level drug traffickers, and
besides getting involved in these types of investiga-
tions, which demand more time, which demand more
resources, which demand the assignment of more per-
gsommel, we continue to maintain our cooperate effort
with municipal and county agencies in offering them
undercover personnel, and our ability to effectively
operate on these two levels is seriously hampered by
your assignment of personnel.

The State Police, according to Lieutenant Kennedy, have long
been aware that a Cuban ring has been particularly active in co-
caine distribution in New Jersey. He told of State Police action
and views in this area:

Q. referring to specific individuals within the
Cuban community located in North Jersey and Hud-
‘son County, that is monopolizing the cocaine trade
‘and perhaps pushing cocaine so that it’s now becom-
amng a drug of choice. Is the State Police aware-of
this problem? ‘

A. (By Lt. Kennedy) I attended all of the sessions
here of this and I find them very beneficial. I’ve
learned a lot.
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In 1967 we were aware of the Cuban infiltration
into the State of New Jersey. In fact, I have here
compiled for my information information on the
Cuban infiltration.

A. When you say Cuban infiltration inltlol New ' 7!
Jersey, as in direct traffic route with Miami, T don’t

think that it stops in New Jersey. I think that there

is also Cuban drug traffickers in New York, But there =

are some of them in New Jersey because we have a
concentration of Hispanic-speaking people in the
metropolitan area of the state. And as far as.our
awareness, we know. Since 1967, I think, we have
been conduecting ongoing, continuous investigations
into it. Part of our investigative actions were con-
cerned with the Cuban infiliration partmularly mto
the cocaine traffic.

In 1969 your New Jersey State Police Narcotic
Burean, which at that time consisted of seventeen
men, arrested, effectively arrested, an individnal, not
the individual but two of his lieutenants in the
Camden area, and this man at that time was regarded
by us and by the international and national, Federal

authorities as being the number two smuggler of L

cocaine into the country.

Q. What is thatl mcm?

A. (By Lt. Kennedy) That was a man by the name™

of Cardona. "This man was not arrested in New
Jersey, he was arrested in New York for other
violations. However, we effectively arrested who we
 considered to be two of his lieutenants in the State

-of New Jersey at his home, which he purchased in
Voorhees Township in Camden County, New Jersey,
and we seized eleven pounds of pure- cocaine,
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ON THE DANGERS OF UNDERCOVER WORK

Both State Police officers observed that undercover work in
narcotics enforcement has become inereasingly dangerous because
of a number of factors, including attempts to penetrate the. hlgher
eehelons threu«rh large drug purchases:

A We now must carry much more money Wlth us; -
o a.nd it has so happened that in the past year we have ‘-

had six occasions where our undercover personnel
have been threatened, placed in very serious danger.
‘We call it a ripoff. In other words, those attempting
to sell us drugs, thinking we have the money to pur-
chase, have attempted to hold us np. And there have
been occasions when we have purchased drugs, sub-
stantial amounts of drugs. There was an attempt
to. again hold us up, not only get onr money but get
the drugs that we have purehased So, this is a
dangerous sitnation that exists, I think, not only in
the State of New Jersey. It’s happ-ening throughout
the country where people involved in drug traffic are
actually ripping each other off and it’s dangerous.

© What it means for me, what T would hope to do is
to be able to send at least two undercover men out-on
the street at all times and have him covered eenstantly
by at least six or seven men.

Q I get the impression that u%dewcovefr mtelh-
gence gathemng and undercover work by police of-
ficers in the field of marcotics is probably more
dangerous than any other undercover work with re-
gards to specific crimes. Is that a fact?

A. (ByLt. Kennedy) Yes, yes, I would agree

AL (By Sgt. Grossi) I'agree, from my own éxperi- S
" ¢nde, but I can tell you from walking the streets from =
71962 to ’66, walking the streets in 73 is definitely
T more dangerous with the type of people we have out =~ '
©7* "there from organized crime, young Turks, to quote =~
C e type of people, to the type of person on the street =~

sellirig and using drugs today and that eéxposire’is ~ =~

also from ont-of-state police officers who have come

to Sea Qirt and have reflected their danger in walking
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the streets as undercover men outside of New Jersey. "~
Violence is not indigenous to New Jersey.

: The present New Jersey narcolicr law are generally adequate
in the opinion of Lieutenant Kennedy and Sergeant Grossi, but
both witnesses felt there were inadequacies and dlspantles at
the judicial level in sentences imposed. Lientenant Kennedy gave
a drug investigator’s view on the importance of stern and con-
gistent sentencing of offenders:

- A. A drug investigator is a different type individ-
ual. He’s a detective who must seek the crime; the
crime doesn’t come to him. Tt’s not in the form of a
complaint that comes into the police station and he -
goes and responds and he arrests an individual. He
must seek the crime, seek the individuals, identify
them, spend many hours in surveillance, spend many
hours talking to informers to justify probable cause
and the issuance of warrants. And when he does this,
after spending two or three months on one drug in-
vestigation and he effects what he considers to be a
good pinch, a good arrest, and when he sees this man,
this drug trafficker, come back out onto the street
within two or three months, and this has happened
either because of light sentencing, either because he
wasn’t convicted of the sale of drugs or perhaps was
a downgrading of the offenge into a possession, this
man becomes frustrated. He spent so much time.
He’s dedicated. He wants this man taken off the
streets. And I think there is no more—mnothing that
will destroy the initiative of a good detective as muoh
as poor judicial action.

Sergeant Grossi presented recommendations he had prepared
for the improvement of New Jersey’s drug laws. They included
provisions to expedite the seizure of vehicles used in drug traffick-
ing, minimum mandatory sentencing for sale of controlled danger-
ous substances, and the re-enactment of the Registration Aect
‘pertaining to distributors and possessors with intent to distribute
and those with physiologieal and psychological addictions,
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ProPOSED REvVisioNs oF NEw JERSEY'S DrRUG LAW

During 1973 a comprehensive review of the State Controlled
Dangerous Substance Act of 1970 was completed under the direc-
tion of David 8. Baime, Deputy State Attorney General and Chief
of the Appellate Section of the State Division of Criminal Justice.
The report and recommendations emanating from that review
were the subject of testimony by Mr. Baime at the public hearings.

Mr. Baime outlined six basic categories of drug offenders:
1) Those who use or are found uunder the influence of narcotie
drugs; 2) Those who are found in possession for one’s own use
or with intent to sell or distribute; 3) Those who sell or distribute
based on their own dmg dependency; 4) Those who distribute as
an accommodation to friends; 5) Those who sell for profit but
who are not drug dependent, and 6) Those motivated solely by
pecuniary cousiderations who engage in large-scale drug trafficking.

TOUGHER SENTENCES

For those in Category Six, the report and recommendations
stemming from the law review directed by Mr. Baime propose a
mandatory minimum sentence of ten years and a maximum
sentence of life. Mr. Baime explained the need for stiffer sentences
in this area:

A. Now, we have recommended that the present
Controlled Dangerous Substances ‘Act be amended to
require a mandatory mimimum sentence of ten years’
imprisonment and a maximum penalty of life im-
prisonment with respect to the last category; that
15, the high echelon drug trafficker.

* On balance, we generally disfavor mandatory mini-
mum sentences, the reason being that they have simply
not worked in the past.

I’m sure you are all aware that prior to the Con-
trolled Dangerous Substances Aet we had the Uniform
Drug Law, which had a minimum and maximum
sentence, two to fifteen, with respeet to most offenses.
Very frankly, it was found that statute did not have
a deterrent effect on drug offenders.

The basic question, of course, is how to define the
high echelon drug distributor, and we cife as a model
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the definition of a larger-scale drug trafficker which .
exists in 21 U. 8. Code at Section 848, Basically, that
definition calls for a finding that the individual who
has been convicted must be involved in some continued
criminal condnet undertaken in concert with others,

. in other words, some sort of conspiratorial arrange-
ment where the defendant oceupies a supervisory or
managerial role with respeet to the drug distribution
chain and where he derives a substantial pecuniary
benefit by virtue of the conspiracy.

" 'We believe that stiff penalties with respect to this
type of an individual are warranted both by the moral
culpability of that offender and also by the harm and
the havoe that he wreaks upon the public. :

‘ As far as the other categories of drug offenders, the report
recommends that the motivation of the conwcted offender should
be the predominant factor in determining the sentence to be
assessed. The distinetion would be continued between a possessor
who takes drugs for his own use and those who possess Wlth the
1ntent to manufacture or distribute.

*'With respect to a drug dependent individual the report ﬁnds
that rehabilitation might be the best means of deterring future
misconduet. Accordingly, it was recommended that diversionary
programs be expanded in the state. Mr. Baime explained the
diversionary terminology.

‘A, Now, diversion under the present statntory
scheme has two objectives: Number one, the program
screens out those capable of rehabilita.tion and per-
mits, at least, an attempt to rehabilitate those types of
offenders; and, secondly, and importantly with
respect to the testimony that has been given here thig
week, the diversionary programs permit law enforce-
ment agencies, including prosecutors’ officés, to
investigate and prosecute major offenses.

&% * #* . ¥* *

We feel that diversion is a meaningful alternative
s0 as to rehabilitate the individual where possible and,
therefore, deter future acts of misconduet.

* L. - # 3 3
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. ‘With respect to those who are capable of rehabilita-
tion and who do not pose a danger to the community,
the role of the criminal justice syster must be to
detect and arrest these individunals and to introduce
them to programs where they can obfain treatment,
The earliest possible time that these individuals can
be diverted from the eriminal justice system the
better, both for the purposes of prosecutors and for
the individuals involved.

* * * #* *

. We. advocate a rather simple amendment to our
present statutory scheme which would, in effect,
create a separate offense for the leatmn of a condi-
tion of a supervisory treatment with a sentence that
would be relatively stiff so as to prevent any kind of
violation of that program. In sucha way there would
be no fear that the prosecution would go stale and
there would be less impetus fo require a plea of gu1lty
.. before diverting the offender to a supervisory
. program.. h

“'We also advocate that the diversionary program
W]:ueh we presently have should be expanded to
offenders. who are drug dependent and who have
committed 'drug-related offenses, specifically, non-
violent. drug-related offenses such as fraud cases,
larceny, all cases without violence or where there is
no assaultive nature .to the crime. However, we do
advocate that, with respect to drug-related offenses,
the offender should be limifed to a ﬁrstﬁclme offender.
We should require a finding of guilt or a guilty plea,
and, again, that we would exclude violent offenders.

Mr. Baime stressed that the present statute makes relatively
little provision for sufficient medical input for cases involving
drug dependencies :

A. What is needed is a reshaping of our statutory
scheme to introduce a medical judgment into the
process at the earliest possible time. We have advo-
cated an amendment to the Controlled Dangerous
Substances Acet which would provide that those
offenders who exhibit symptoms of drug dependency
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would be referred to a medical authority similar to
the Menlo Park Center with respect to sex offenders
under the sex offenders statute that we have now.
Following physical and psychological examination,
the authority would determine whether the offender
is drug dependent, the degree of his drug dependence,
what programs are available, Whether he can be
treated, and, if so, the likelihood, if there is a strong
hkehhood of suecess. If the defendant does not pose
a danger fo the community, the authority would
certify to the sentencing judge that this individual
should be discharged based upon a scheduled and
definitive supervisory program. The court under our
statutory scheme proposed would retain the diseretion
to refuse to comply with the medical authority’s
recommendations. However, we envision that the
recommendations of the medieal authority would gen-
erally be followed.

A final recommendation was the decriminalization of cerfain
marijuana offenses. Mr, Baime said the 25-gram limitation is
unrealistic and the penalty of up to six months ineareeration should
be abolished and a fine imposed in these cases:

A. We feel that by decriminalization of marijuana
offenses the prosecutorial authorities would be given
freer hand and would be permitted to investigate and
proseeute cases really warranting great attention,
such as the high-echelon drug traffickers and the
sale, the sellers and distributors of other dangerous,
controlled dangerous substances.
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FINAL RECOMMENDATIONS

Introduction

At the conclusion of the public hearings, the Commission, in
a statement read by Acting Chairman Thomas R. Farley, made
a number of observations and findings based on the facts presented
at the sessions. Some major observations of the Commission were:

* 1t is clear that while heroin is in shorter supply and
of poorer quality due to law enforcement efforts here
and abroad, it can still be readily purchased in the
streets to mamtam the dlsastrous addictions which it
spawns.

®* With heroin in short supply and diminishing
qualify, there has been a sharp growth in the distribu-
tion and use of cocaine, another hard-core drug.
Testimony established a major flow of this drug
from Miami, Florida, to New Jersey.

~® The experimentation with and/or the habifual use
of pills—uppers, downers and hallucinogens—is on
the increase, with many of the experimenters or users
being of school age.

¢ Although law enforcement authorities and pro-
grams at the Federal, state and county levels have
become more innovative and vigorous, there appears
to be an urgent need for more and improved law en-
forcement tools and programs, if the distribution of
narcotics in New Jersey is to be significantly stemmed.

The testimony of the witnesses who were involved in distribution
of heroin and cocaine in Northern New Jersey dramatically
emphasized the violence and complete disregard for human health
and even human life by those who profit from narcotics trafficking.
As the charts which accompanied the testimony of one of those
witnesses g’raphica]ly portrayed, a heroin eutting and distributing
operation in just several days can generate a $12,000 profit on a
$4,000 investment.

The lure of those profits to organized crime operations, par-
ticularly loan sharks, is obvious and was attested to by the
testimony of ‘a number of witnesses at these hearings.
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The Commission found that all the facts cited above, plus others
documented at these hearings, create a sense of abhorrence and
alarm which cries out for a more effective fight against the
narcoties menace. To that end, the Commission addressed itself
to the research and deliberation needed to produce meaningful
recommendations to help achieve that type of fight.

The final recommendations subsequently presented in this
annual report, in the Commission’s opinion, offer possible major
steps which will improve law enforcement tools, and add deterrents
to those “who would profit o'reatly from illieit druO* trafficking. -

New Jersey’s Controlled Substances Act.—Penalties

The Testimony and Background

One of the primary interests of the Commission at the outset
of the narcotics hearings was the qnestion of whether the sentences
for narcotics law violations were sufficient. This issue was fostered,
at least in part, by the recent sweeping changes in the New York
narcotics law.

The Commission found, of course, that it was difficult to approach
an isgue such as this without some degree of personal prejudice.
The witnesses before the Commission testified directly, or at least
by inference, that the question of harsher sentences for narcotics
law violations depends upon one’s view as to whether jail sentences
deter further drug related criminality. After listening to the
test1mony and considering the matter at length, it is the Comnns-
sion’s view that, except for sale cases, stiffer sentences do not deter
further crmnnal conduet in the narcotics area. This position is
based on the fact that most narcotics violators are themselves
addicted. A mandatory minimum sentence in these cases, then,
seems- inappropriate if not counterproductwe ‘What seems more
appropnate to the Commission is the greater ufilization of leGI‘-
slonary: programs and the institution of new ones. —

On the other hand the degree of culpability of non—addlcted
individuals selling narcotlcs is considerably hlgher than the
aforementloned group. The Commission is of the Oplmon that more
traditional means of dealing with eriminal conduct are Warranted
1:r1 'l;hls context

It 1s a,lso the Gomnnssmn 8 VleW that, although the present
penalty prowsmns {with the exception of sales cases). are adequate,
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greater care shoyld be taken by the sentencing court to determine
. the degree of eulpability prior to sentencing with an eye towards
diversionary programs if the individual’s addiction is verified.

" Tt should be noted that the Commission is in substantial agree-
ment with the spirit of several of the specific recommendations
contained in the Division of Criminal Justice’s Report on the
Controlled Dangerons Substance Act which was introduced asg
an exhibit in these hearings through Mr. David S. Baime, Chief,
Appellate Section, who was responsible for ifs preparation. The
- report provided the Commission with a salient and comprehensive
foundation for many of the recommendations whick follow.

| The S.C.I. Recommendations

" I. In view of the foregoing, it is the recommendation of the
Commission that a seller of controlled dangerous substances listed
in Schedule I (N.J, Stat. Ann. 24:21-5) and Schedule IT (N.J. Siat.
Amnmn. 24:21-6) who is not addicted himself and who is shown fo be
at the head of a narcotics trafficking operation should be liable
for a mandatory minimum term of ten years imprisonment, with
no possibility of parole during the minimum period, and a maxi-
mum of life. It is also the recommendation of the Commisgion that
the maximum fine be inereased to $100,000.00.

- Comment

The aforementioned recommendation could be implemented
through amendment to N.J. Stat. Ann. 24:21-19. The one obvious
difficulty with drafting such a statute would be a sufficient defini-
tion of a drug seller who is at the head of a drug trafficking
operation. TFederal law already provides such a definition,
211. S C. 4§ 848 (b) (2):

such violation is a part of a eontm.mnw series of
violations of this subchapter or subehapter IT of this
chapter

(A) which are undertaken by such person in-
concert with five or more other persons with respect
to whom such person occupies a position of organizer,
a supervisory position, or any other position of man-
agement, and

(B) from Whlch such person obtains substantial
income or resources. .
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The Commission recommends addition of a smular definition to
the New Jersey statute with the possible requirement that the
trafficker be non-addicted.

The suggestion of raising the maximum fine to $100,000 is more
in line with the huge profits reaped by hard drug traffickers.

Finally, it should be noted, that the recommendation refers only
to Schedules I and 11 drugs. Legislative consideration should also
be given to providing mandatory minimums in the case of
'Schedule 11T drugs.

II. Although the Commission suggests mandatory minimum
sentences only in the case of high echelon drug dealers, there was
also substantial testimony on the disparity of sentences in the
gseveral counties of the state. It is the recommendation of the
Commission that a greater parity be sought. Greater parity can
be accomplished through several methods. Firgt, the Commission
believes that judicial discretion should not be shackled, so that
present penalties, in all but the cirenmstances previonsly men-
tioned, are deemed sufficient. It is the opinion of the Commission,
however, that this discretion shounld be tempered by sound direction
either from the Legislature or the Supreme Court. See State v.
Ivam, 33 N.J. 197 (1960). Consideration might also be given to the
policy of having one judge in each county do all of the sentencing
with regard to narcotics offenses. These judges could be brought
together at regular intervals to discuss guidelines and difficulties.

Seized Money as Contraband;
Use in Other Investigations

The Testimony

Law enforcement witnesses before the S.C.I. testified that it is
often difficult to obtain sufficient funds with which to purchase
narcotics and that it is often almost impossible to obtain large
sums, even though these monies are almost always recovered.
The suggestmn was made that seized monies might be employed
for this purpose in future. .

The S C 1. Recommendation

It is recommended that money seized in connection with nar-
cotics arrests be placed in the same category as obscene material,
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N.J. Stat. Ann. 2A :152-5, gambling paraphernalia, N.J. Stat. Ann,
- 2A:152-6, and money seized in connection with gambling raids,

N.J. Stat. Ann. 2A:152-7, et seq., in that it be considered contra—
band and, therefore, not returnable,

Furthermore sinee there is a critical need for monies for the
,purchase of narcotics by undercover agents, it is recommended
that counties having narcotics strike forces or narcotics squads
establigh limited county funds for the deposit and aunthorized re-
lease of seized monies for the specific purpose of narcoties investi-
gation.

Background

N.J. Stat. Ann. 2A :162-5, -6, -7, ef seq. treat obscene materials,
gambling paraphernalia and money seized in conunection with
gambling arrests or arrests in connection with obscenity as contra-
band and, therefore, non-returnable property. These statutes,
however, treat the disposition of these materials, i.e., destruction,
N.J. Stat. Anm. 2A :152-5, use for county purposes, N.J. Stat. Ann.
2A :152-6, and depositing in the county treasury, N.J. Stat. Ann.
2A:152-8 and -9, in manners which are considered irappropriate
in'the narcotics context. It is therefore suggested that new legis-
lation be enacted dealing specifically with the seizure of monies
in connection with narcofics arrests and the disposition of same
to the beunefit of the seizing agency. More specific suggestions will
be discussed under the “Oomments” sections following each por-
tmn of the proposed legislation.

"Sﬁecz'ﬁc Legislation

~A) Money Seized on Arvest for Violation of Narcotics Laws ;
Return Prohibited ; Exceptions

. ‘Whenever any money, currency, or cash shall be seized
-or captured by the police, constabulary or other officer in
- comnection with any arrest for violation of or comspiracy to
. violate any narcotics law of this state, the said money, cur-
rency or cash shall be deemed prima facle to ‘be contraband
of law as a narcotics device, or as a part of a narcoties opera-
tion, and it shall be unlawful to return the said morney, cur-
rency or cash to the person or persons claiming to own same,
or to any other person, except in the circumstances and man-
ner hereinafter provided. SR
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Comment

It should be 1mt1a11y noted that no *Definitions’” seetlon has
been herein proposed. Itis suggested that such a section be added,
of course, at the diseretion of the framer. The above section is
patterned after N.J. Stat. Anm. 2A:152-7 which deals with con-
fiscation of monies in connection with gambling arrests. For in-
terpretive cases dealing with that statute see Stapleton v. Two
Million Four Hundred Thirty-Eight Thousand, One Hundred and
Ten Dollars, 464 F. 2d 1210 (CA 3, 1972); State of New Jersey v.
Kaiser, 338 F. Supp. 42 (D.N.J. 1972) ; State v. Moriarity, 97 N.J.
Super. 458, 235 A, 2d 247 (L. Div.), eff’d, 102 N.J. Super. 579,
246 A. 2d 476 (App. Div.), aff’d, 55 NJ 31, 259 A, 2d.201 (1967).

B) Special Narcotics Fund; Institution and Mamtenance
Supervision; Monies to be Used in Creation. '

The County Treasurer of each county in the Stafe of
New Jersey in which a County Narcotics Strike Force or
County Narcotics Squad is operating shall, by and under the
_supervision of the prosecutor of the county, institute and
‘maintain a Special Narcotics Purchase Money Fund. Said
. fund shall consist of, but not be limited to, all monies seized
 and lawfully retamed in connection with the other sections of
- thig chapter. : :

Comment

In addition to setting up the fund this section contains several
provisions which are deemed advisable by the Commission. First,
supervision of the fund is granted to the County prosecutor who
will be  most familiar with proceeds and disbursements (which
will be treated later). Second, the second sentence allows. the fund
to be constituted solely of seized monies (so that county finances
will not be effected) while allowing the county the discretion to
add to the fund if it deems it advisable. Finally, the “Iawfully
retained’” section would prohibit addition of any monies to the
fund until a decision is reached on whether those momes are in
fact the property of the county.

G) Amount of -the Fund; No Minimum; Maximum Amount
: Aeccording to County Sme Surplusage

1. There shall be no minimum amount required to be on
deposit in the Special Narcotics Fund, unless the county
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treasurer with the consent of the county prosecutor deem it
advigable to establish a minimum, but the maximum amount
of monies on deposit in any fund shall be as follows:

a,) In counties havmg a population of more than
600,000, the maximum sum shall he $50,000.

b) In counties having a population of more than

265,000 and less than 600,000, except counties border-

~ ing on the Atlantic Ocean, the mammum sum shall be
$40,000.

¢) In counties bordering on the Atlantic Ocean having
a population of more than 265,000, the maximum sum
shall be $35,000.

d) In counties having a population of more than
130,000 and less than 265,000, except counties border-
- _ing on the Atlantic Ocean, the maximum sum shall be -
- $30,000.

) In counties bordering on the Atlantic Ocean having
a population of more than 100,000 and less than
265,000 the maximum sum shall be $25,000.

f) In counties having a population. of more than
100,000 and less than 130,000 the maximum sum shall
. be $20 000.

g) In counties having a population of “more than
75,000 and less than 100 000, the maximum sum shall =
be $15,000. S

'h) Tncounties having a population of less than 75,000
" except counties bordemno on the Atlantic Ocean, the
maximum sum shall be $10 000.

- i) In counties bordering on the Atla,ntm Ocean havmo
a population of less than 100,000, the maximum sum
- shall be $5,000.

2. If the Speecial Narcotics Fund in any county is at lts
maximum and any monies become the property of the county -
under this section, those monies shall become part of the
 general county treasury. I
: 3. With respect to subparts a) through g) of part 1.
* . hereof, $5,000, and with respect to subparts h) and 1) of part 1.

- hereof; $2,500, shall be retained by and be in the exclusive con- -
_trol-of the county prosecutor for immediate use in his-sole.~
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discretion for the purchase of nareotics by narcotics agents.
Said county prosecutor shall, however, account to the county
treasurer for expenditures from this fund and shall be re-
sponsible for its replenishment from the Special Narcotics
Tuand by application to the County treasurer.

4, The Special Narcotics Fund shall be deblted -
mediately upon receipt of monies by the county prosecutor
and any debit shall remain even though the monies remain in
the possession of the county prosecutor, except that where, in
the discretion of the prosecutor, said monies are no longer
necessary for the original purpose of debit or as evidence in a
case evolving from the original purpose. '

Comment

Part 1. of Section C) sets limits on the size of the Special
Narcotics Fund with relation to the probable need of the counties
on the basis of their eclassification. The classification of counties
is modeled after the classification with respect to the salaries of
prosecutors appearing in N. J. Staf. dnn. 24 :158-10.

Part 2. provides that when the Special Narcotics Fund is at its
maximum, any monies seized and retained in accordance with this
chapter shall become part of the county treasury as they would
have in the normal course of events prior to this legislation.

Part 3. provides that a smaller portion of the fund should
be retained in the execlusive control of the county proseentor who
would be responsible for its maintenance. The intent of this sub-
part is the establishment of an easily accessible reservoir for the
everyday street purchasers which are a vital part of mnareotics
investigations. Itisintended that such a fund wounld be maintained
in the office of the prosecutor or some convenient place so that
an emergent need could be accommodated and investigations not
frustrated for a lack of funds. Correlatively, the access to the
Special Fund itself, since the need for large suras will usually not
be an emergent basis, should probably be more formalized. -

Subpart d. addresses itself to the problem of money which,
although being in the possession of the prosecntor, is nevertheless
unavailable for the purchase of narcotics. Omne such sifuation
would be where these monies are being used as evidence in pending
criminal trials, The proposed solution is to immediately debit the
Special Fund or “‘working fund’’ upon withdrawal by the Connty
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prosecator and not credit it until the monies are again available
for their intended use.

D) Disposition Pending Trials of Money Seized

Pending trial or ultimate disposition of the charge or
charores, indictment or indietments, growing out of any arrest
In connection with which any suech money, currency or cash
was seized or captured, the same shall be accounted for and
deposited with the county {reasurer of the county in which
said arrest occurred, by and under the supervision of the
county.

. Comment

* Thig section is patterned exactly after N.J. Stat. Ann. 2A :152-8.

For cases interpreting that section see State of New Jersey .
Moriarity, 268 F. Supp. 546 (D.N.J. 1967); State v. LaBella,
88 N.J.Super. 330, 212 A.2d 192 (L. Div. 1965).

The intent of the present statute and the intent of the proposed
section is a facility for escrowing monies in guestion until it is
determined that they are in fact the property of the county.
The county treasurer would probably establish a system to earmark
the monies for deposit into the Special Narcoties Fund once such
a determination is-made.

E) Disposition, On Conviction of Money Seized; Order of
Forfeiture

I the trial orother ultimate dispositionof suchchargeor——
charges, indictment or indictments result in a record of
conviction being entered against the person or persons go
arrested as aforesaid, in connection with which arrest the said
money, carrency or cash was seized or captured, as aforesaid,
then the county treasurer may, after 6 months from the date of
the record of the entry of such conviction, make application,
without prior notice, to the county court for an order to show
canse why such money, currency or cash so seized or captured,
shall not be forfeited to the sole use and gain of the county;
such order to show cause shall then be served upon the person
from whom said money, currency or cash was so seized or
captured, in accordance with the rules of practice and pro-
cedure. Upon the return of the said order, a hearing shall be
conducted in summary manner, at such hearing proof of the
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conviction shall be prima facie evidence that the money, .
currency or eash so seized or captured was msed in connection
with the violation or conspiraey to violate the narcotics laws
of this state; provided, however, that proof, to the satisfac-
tion of the court shall first be established that no action or
proceeding, then pendmg and undetermined, has been filed in
any court of competent jurisdietion awamst said county
treasurer seeking & recovery or return of the money, Currency
or cash so held in custody.

Comment

The proposed section is the same as N.J. Staf. Ann. 2A:159-9
and the intent would be the same, that is, to provide a pr ocedure
which will result in a decision on ownership of the monies Whlle
comporting with due process standards.

F) Application for Order of Forfeiture; Notice by Treasurer;
Hearing; Filing Certified Copy of Order, Add1t10nal
Remedy. :

a) Whenever any money, currency or cash seized or
- captured from a person in connection with any arrest - ..
for violation of or conspiracy to violate any nareotics . = =
law of this State shall have been on deposit with the ~
connty treasurer, pursuant to ¥N.J.5. 4. 2A 1528 for a
period of more than 2 years from the date of ultimate
disposition of the charges against, or indictments of,
the person from Whom such funds were sdized or
‘captured, the county treasurer may make application "
to the County Court for an order forfeiti'ng said *
money, currency or cash to the sole use and oam of the -
county. :

Amonntg geized or captured from any number of o
persons may be consolidated in a single application. -
b) The county treasurer shall cause a notice signed |,
by him to be posted in a public pIace in the eounty .
court house and published once in a newspaper cir- -
culating in the county stating that on a date specified =
therein, which shall be at léast 10 days after the date . .
of posting and publication of the notice, application. = '
will be made to the County Court for an order for ..
the forfeiture to the county of funds deposited with
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~ him pursuant to N.J.S.A, ... ... ... ... The notice
" "shall contain a list of the names of the persons from
" whom the amounts get forth in the application were
seized or captured, or if the names of such persons are
unknown, the dates, places and amounts seized or
capiured.
¢) Upon the date set forth in the notice, the county
treasurer may apply to the County Court for an order
for forfeiture and a hearing shall be held in a sum-
.. mary manner, proof being made fo the satisfaction of
the court that no action or proceeding, then pending
and undetermined has been filed in any court of
: competent jurisdiction seeking recovery of any of the
amounts contained in the application.

d) A certified copy of the order of the court made in
compliance with this act shall be kept on file by the
county freasunrer.

e) The remedy provided by this act shall be in addi-
. tion to all other remedies anthorized by law.

Comment

Subparts a) through e) are the same as N.J. Stat. dun.
2A :152-9.1 through 9.5 and provide an additional remedy for the
county treasurer with respect to the funds in question.

G) Acquittal; Disposition of Moneys Seized; Claimants
Application for Return; Apphcatmn for Forfelture

If the trial or other ultimate disposition of such charge
or charges, indictment or indietments, result in an acquittal
or other final termination of such proceedings in favor of the

person or persons so arrested, as aforesaid, in connection
. with which arrest the said money, currency or cash was seized
. _or captured, then the person or persons claiming to own the
said money, eurrency or cash may within 2 years from the
date of such acquittal or other final termination, in addition
to any other remedy now provided by law, make application,
on giving 10 days’ prior notice thereof to the said county
treasurer, to the county court of said county, for an order

. declaring such money, currency or cash to be the property
«of such person or persons, and ordering the same to be re--
. turned by the said eounty treasurer. - At any time after the
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expiration of said period of 2 years from the date of acquittal
or other final determination, the county treasurer may make
application to the county court for an order to show cause
why such money, currency or cash so selzed or captured shall
not be forfeited to the sole use and gain of the county; such
order to show canse shall then be served upon the person or
persons from whom said money, eurrency or cash was so seized
or captured, in accordance with the rules of practice and pro-
cedure. Upon the return of said order, hearing shall be held
in a sommary manner, proof being made to the satisfaction
of the court that no action or proceeding, then pending and
undetermined has been filed in any court of eompetent juris-
diction secking recovery of any of the amounts contained in
the application.

Comment

Part G) is the same as N.J. Stat, Ann. 2A :152-10 which provides
a procedure for disposition of the monies in the possession of the
treasurer in the event that there is an-acquittal on the charge
related to the funds.

Narcotics Strike Force
Agents—Jurisdiction

The Testimony

Witnesses before the Commission who are involved in the
everyday activities of various narcotics strike forces in New
Jersey pinpointed what is a substantial and continuing obstacle
in the path of their attempt to successfully enforce the nareotics
laws : the inability of agents to follow investigations across county
lines. Directors have told of instances where agents were invited
to make purchases in neighboring counties and could not and
where complex surveillance had to be discontinued. These same
witnesses expresed apprehension concermng arrests in nelghbormcr '
counties and at the possibility of injury to agents.

Tbe S.C.1. Recommendation

Specific legislation should be enacted which would allow agents
in the employ of narcoties strike forces to follow investigations
over county linés. The obvious caveat with such an enactment, of
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course, would be that such investigatory extension should not be
undertaken without notice to the county prosecutor in the ““target”’
county, The balance to be struck on this specific point should be
a tresult of a weighing of two valid countervailing interests. On
the one hand, effective law enforcement could be hampered if the
target county does mot have notice, but, on the other hand,
immediate notice, due to-the exigencies of nareotics mvestlgatlons,
is often 1mpractlca.l or even impossible. The S.C.I. suggestion is
that the legislation provide an intelligent notice procedure with
these considerations in mind., Perhaps the best statutory provision
would be one that sets a maximum time that investigations counld
proceed in the absenee of notice while leaving the spec1ﬁc mechanies
of the notice procedures to the counties involved.

The specific suggestions advanced in this portion of the recom-
mendations could be implemented through amendment to N.J, Stat.
Ann, 2A :156-1 (Intrastate Fresh Pursuit), N.J. Stat. Ann. 24:21-1
et ‘seq. or by the enactment of completely new legislation. Tt
behooves the drafters, however, since agents should be covered by
the relevant portions of the Civil Service law and any insurance
provisions, to provide for a lack of conflict with other laws.

- While the Commission believes legislation is in order for this
area, the Commission is of the opinion that the desired end might
be reached by administrative direction. The Attorney (eneral
of the State could empower the Director of the Division of Criminal
Justiee to formulate specific administrative guidelines which could
be transmitted to the county prosecutors who have responsibility
for supervising the narcotics squads in question. This manner of
promulgation, in fact, might be particularly effective, since the
Department of Criminal Justice is the state agency most familiar
with workings of the prosecutor’s offices and could there-
fore apply its expertise to a workable solution of the problem.
-Furthermore, the issue would be simplified from a legislative
standpoint since the only requirement, if any, would be speclﬁc
enabling legislation.

Narcotics Strike Forces—
Free Interchange of Agents

The Testimony

Witnesses before the Commission who are familiar with the
everyday workings of narcotics strike forces detailed the problem
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of availability of agents with particular types of backgrounds.
Such agents are often necessary when investigations, for instance,
necessitate infiltration of a particular racial or ethnic group within
a given community. If such an individual is not in the employ of
the interested agency, the only feasible method of obtaining him
or her is to borrow from other agencies. The strictures of time
do not permit the avenue of recruitment and training of a new
agent.

Severe problems occur, however, when one agency attempts to
borrow from another. One wilness stated that the administrative
difficulties encountered were of such a staggering proportion that
he has found it simpler to have the sending agency terminate the
agent and the receiving agency hire him or her.

The S.C.1. Recommendation

The problem outlined in the aforesaid testimony before the
Commission could be remedied by simple legislation. It is sug-
gested that the agency providing the individual in question receive
one in return from the seeking agency. The new law should contain
provision for continuation of compensation (or perhaps an increase
in compensation as an incentive to agents). The drafters might
also consider a provision which would require consent of the
ageney employing the requested individual.

The statute should also require the consent of the agency
employing the requested individual since he may, at the time
requested, be involved in an investigation in his home jurisdiction
which would be stylmed in his absence.

As with the prior recommendation, the Commission believes
legislation is in order in this area but also is of the opinion that
administrative direetive might accomplish the desired end. The
administrative recommendations suggested herein would reguire
as a prerequisite to success a confidential listing and short resume
of all narcoties undercover agents in the state so that the seeking
agency could locate the desired individual. Such a procedure,
implemented by administrative directive, would appear to have
little, if any, effect on other laws,



OTHER RECOMMENDATIONS _

The Commission also heard testimony on other areas in which
legislation is mandated. These include the following:

1. - Prescription Pads
. The Testimony and Background

A witness from one of the testifying agencies exhibited a
prescription pad which he had printed on the basis of a phone call
when he merely identified himself as a doctor. Such a pad could,
of course, be employed to frandulently receive controlled danger-
ous substances from pharmacists. New Jersey’s Controlled
Dangerons Substances Aet provides a penalty for such a fraudulent
act, N.J. Stat. Ann. 24:21-22(a) (3), but it would seem that it should
be a fairly simple matter to enact legislation which would make
siich an act far more diffieult.

It should be further noted that there are provisions which
attempt to control distribution by specifying that prescriptions
for controlled dangerous substances and certain other drugs may
not be refilled, N.J. Stat. Ann. 45:14-26.1, and that an order for a
drug listed in Scehdule II may only be filled on the basis of a
written preseription, N.J. Staf. dnn, 24:21-15(a).  Both these
statutes, however, are predicated upon the somefimes erroneous
assumption that the written preseription in question is a valid one.

. The Commission is of the view that controls should be placed
upon the printing of preseription pads.

“Recommendation.

The, Commission recommends a statute which would require
physicians, veterinarians, and others authorized to write preserip-
tions to apply in person or through their duly anthorized repre-
sentative with identification to printers when ordering prescription
pads. When such a statute is passed, the legislature should, of
course, provide a notice procedure to create an awareness on the
part of physicians and printers of the new law. The legislation
thight also contain a provision requiring a formal report of stolen
or missing pads. :

143



2. The “Beat Bag” Sale

 The Testimony and Background

Law enforcement witnesses defined the ‘‘beat bag’’ sale as
the sale of a purported narcotic by an individnal to another or to
a narcotics agent. In fact, the substance usmally turns out to be
milk sugar, guinine or some other substance which closely resem-
bles the narcotic involved. Although an individual who commits
such an act could be charged with various acts of eriminal frand,
there is, at present, no specific statute making such an act a crime
or disorderly person’s offense.

Recommendation

The Commission recommends the following addltmn to N J
Stat. Ann. 2A.:170-1, et seq.:

Any person who sells, offers for sale, dlsPenses

© or distributes any substa,nce portra,ymg 1t to be any

controlled dangerous substance listed in N.J. Statf.
Anmn, 24:21-5 through -8.1 is a disorderly person,

3. Full-Time Prosecutors

The Téstz'mony and Background

In 1970, the Commisgion recommended. full-time prosecutors
for the counties of New Jersey, a recommendation which was an
impetus to the establishment of full-fime prosecutors in the ‘more
populons connties. Testimony adduced at the narcoties hearings
illustrates that full-time prosecutors are a necessity in any county .
regardless of size and even where a part-time staff is able to try
a sufficient number of cases to avert backlogs. Full-time prosecu-
tors are necessary because of the increasing importance of prosecu—
tors’ offices as viable arms of law enforcement.

" Witnesses told of instances where counsel. was needed on an
emergency basis- and was not available. One witness stated that
he and the undercover agents in his employ often drafted search
warrants. It seems that the only answer to such situations is.the
availability of ‘“in house’’ counsel at all times.
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Recommendation

The Commission recommends the employment of full-time
assistant prosecutors and staffs for all counties in the state. The
Commission notes that the county prosecutor under the present
criminal justice framework is the chief law enforeement officer of
his county and, as such, not only must seek indictments but also
is responsible for investigation of complex matters. The Commis-
gion urges that the establishment of full time prosecutors in all
counties be accompanied by adequate staffing and funding of all
prosecutors offices to meet the complexities and challenges of
modern law enforcement. The Commission further recommends
that county prosecutors offices, which have not yet done so,
organize specialty units in the areas of fraud, homicide, organized
crime, narcotics, pre-grand jury probes, and a complaint bureaw.
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INVESTIGATION OF DONATED FEDERAL SURPLUS
PROPERTY DISTRIBUTION BY THE STATE AND THE
- PURCHASING AND ADMINISTRATIVE PRACTICES .
OF THE PASSAIC COUNTY VOCATIONAL
AND TECHNICAL HIGH SCHOOL

BACKGROUND OF THE INVESTIGATION

In a prior section of this Annual Report, note was taken that
a key to the Commission’s accomplishments hag been the policy of
maintaining communication and liaison with law enforcement
agencies at all levels of government. That policy once more bore
fruit in January, 1973 when citizen complaints connected with the
Passaic County Vocational and Technical High School in Wayne
were directed to this Commission by a federal law enforcement
agency which had originally been approached.

The complainants were concerned about excessively large
amounts of federally donated surplus property on the grounds of
the school, The Commission’s initial inguiries, prompted by the
complaints, in Passaic County resulted in the 8.C.I.’s receiving
additional citizens’ complaints relative to alleged abuses in the
administration and purchasing practices of the school. After fur-
ther inguiry, the Commission decided to make a full investigation
of both sets of complaints.

The investigation developed facts indicating that the school had
become a virtual dumping ground for valuable surplus properties
and that the state’s program for distribution of those properties
to schools and other institutions had been sorely lacking. As to the
school’s administration and purchasing practices, then Chairman
John F. McCarthy Jr. in his opening statement at the commence-
ment of public hearings on this investigation September 12, 1973
in the Passaic County Court House, summarized the faects as
follows:

The investigation, of necessity, had to be prolonged
and detailed in order to examine a web of questionable
procedures relative to the school which were bene-
fiting private individuals at the expense of the public
pocketbook. The picture that will emerge at these
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hearings is of purchasing operations proceeding with
virtnally  no effective controls and mno realistic
aceountability to anyone, and of a system providing
for only perfunctory approval of decisions and actions
and evidencing insufficient checks and balances.

The result of this situation was an absence of any
real attempt to get competitive prices for many
goods and services and indiseriminate reliance on
purchasing through middiemen. If these practices
had been detected and stopped by adequate controls,
it is apparent that the unnecessary expenditure of
many thousands of dollars in tax monies could have
been avoided.

The principal areas to be covered by these hearings
relative to the school are: Bidding procedures, the
use of middlemen, questionable financial transactions
in the purchasing process, and conversion to personal
use of some of the school’s materials and employee :
servieces, -

. The public hearings are reviewed in detail on the subsequent
pages of this Annual Report, followed by the Commission’s final
recommendations for improving surplus property distribution and
tightening school purchasing practices. :

THE STATE AGENCY FOR SURPLUS PROPERTY (S.A.S.P))

The above named agency, existing within the Division of Pur-
chase and Property, which in turn is under the Treasury Depart-
ment, had sole respon31b111tv for obtaining and distributing donated
federal surplis property in New Jersey.

. “Emii C. Friedlander, the regional representative of the Federal
Office of Surplus Property, defined at the public hearings these
materials as property which has been sereened by federal agencies
for their possible use and then donated to the states on an “‘as is,
where 1s basis?’ for distribution to eligible institutions. Such
donees include most tax supported or non-profit institutions snch
as schools, hospitals, educational radio and television stations and
civil defense organizations. Mr. Friedlander outlined the normal
procedure for such distribution: e

- Tederal surplus personal propelty is aﬂoeated on o
~ an equitable basis to state agencies for surplus prop- =~
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erty by regional representatives of the Department of
Health, Education and Welfare located in regmnal
offices of the Department.

Donable personal property is usually picked up by,
or shipped to, the state agency for surplus property
and taken into their warehoumses. There it is in-
ventoried and becomes available for inspection and
distribution to eligible applicants within the state.
Occasionally, state agencies may arrange to have the
property picked up at the federal agency’s installa-
tion by the donee, or may arrange to have the prop-
erty shipped direct to the donees.

These agencies, created by state law or executive
order of the governor, then distribute the donable
personal property to eligible institutions and organi-
zations within the states.

The then Director of this state agency, Walter Macak, had sole
responsibility for its operation. An audit conducted by this Com-
mission’s accountants discovered that under Mr. Macak’s direction
the distribution of the surplus property, at least on the level of
schools as eligible recipients, was arbitrarily and chaotically
administered in favor of one institution, Passaic County Vocational
and Technical High School. It is equally clear that that school
could not and did not nfilize even a small portion of what it a.ctually
received.

PoorR MANAGEMENT LEADS TO INEQUITABLE DISTRIBUTION
AND QUESTIONABLE STOCKPILING :

© Immediately upon receipt in January of 1973 of the complaint,
the Commission’s accountants conducted a search of the state
agency’s files to determine what property had been allotted to the
Passaic County Technical and Vocational High School. A totally
inadequate filing system together with missing files prevented an
aecurate appraisal. However, it may be said at a minimum, that in
fiseal year 1972 this school received over three million dollars
worth of donated federal property out of twelve million actually
received by the agency. In addition, this school’s share was more
than one half of all such property distributed fo eduecational
institutions throunghout the state. Agents of the Commission
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presented themselves to the school administrator and requested
permission to inspect this property as it was then being used.

The agents found that very little of the property then in posses-
sion of the school was being used. Most was observed lying on
open ground in a large field area known as the ‘‘Nike base.”” A
large portion of that property which state records indicated had
been picked up by school custodians at various federal depots
could not be acconunted for. In an effort to trace the missing articles,
a series of interviews with school custodians was arranged Their
comments to Commission agents prompted the taking of their
testimony, at executive session, in March of 1973..

These men testified that in 1970 and 1971 they transported large
amounts of surplus property, originally receipted for at that school,
to the personal residence and barn of Walter Macak, Director of the
Surplus Property Agency of the State, in Stockton. They did this
on the orders of Alex Smollok, County School Board Secretary and
Business. Manager of the school. After this investigation was
commenced in January of 1973, and during its pendeuncy, Mr.
Maecak, with the assistance of Mr. Smollok and these same custo-
dians, returned most, if not all of this merchandise to the State
depot at Raritan, New Jersey.

At public hearings the custodians reiterated their testimony.
One custodian, Mr. Michael Mausley, kept a calendar of these trips
and testified that this was a cause for great concern on the part
of Mr. Smollok.

Q. Did you make a record of all of the times thot
you were requested by Mr. Smollok to pick up Federal
surplus property?

A. Most of it I did, yeah.

Q. I'm going to show you, Mr. Mausley, a calendar

that we will mark as Public Hearing Exhibit No. 1.
Can you identify that calendar for us?

A, Yeg, T can.

Q. Whose calendar is that?
A. That’s my calendar.

Q. Is it your method to keep a calendar of your
daaly events in your daily

A. Yes, I always kept one. I still do. I still keep
it-on what work I do right at the present time.
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Q. Did you previously supply me fw@th that '
calendar?

Al Tdid _
Q. There is a story behind that calendar, isn t’, -

: . there?

A, There ig.

Q. Would you relate that to the comwwssm%ers,
please? -

A. Are you referring to the one that I brought Jnto
the school?

Q. Yes.

A. Yeah. Mr. Smollok wanted to know if T had a‘ -

diary or something, a calendar or something, that T
kept all my stuff down and he was very much con-
cerned about it. He was very worried-about—if I
"wouldn’t have got that, T wouldn’t have got my job’
at the Passaic County School. I did not get a con-
. tract, Andy Welsz got me aside and said, “Geez,
~ take that calendar into Smollok or you're ount of a
jOb 7
Q. Stop there.
. Mr. Smollok learned you were keeping a calefndaru_'
of the different jobs that you did?

- A, Yes.

- Q. When did he learn of this?

A. Tdon’tknow. He learned that right before the
new contracts are given out to the school. -

Q. What year was this?
+ A, Well, this was the last year before—before
the——— ’ .

CommisstoNer BERTINTI: Are you talking about
197317

THE Wrrness: Before July;

COMMISSIONER BERTINI Or 72%
THE WITNESS ’7 2.7

150



Q: And when Mr. Smollok learned of it, were you
contacted by Mr. Weisz and toid to bnng your calen-
dar to him?

A. T was,

- Q. Did Mr. Weisz indicate to you that if you didn’t
‘do as you were asked, that you would lose your gob9 R
~ A. That’s 11ght

Q And did you do as you were asked?
'A. 1 brought the one calendar in which I had some_

stuff on and he said he didn’t want to see it. So he

had wanted me to tear it up and put it right there
in the wastepaper basket, and that’s what I did, and
that’s how I held my JOb or else I would be out of a
JOb : _
Q But I take it you didwn’t show him that calefndar”
A. He didn’t see this one. S

Tue OrAIRMAN: Arve you indicating there is a
second record or calendar you kept and you -
- didn’t destroy that? .

Tae Wirwess: Yeah,

ComMnmissioNER BeErTINI: Was that second one
for the year 1972%

Tee Witenss: ‘72
COMMIS‘%IONFR Bermiwi: This 181971, right?
TaE WITNESS. Yeah.

CoMmMmIssioNER BErTINT: So that he wasn’t
aware of a 1971 calendar. ' T

TaE WITNESS No.

COMMISSIONER, BERTINI But he was aware of
the 1972 and he made you destroy it?

“Trae Wirness: That’s right.

- ComuissroNer  Berrini: Then you reeewed .
your: contract right affer you destroyed it?

- Tur Wirxness: 1 never got the contrae_t yét,
. In faect, he’s holding the contraect back for this- -
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year. I didn’t get it yet, which I was supposed to
get July 1st. I didn’t get it. I don’t know what
the reason is, but T didn’t get no contract last -
year or this year.

Mr. Mausley detailed in his testimony six transactions within
a 10-month period (Sept. of 1970 to June 1971) wherein he was
ordered to transport federal surplus property to either the home
or barn of Walter J, Macak, by the School Board Secretary and
Business Manaﬂ-er Alex Smollok

1) In September October of 1970 he was ordered
to deliver a tractor trailer load of almminum
stanchions from the Nike base to the home of Walter
Macak. On this first occasion he followed an auto
driven by Alex Smollok, Ansgell Payne, Assistant
Business Administrator, and Joseph Hausemen,
School Administrator. '

2) On--April 17, 1971 he was ordered to deliver a
tractor trailer load of styrofoam, acquired the day
before from the Picatinny Arsenal, to a barn on a
farm owned by Mr. Maeak in Stockton, When he
arrived Mr. Macak instructed him to place the prop-
erty inside the barn and then purchase hay for the
school from a nearby farm. Mr. Smollok had pre-
viously explained that Mr. Macak would dnect him on
this purchase of hay.

3) On April 23, 1971 he was ordered to deliver
another tractor trailer load of styrofoam, acquired
the day, before from the Picatinny Arsenal to
Mr. Macak’s barn,

4} On June 5,1971 he was ordered to deliver a Jeep
from the school grounds to Mr. Macak’s barn.

5) On June 11 1971 he was ordered to drive
Mr. Macak to a federal depot at Guy Mills, Pa. and
pick up a tractor which wag then fo be delivered to
Mr. Macak’s barn. The length of the drive required
that both men stay in a motel overnight at the school’s
expense. When their tow vehicle broke down on the
way back they abandoned the tractor and hitchhiked
back:to the school: Sometime later Mr. Mausley
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delivered it to Mr. Macak’s barn. Several of the
teachers learned of this and caused such a elamor that
on November 6, 1971 Mr. Smollok ordered him- to
retrieve the tractor which he did. This incident
formed the basis of an anonymous letter directed fo
the Attorney General, the Governor and the Commis-
sioner of Kducation which was passed along to
Mr. Macak himself fo investigate. The results of his
investigation appear in another section of this report,

6) On June 26, 1971 Mr. Mausley was ordered to
deliver an inflatable building, acquired the day
before from Lakehurst Naval Depot, to Mr. Macak’s
home.

According to Mr. Mausley all of these deliveries which entailed
at least 180 miles round trip, were made on a Saturday, at time
and one half salary, by himself and another custodian. On each
occasion hay was purchased at the Fischer Farm. According to
Mr. Macak, Mr. Fischer was related to him by marriage.

The testimony of three other eustodians was taken at the public
hearings. Each corroborated Mr. Mausley’s account and, in some
instances, added to it, -

FAILURE OF THE STATE TO AUDIT THIs AGENCY

The State Agency for Surplus Property was part of the State
Education Department until 1972 when it was transferred to the
State Division of Purchase and Property. At the public hearing,
 the Commissgion inquired of Herman Crystal, Deputy Director of
that Division, as to the extent of any confrols the Division might
have exercised over this agency to determme whether it was func-
tlomng properly

EXAMINATION BY COMMISSIONER BERTINI:

Q Has any review been made of the method used
for handling surplus property in this state?.
- A, I don’t understand your question:
Q. By any auditing agencies.
A. Did we audit?
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Q - Did-any agency for the State of New Jersey
review. the manner in 'wh@ch surplus p*ropecrty Was
hcmdled?

DAL T'me trymg to- ﬁgure out "just what you re

_ drlvmg at. 'We looked at: the picture and we did ask
the:Federal Government to make an aud1t a ut1hza—
1:1011 audit, which- they never d1d '

""“So that nobod,yw—
‘ NO, sir.

> @ m

';'from an age%cy ha,s to yow Fmowledge?
... No, sir. - '

Q. Andl presume then you're not feally fa,mzl@aw
with what was going on in the surplus department?

by Ay Well T knew IS Lnew what was ha,ppemng,'
- -5yeS, sir.

Q Well who would be- responszble fosr keepmg cm' ,
’ 'mvemory of all the surplus property that was as- .
signed to the State of New Jersey?

AL Mr. Macak would havé been responsible, yes, sir. :

" Q. Now, did anyone check to see whether an ade-
quate invenlory or control was being kept?
A. T did, and there was none and I ordered—as
soon as I found out that there was no adequate in- =
. ventory and we had the property in the Raritan
- Arsenal, T ordered that all work be stopped on sereen- |
“ing’ and that all hands be turned over to making the
V'"'f'mventory, yos, sir. " o

 This Tak of an eﬂiclent System of ehecks and balances led to an
abuse 'of administrative power resulting in the stockpiling of sur-
plus material at an abandoned Nike base owned by thé vocational
high school. Mr Crystal testLﬁed further

Q. M'r Crystal, there’s been testzmony before Jou
that- literally thousands and thousaids of dollars of
equipment; miscellaneous lots, was stored wp at the
Nike Base and you said that you became aware of this
when the mvest?,gatwn started?

A. T first became aware of it when I was ShOWn
clipping in the newspapers, yes. - :
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Q. And I think I just took o quote from what you
satd. - You then learned how it was being done, @mguote
How was it being done? How was all of this equep-
inent being sent from the central depot wp to the N iké
Base or to the Passaic County Vocational School?

A. Mr. Macak arranged with the secretary- d1reot0r
I gness his title is, of the Passaic County Vocatlonal
School to pick up the items and have them brought
to the school or the Nike Base directly froxi Whele
thev were available,

Q Well what kind of checl»s or balcmces were
placed wpon these persons so that there would be, you
know, an equitable distribution of surplus. properiy?
A, There were none. We left it up to Mr. Macak.

. So, as far as your dcpartme%tal level fwas coti-
cerned, there were 70 gmdelmes? .
A No, sir. ‘

. And you were solely relywng upon the ab@lzty

and knowledge of the perso'm that had the Spe@%ﬁc"‘ o

function?
A, Yes, sir.

Q. And that would be Mr M acak?
A. Yes, gir, :

. Now, had it come to yow" kfnowleclge that there ..
was thas disproportionate amount of equipment. gomg o
up to the Passaic County Vocational School, whatl .
would you have done? '

A. V‘/Th:afc"-Z I would have put a stop to it.

Q So, in your judgment as the head of the depar t—.‘_‘
ment, what was happening was not correct? o

A. Tt was not correct, yes, sir. In other’ words o

there was no reason to take the items from one ware-

“house and pat it into another warehouse just to make .

it available to somebody else.
% % * *® o

Q. And you are now aware that utd@zatzoﬂ was not |

L the primary concept in transferring sufrplus PTO’perty?': -

‘A. "We suspect it, that’s right, yes, sir.
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. When did you first suspect that?

A. When we became aware of what was happening,
the disproportionate amount that was going to the
Nike Base. This was around February or March when
we learned of investigation.

Q. Would you call this stockpzlmg?

A, Yes, sir,
Q. And that’s contrary to your rules and regula-
tions?

A. Tt’s contrary to our rules and fo the federal
rules and regulations, yes, sir, :

Q. So, in essence, I think, the only thing we con
deduce is that there was an operation being run that
did not have the proper controls upon it. Would you
agree? _

A. I agree, and when we learned what was going
on, we began to place those controls on it, yes, sir.

WALTER MACAK TESTIFIES

Walter Macak, former director of the State Acrency for Surplus
Property, test1ﬁed that he personally used only a small portion of
damaged styrofoam padding which was part of the Surplus Prop-
erty “stored’’ by him at his home. He testified that because the
State lacked a warchousing and distribution facility he was forced
to ask the Passaic County Voecational School to pick up items and
then store them on his own premises, a procedure which Mr.
Friedlander and Mr. Cataldo of the Federal HE.W. said was in
violation of federal regulations concerning stockpiling.

Mr. Macak was questioned regarding his investigation of an
anonymous complaint mailed to Attorney General Kugler, Gov-
ernor Cahill, and then Commissioner Carl Marburger. This com-
plaint alleged that various pieces of Federal Surplus Property
ineluding & tractor were delivered to the voeational school and
then to Walter J. Macak, personally. Mr. Macak was assigned to
investigate this and submitted a report in November of 1971 to
his superior, a Mr. Rosser, which explained that he was storing a
tractor at the request of the school to assist them in a proposed
haybailing operation.

This report already has noted from the testimony of the school
custodians that in early 1971 the school ceased its practice of pur-
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chasing hay from a local dealer and began traveling appromma,tely
90 miles to the Fischer Farm which abuts Mr. Macak’s property in
Stockton. Mr. Macak was questioned about his relationship to Mr.
Fischer, and he answered:

Q. Are you related to Mr. Fischer?
A. I am,

Q. Do you know how Mr, Fischer came to sell hay
to a school minety miles away?
That’s right.

How?
I snggested it.

>

You suggested it?
Right.

Whom did you suggest it fo?
I suggested it to my brother-in-law, Henry
I‘lscher

b0 PR PO

Q. Well, I'm asking you if you know how he came
to sell the hay to the Passaic Oovmty Vocational and =
Technical High School. '
A. That’s right.

Q. Through your suggestion?
A. And there was no hanky-panky with thig, sir.

Q. Did you— : '

A. Tamnot even involved with this. If you can get
hay for a school in Pasaic County at sixty or fifty:
cents a bale, and you yourself heard the testimony of
Mike Mausley here who said he got twelve to fifteen
bales of hay for $45, that is $3 a bale,

Q. W
A. Thatis testimony given right here. Yon heard it.

Q. I want to mow why Pasaic County Vocationgl-
Techmical High School goes winety miles down to your
brother-in-law’s, whoever he is, and buys their hay.

A, I don’t know, sir. It might be becaunse they get
1t that cheaply.

Q. It’s cheaper?
- A. Have you ever thought of that?
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- Q. Isthat your answer?
Ter CHAIRMAN All right.
" A. Inexpensive. I shouldn’t say, “cheap »

Mr. Macak was also asked whether he reported lis storing of
other materials to Mr. Rosser. He answered.that he did not
recollect storing other items at the time he made his report (Novem-
ber, 1971} although the school custodians testified that they deliv-
ered trailer truck loads of aluminum stanchlons and styrofoam to
his barn in April of 1971.

Mr. Macak was questioned concerning the delivery of a Jeep
to his home by school custodian Michael Mausley on June 5, 1971,
He admitted registering the Jeep in his own name by submitting
an affidavit to the State Motor Vehicle Department saying that the
original registration was lost, In fact, the Jeep was federal
surplus property that had been assigned to the Woodbridge public
school, then transferred to the Passai¢ County public school and
finally transported to Mr. Macak. He also admitted spending $50
of his own to repair the Jeep althongh he denied any intention to
convert the vehicle to his own use. After being questioned by
Commission agents, during the course of their investigation,
Mr. Macak tra:nsferi ed the Jeep to the Essex County Vocational
and Technical program.

UNCONSCIONABLE PROFITS PAID TO MIDDLEMEN

Withi the phase of the investigation dealing with- abuses in
distribution of surplus property covered, the public hearings
turned to the even more extensive phase relating to the adminis-
tration and purchasing practices of the Passaic County Vocational
and Technical High School, whose Business Manager and Pur-
chasing Agent was the previously mentioned Alex Smollok,

As the subsequent presentation of facts will show in the review
of this phase of the probe, Mr. Smollok’s abusive purchasing
practices had the unfortunate and emelly logical result of the
school suffering severe financial penalty in the form of grossly
inflated prices which were paid for materials received and work
performed by outside contractors.

Most of the contractors who supplied the school on its non-bid
purchases were apparently chosen for their willingness to pay a
‘t commission’’ rather than the competitiveness of their prices and
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the quality of their workmanship. Characteristic of many of
these purchases was that they were made through a “‘middleman’’
who did little more than liff the telephone to make his substantial
profit which was, 1n effect, a generous helping of the taxpayers’
pie. A major such middleman was Joseph Carrara of the Caljo
Contracting Co., and there were others.

Records of the school and the testimony of various wiinesses
established the following examples of non-bid, middleman trans-
actions in 1969 and 1970, as summarized below:

1) On June 23, 1969 the school contracted to pur-
chase a snowplow for attachment to a Jeep with the
Caljo Contracting Co. at a cost of $852. Mr, Carrara
1n turn ordered this item from the Dianem Co. located
in nearby Lodi, New Jersey, who delivered directly to
the school and charged Caljo $539. -

2) Again, on August 3, 1970 the school contfracted
to purchase a truck fail gate with the Caljo Con-
tracting Co. at a cost of $1,425. Mr. Carrara merely
communicated this order fo Dianem Co., who de-
livered the tail gate to the school and charged Caljo
$309.

3} Mr. Marchese, the sales representative of the
Dianem Co., testified that his firm does business
with many municipalities throughout the state and
would have been happy to offer these items to the

. school at roughly the same price that was charged
Caljo. Unfortunately, the school never solicited
- their business.

4} On August 5, 1970 the school eontracted with
Caljo Contracting Co. to rebuild a Dodge truck motor

. for a cost of $910. The vehicle was taken direetly to
‘the K. & K. Automotive Shop in Clifton, New Jersey,

- by school personnel and picked up by them when com-
pleted. K. & K. charged Caljo $609. In a completely
similar transaction on September 1, 1970 the school
paid Caljo Contracting Co. $1,682 to rebuild another
truck engine and K. & K. charged Caljo $1,123. '

5) Again, on September 18, 1970 the school con-
tracted to rebuild a Iercules truck engine at a cost
to the school of $1,395. K. & K. charged Caljo $979.
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6) On Oct. 22, 1970 the school contracted with Caljo
Contracting Co. to replace a transmission at a cost of
$760. K. & K. charged Caljo $524.

7) During this period of time the school through :
its busmess manager was also dealing directly with'
K. & K. Automotive Co. In one such transaction,
on July 6, 1970, K. & K. was the sole bidder on Con-
tract #38-H-A-TOB which called for the supplying
of 10 automobile engines at a cost of $11,500. K. & K.
in turn purchased them directly from Warner Ford
located in nearby Garfield, New Jersey, at a cost of
$6,510. Mr, Sistaro, the Secretary-Treasurer of
Warner Ford, Inc., testified that his company would
have sold these gsame engines to the school for the
same price it charged K. & K.

8) On June 22, 1971 the school contracted with
Caljo for the purchase of paint and a paint sprayer
at a cost of $1,625. Caljo in tarn purchased these
items from Frank Rhodes Assoc Roselle Park, New
Jersey, for $1,002,

9) On September 27, 1971 the school confracted
with Caljo for the purchasa of cassettes at a cost of
$800. Caljo purchased them for $500 from Magnetic
Communications, Inec., loeated in nearby Denville,
New Jersey.

This pattern of purchases without bid throungh middlemen at
inflated prices continued into 1972 at an untold cost to the school.
It would seem to be incumbent upon any ordinary, prudént man
acting in the capacity of purchasing agent for a public school
to seek out the best possible price and, where possible, directly
solicit the manufacturer of the product to make an offer. Mr. Alex
Smollok consistently failed to do this and actually ignored kmown
suppliers in preference for a middleman who added nothing of
value. This course of conduct was not restricted to non-bid pur-
chases alone. In many instances, where purchases were made
pursunant to bidding, the same individuals and only those submitted
bids and were snccessful. Records of the school and testimony of
various witnesses established, for example:

1} On June 23, 1969 Caljo was the only bidder on a
speeified Scott Air Conditioner at a cost to the school
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of $3,470. Caljo ordered the item directly from Scott
Air Conditioning Co. at a cost of $2,575.

2) On June 8, 1970 Caljo was the only bidder on
specified Kentmore Engine stands at a cost to the
school of $7,923.30. Caljo purchased them from
K. & K. Automotive for $6,1560. K. & K. Automotive
simply ordered them from the Kent-More Corp. at a
cost of $1,715. This represents a profit of approxi-
mately 400% to middlemen who did little more than
fill out a bid form.

“COMMISSIONS” ARE THE KEY TO THE BUSINESS

The investigation of the Passaic County Vocational and Tech—
nical High School purchasing practices covered in detail several
instances of ““commissions’’ being paid to middlemen, said
“pommissions’’ obviously being the key to Mr. Smollok’s awarding
of school business to the commission-paying firms.

The Jersey Janitor Supply Co. was one example of how ¢‘com-
missions’’ led to immediate business with the school and how that
business abruptly terminated when that firm ceased paying ‘‘com-
missions’’. Three individuals who were connected with that firm
testified at the public hearings—Rodman Follender, Salesman;
Tsaac Weingtein, President, and Abraham Weinstein, Vice Presi-
dent and Treasurer.

Mr. Follender testified that he was employed by Jersey Janitor
as a salesman during 1970 and 1971. In 1970 a business service
supplied him with a lead to Caljo Contractors Supply Co. as a
possible purchaser of certain machinery sold by Jersey Janitor.
Mr, Follender went to the business office of Caljo and Spoke with
Joseph Carrara who explained that a wvocational school in his
area needed a particular scrubbing machine for which Jersey
Janitor was the authorized distributor. Mr. Carrara explained
that he had a ‘‘contact’’ within the school, but that he (Carrara)
wanted ‘‘a commission’’ on the sale. Mr. Carrara demaunded 20%
in cash bt when Mr. Follender refused this he settled for 5% by
check. After this agreement was made Mr. Carrara arranged for
Mr. Follender to demonstrate this machine and other products at
the school. This initial sale was consummated and others followed.

Mr. Follender was questioned regarding why he entered into
this commission agreement with Mr. Carrara: :
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Q. When you originally came to the ugreement with
Carrara about the commission, it was becausée he had
an e af the school, right? -

| A. Definitely.

Q. Andwho do you think the in was at the school?
A. Mr. Smollok, I presmne He was the boss.

Mr. Follender identified seven checks, marked as exhlbﬂ:s, total-
ing $4,479.4% which represented ‘‘commissions’” paid by -Jersey
Janitor to Mr. Carrara as a result of Jersey Janitor’s selling
products directly to the vocational school. Most of the checks
were made payable to third parties, particularly Clifton Auto Parts
and Cardell Body Shop. Mr. Follender testified further as to the
“commlssmns ’? and the third-party arrangement:

- Commissioner Faruey: Did you ever tell the 7
Weinstein brothers, or either one of them, to

make checks out to persons other than Carrara

but knowing that the check would be delivered to
Carrara?

Tar Wityess: 1 might have, yes. I mean—you
mean to Clifton Auto Parts and so forth?

CosrmissioNEs Farrmy: Yes.
Tae WirNess: I might have, yes.
Tur Casrman: Why do you say ‘‘might’’?
. Tae Wirness: Becanse I don’t recall exactly.

Tae CEAtEBMAN: We know that. We don’t ex-
peect that witnesses stand and know exactly the
date of the check and the exact amount. Now,
we want a clear and an honest answer.

Tar WitTxess: The checks

- Tur Camammax: Don’t interrupt. Commis-
sioner Bertini asked you to tell, the best you can,
what the arrangement was, what Mr. Carrara
wanted you to do. Now,let’s generalize as to how
these checks would be made out. Mr. Carrara
must have given you some direction. '

Tar Wirsess: Well, \/Ir Carrara and I, when
it came to the commission base, would argue
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constantly and Mr. Carrara would always want
it in cash. If you want direction, sure, but in
cash that we would never:pay. Now, we cared
not how we paid it other than that. We’d pay
it to anybody he wanted us to.

Tre CHARMAN: Was _lﬁs direction, “If T can’t
get cash, then I want the check made out to
someone other than mvse]f”? :

- Tae Wrrness: After quite a long t1me, ves,
it might have been, yes.

- CommissioNER FARLEY: Well, did you ever
discuss it with the Weinstein brothers?

Trr Wirness: I might have, yes. I keep
answering the same way.

CommissioNER FaRLEY: What did you discuss?
‘What’s your recollection of the discussion?

Tae Writnpss: That the commission due Mr.
" Qarrara was to be paid. There was no question
“in onr mind how much we owed Mr. Carrara.

We paid it. :

- Commrssionsr Farvey: All right.

TrE Wrrness: If we paid it to him or to some-
one that he designated, the commission was paid.

Commissionsr Fariey: All right. And who
“was designated? S

Tar Wirness: Who was designate'd? You have
to '

-~ Commissioner IPariey: Who was designated
other than he to be paid the commission that
was agreed upon?

. Tee Wrrnmss: There are other names. 1
“don’t recall the names; I don’t recall the names.

. Commissioner FarieEy: There were other
names?

Tars Wrirwess: Yes.
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CovMissioner FariEy: So you’re saying, now,
under oath that you were directed to have checks
drawn that belonged to Carrara but to be placed
in other names; is that correct?

- Tre Wirness: That’s correct, yes.

ComMmissioner BerTINT: Then have we estab-
lished that check marked PH-14, payable to
Clifton Aunto Parts, really was not a check to
Clifton Auto Parts for commissions but was a
check to Carrara for commissions made payable
to Clifton Auto Parts?

TaE WrrNess: Yes, sir.

CommrisstoNeEr Berrini: And that goes for all
the others; is that right?

TaE Wrirtress: I presume so,

Mr. Follender {estified that in May of 1971 Jersey Janitor
stopped paying Mr. Carrara a commission and sunulta:aeously
the school stopped ordering their products:

Q. All right. At sometime Jersey Janitor .stopped
doing business with Caljo Contractors,

A. Yes, gir.

Q. —didn’t they? :
It was around May, 1971. Does that square with
your recollection?

A. Yeah.

# # * * %

Q. Did you have any discussion with Carrara about
the cessation of business?
A. Not really, no.

Q. The orders just stopped from Passaic County?
A. Yes.

Q. And Carrara’s commissions obuviously stopped
at the same time, then; is that right?
A. Definitely.



Q. Why did that stop the business?
A. T can’t answer that.

Q. Did Mr. Weinstein get RETVOUS about that situa-
tion, so to speak?
. A. Tecan’t answer his feelings, either. All T know is
he told me unless it’s paid fo Joe Carrara we do no
more business, and that’s the way it was.

Q. Who told you that? Mr.Carrara told you ufnless
the checks were made out to Mr. Carrara there would

be no more business?
- A. No, Mr. Weinstein told me that.

Q. Mr. Weinstein said unless the checks were made
" out to Mr. Carrara there would be no more business?

A. That’s correct. No, we will not give any more
commission.

Q. Unless the checks were paid directly to Mr.

¢ armm?
A. Right.

# # % * % -

Q. Mr. Follender, I would just like to summarize
briefly. You agree that you did business with Caljo,
‘and as a result of that business, which related to the
Passaic Volley School, that he was entitled to certain
commissions; is that correct?
AL Yes, sir.

Q. And that wnder normal circumstances the ckeck
for the commissions would always be payable to the
person that was entztled to them?

. A, Yes, sir.

© Q. And that you believe that certoin commission
checks may mot have been directed to Mr. Carrara
but to other entities?
A, Yes, sir. '

Q. And that these other entities were Cl’!fff()% Auto
Parts and Cardell; is that correct?
A. Yes, sir.

© Q. And, in effect, that these checks that went to
Clifton Auto, Cardell, you believe, may very well have
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represented commissions that were due to Carrara for
the work and purchases made by Passaic Valley? -

A, Yes, sir.

Q. So,in effect, what we’re saying here is that com’
missions that would normally go to C’armm were
diverted to other entities?

A. Yes, sir,

Q. And that was the reason that Jersey Jawilor
Supply ended its dealings with the Passaic Valley
School, because checks were going out to other than
the person named as the salesman?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that Mr, Weinstein would not cowti%ue‘.fo
make out checks except to Joseph Carrara?

A, Correct.

Q. And that when he would not do this, you stopped
doimg business with the Passaic Valley School?

A. Correct.

Isaac Weinstein, President of Jersey J amtor corroborated Mr,
Follender’s testlmony that ‘‘commissions’’ to Mr Oarrara. were
the key to getting the Vocatlonal school’s business:

. Now, when Follender explained to you h@s
financial agreement with Carrara after returning
from the first meeting, I think it was, with Carrara,
s that right?

A. Yes.

Q. He knew what the financial arrangement was to
be with Carrara after he met with him the first time?

A, Yes.

Q. How did he explain it fo you? Give it to me,
your own words. Well, give it to wme wn his words s
he explained it to you.

A. AsTsaild, Follender told me that Carrara could
get us all the busmess for the vocational school plus
all of the business in Passaic County, but he Wanted
to be paid a commission.
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Mr. Weinstein testified about a conversation he had with Mr.
Joseph Carrara in September of 1971, after they had ceased doing
business Wlth each other:

Q. Now, after Mr. Follender left your employ, did
you ever meet with Mr. Carrara?
A. Yes, I did.

. Did you have a conversation with him when you
met with him@ _

A. Yes. If was Caljo Contracting Company owed
us for merchandise that we sold them, and it was
about four months in arrears,

* * *# # #

@ And did you have a conver. sation with him?

A, Yes.
Q. And what was the substance of that conversa-
fion?

A, Well, T asked him about a check and he said
that he would mail in a check in a few days, which we
did receive later.

Q. And did you talk about your dealings with him
and with Passaic County Techwical and Vocational
School?

A, Yes. He wanted to know why we stopped doing
business.

Q. And what did you say?
- A, T gaid we didn’t want to do any more business
under those conditions.

Q. Now, “under those conditions.”” I assume that
you refer to the indirect payment to Joseph Carrara
evidenced by Fahibits PH-18 through 20. Is that
what you mean?

A. That’s for the other names?

Q. That’s right.
A. That’s right.

Q. In other words, you did not want to pay monies
to individuals other than Mr. Carrara for Mr, Car-
rara’s commission? : :

A. Right, right.
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Q. And what did Mr. Carrara say to you when you
© . saed that to him?
A, He said I was a fool or something to that etfect.

Q. You were o fool fm” not wanting to deal 1with
h@mg

A, Yeah.

" Q. And the reason that you were a fool was be-
cause that you were not going to get any more busi-
ness? :

A. Right.

. When you ceased doing business with Mr.
Corrara, in other words, paying monies to different
mdividuals and towards the latter part of the relation-
ship directly to My, Carrara, did business stop coming
from Passaic County Techwical and Vocational
School?

A. Yes, sir.

In closing, Commissioner Thomas R. Farley asked Isaae
‘Weinstein whether he felt that Jersey Janitor could have done
business in a legitimate manner with the school:

EXAMINATION BY COMMISSIONER FARLEY -

Q. Mr. Weinstein, I have one guestion. Do you
believe that your company could have done work for
the Passaic County Vocationol and Technical School
without Carrara?

A. No, impossible.

Impossible?
Tmpossible.

Why?

Well, I could see it when we never got a request
for pI’lGe we never got a letfer; we never got a
request for a bid; we never got a purchase order.
Tt was haphazard, the whole thing. Tt was like doing
business with the local candy store, the corner candy
store or corner grocery store.
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Abraham Weinstein, Vice President and Treasurer of Jersey
Janitor, shed further light on how ‘‘commissions’’ to-Mr. Carrara,
frequently through third-party payees, Worked Wonders Wlth the
award of business from the voeational school: ' :

~Q: But, in other words, since you were the cus-
todian of the books and records, if any payments were
made, checks went out or invoices 'recewed you would
know about that?. .
A Yes, sir.

Q. I show you what’s been marked Ewh@bzt PH 22
for identification and Exhibit PH-23 for identification,
and I thank they are copies of your led'gers Is that
mght? .

A, Right.

Q. And I refer you, also to what has been mm}'ﬂed
Exhibits 14 through 17 for the purposes of identifica-
tion, which purport to be copies of checks made out by
J ersey Janitor Supply to pm’twular entities or
DErsons. : . '

Al Yes sir.

Q. The checks include checks to Olzfton Auto Body
and, also, one check to Cardell Body Shop,‘zs that
mght? o _ SETUTRNEY

A. Yes, sir. e '\«_‘:-;‘:-

Q. Did you-ever have any busmess wilh ezther
Cardell or Olzfton? :
A. No, sir.

@. Do you know why the checks were wade out by
your company to Clifton and Cardell?

.A. Yes. They were under advisement of the
salesman ‘ L R

Q. Salesman bemg Mr Follender?
-'”ALr Follender, '

Q. When you, say @mcﬁer admseme%t o d?zd he,
suggest that you make out these checks to these
individuals?

A. Yes, sir.



). You made out the checks to Clifton Auto Body
and Cardell Body Shop because of the arrangements -
with Carrara, between Carrara and Follender?

A. Correct.

Q. In olher words, these checks represent commis-
sions paid by Jersey Janitor Supply to Mr. Carrara?
A. Or to Caljo.

Q. ““Or to Caljo.”” And youw were aware that the
money that they represent eventually emded wp in
Carrara’s hands?

A. Yes, gir.

Q. Now, you did about $17,000 worth of business
with Passaic County Vocational School?
A, Right.

Q. You say that approzimate profit margin is
thirty-seven per cent, which would run around $6,700,
so we would be in agreement that your paying to
Caljo or Carrara $3,600 is a substantial portion of
your profit, right?

A. Right.

Q. And you were paying him o substantial portion
of your profit because he was the key man, the lead
man mto the school, correct?

A. Ile was the he was a key man in getting us
business.

. That’s what I mean.

A. Yes, sir,

£ *® * * *

Q. Wasn’t it your understanding that his function
was that he was the lead into the school as for as
obtaining the business?

A. Well, from what T understand, he could have
gotten us a lot of other business from a lot of other
schools, also. This is what Follender told me.

Q. Did he give you any other business?
A. No, sir.

Q. Just Passaic?
A. Right,
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DISINCLINATIONS TO TESTIFY

Mr. Raymond Kutcher, President of K. & K. Automotive Inc,
located at 979 Main St., Passaic, New Jersey, was sworn at the
public hearings but refused to answer any questions based upon
his Fifth Amendment privilege. Certain records of the corpora-
tion, previously subpoenaed by the Commission were marked as
public hearing exhibits. One such exhibit was a series of four
checks totaling $3,900. Three of these checks were made payable
to “‘cash’’ while the check stub contained the legend ‘‘commission
for Caljo.”” The fourth check in the amount of $3,000 was made
payable to ‘‘Joseph Carrara.”

Mr. Robert Burke, formerly Vice President of K. & K. Anfo-
motive Inec., was sworn but also refused to answer any questions
based upon his Fifth Amendment privilege.

More ABovurt “COMMISSIONS”

Mr, Edward Portley, President of Clifton Auto Parts, Inc. of
Clifton, New Jersey, was called as a witness but refused to answer
based upon his Fifth Amendment privilege. At that point the
Commission voted to compel his testimoney by granting him
witness immunity, Mr. Portley testified that his company first
began to do business with the Passaic County Technical and Voca-
tional High School in November of 1970 as a result of a meeting
with Mr. Joseph Carrara:

. How did you first come to do business fmth the
Passaic County Vocalional and Techmcal High
School?

A. We have a mutnal friend of ours who is in
business in Hackensack, Mr. James—Joseph Gioffre,
who had done some business with the Passale Techni-
cal School and suggested that I stop and see if I ecould
get some business, and he recommended that I call on
a Mr. Carrara who might be able to help me obtain
business from the school.

Q. Would you spell Gioffre for us, please?

‘A. It’s G-e-o-f-r-e-y, I believe, Joseph. -

Q. Did you know who Mr. Carrara was when Mr.
Gioffre mentioned him o you, or 15 that the ﬁfrst time
you heard of him?

A. No, I didn’t know who he was at all except that
Mr. Gioffre intimated that Mr. Carrara was very
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friendly with the people in the school and he could
_help me to obtain.some business from them.

> Q. By the way, did Gioffre indicate fo you tha,t'i
 Carrara had so helped him? :

A. Really, I couldn’t say, sir, because Mr.. G—mffre

_ orlgmally spoke to Mr. Marino.

. Q. Al mght ﬁ%e I ta,ke it, theﬂ that you did callg
' Mfr Carrare and make an appomtme%t to see him?

| A, Yes, I did. T called Mr. Carrara and made an. .

o appointment, and I met him in a diner in Little Falls,
New J ersey,, and he told me that o

Q Well when was that, sir?

A. That was in—1 would say it was approm—;;_rrm

mately—oh wait a minute. Apprommately in the
spring of 1970. :

Q. Whenyou met with hzm n the d'mer where dzd L

| ".{_:_you say that diner-was, if you did?

T him?

A In Little Falls, New Jersey.

@ Dao-you recall the RAME of the dmer?
No T do not sir,

Q. Was amgone else present whew you met wzth

A No, sir.

Q Pm curious. H oW dzd, Hou reco gmze hzm?

A. Imade an appointment with him and I met him
in his:.office and then we went from hlS ofﬁce to the
diner and had coffee. : :

QT gee. Did you have any discussion with Tim, in
his oﬁioe concerning the Passaic C ounty Techmcal amd
Vocatzonal High School? -

A:"Well, T*had had a prehmmary dlscussmn W11Lh
him on the telephone in which'T told him T understood
he counld help me get business from the school. Then I
made an appointment fo meet him in his office and
then from his office we went to the diner.

Q Gomg back to that conversation You had with
Mr Carrara in the diner, did he indicate to you how
he wished to be paid his commzssw%? .

- A. Yes, sir. He wanted to be paid in cash
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Q. And did you agree to that?
- A, Yes, I did, sir.

Q. Did thal raise any gquestions in your mind at
e that time?
A. Tt did, sir, yes.

" Q. How did you generate the cash to pay Mr.
Carrara? '

- A. I have, sir, in my salary which T receive, I have
$50 a week which T can use for my own diseretion,
which is for pefty cash and entertainment, so forth.
I also have American Express credit cards and so
forth if I go ount and spend any large sums of money.
But for incidental sums of money I had this additional
$50 a week, which is paid to me above my salary but
included in my salary, which I can defray any way
I wish.

). During the period from approximately Novem-
ber of 1970 to December of 1972 did Mr. Carraora ever
try and wp the ante? .

"~ A. Yes, there are occasions that I'd have conversa- -
tions with Mr. Carrara and he said, ‘“Look, Ed. "~
You’re doing very well with the school and T think -
that you could prebably afford to pay a little higher
commission than we started.”” And I was reluctant
to, but I paid him. So, this is why the overall figure
reached the point -of appronmately ten per cent on
the entire.

CoMMISSIONER BERTINT: How high did he want
to go?
Tms Wrrxess: On some items, sir, he wanted
me to go as high as twenty per cent

- Q. I assume that you agreed to increase your pay-
ments because you felt that, if you did not, you would
lose the business of the school; is that fair?

A. That’s right, sir.

Mr. Portley testified that Mr. Carrara 'requifed that he cash
checks made payvable to Clifton Auto Parts and drawn upon other
business entities and give the cash to Mr. Carrara. As part of
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this testimony Mr. Portley identified checks drawn upon the fol-
lowing businesses: Caljo Contractors Supply, Jersey Janitor
Supply Co., V. J. Curcio Co.

In addition, Mr. Portley was -required to give fictitious bills to
the above-mentioned payers so that the true purpose of the pay-
ment would be hidden. In this regard Mr. Portley festified: '

&. Did you question Mr, Carrara why he was ask-
g you to cash checks drawn wpon a third party whom
you did not know?

- A. I probably did ask him, sir, but I cashed them
anyway. ‘

Q. You down’t recall his reply to you?

A. Tt was put in the form of do him a favor, or a
request.

@. Once again, did you feel that these favors were
something that you had to do, otherwise you jeopar-
dized your business with the techwnical and vocational
high school?

A, T felt the whole thing was in the same package.

Mr, Portley recalled a conversation he had with Mr, Carrara
immediately after Commission agents interviewed him in which
Mr, Carrara told him to keep quiet:

Q. Now, Commaissioner Bertini also asked you
about this conversation on Page 43 at the bottom, and
his question to youw asked you to be more specific if
you could. - He asked you, ‘‘Can you tell us o specific
discussion that he made to you as to how you should
work it out?’’ Do you recall your answer?

A. Yes, I do, sir.

Q. And what was the suggestion that Carrarae
made to you as to how you showld work out your re-
lationship with this Commission?

A. Well, if we all keep-—stand fast and keep quiet
and say nothing, really, nothing can come of this
whole thing.

Mz. Sapienza: Okay.

Tae Cumairmax: Who do you believe he meant
by ““all”’?

Taw WirNess: Mr. Carrara and myself,
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Ter CramrMax: Nobody else?

Tae Witness: No, sir. Well, generally speak-
ing, that we—from all the newspaper and con-
versations, there were other people involved
besides myself. So,if all of us that were involved
in doing business with the school, if we all kept
quiet, nothing much could bappen, sir.

A BreTTER PricE CouLD HAVE BEEN OBTAINED

Mr. Portley testified that the approximate total amount of money
paid to Mr, Carrara for the privilege of doing business with the
school was $4,200. He also indicated that the school could have
obtained a better price if these ‘‘commissions’’ were not required:

Q. At any rate, though, you could have, and prob-
ably would have, charged the school less if Mr.
Carrara had not been in the picture?

A. Ithink if someone if there had been sharper
bargaining, that the prices could have been cheaper,
yes, 8ir.

Q. Al right. I’d like to hear from you a little more
on that idea of sharper bargaining. Are you telling
us that if Mr. Carrara hadn’t been in the picture, and
if the school purchasing agent had been a little
sharper i his bargaiming, the school would have
gotten a better price? Is that your answer?

A. Perhaps 1 can paint a better picture for you.
If my partner was buying the supplies for the school,
the school could save a whole lot of money.

* * * * *

Q. In effect, you're saying they were buying retasl
whereas they might have been able to, if they had
put it all together, buy wholesale?

A. Yes, sir, something along that line.

Q. And if they buy on a wholesale level, they get
a better price?

A, Yes,
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ON LEARNING FROM AN UNFORTUNATE SITUATION

At the conclusion of his testimony, Mr. Portley was afforded
an opportunity to read into the public record a short statement
in which he expressed the hope that businessmen mno longer will
be forced into improper situations to secure business:

Tee Wrrxess: Thank you, sir.

Now that you have concluded your questioning
of me, I would appreciate the opportunity to read
a statement into the record.

This has been an extremely trying experience
for me, as T am sure you are aware. Tn retrospect,
with 20/20 vision that is never available at the
time you need it, T would have never gotien
involved with Joe Carrara at all. The business
was not that 1mportant to me. Furthermore, -
I now realize the seriousness of what I was: -
involved with, which I did not at the time.

It is ironie that T did not seek out a contact :
to do business with the school. It was only
because someone asked me if T would like to do
business with the school that I even became:

3 _1nterested '

After speaking with G‘arrara I reahzed that I'A
would never do any business with the school
unless I agreed to his ferms. Frankly, at the -
time I wag aware that such payments were a regu-

. lar course of business in many areas and I truth- .
fully felt that they were so widespread as to be
almost an accepted way of business life. Of
course, I was wrong and reécognize that now.

_ Times have changed for the better and I would

N hope that busmessmen will no longer be forced to
involve themselves in such s1tuat10ns in order to ~
obtain business that rlghtfully should be theirs °
in any event.

Looking to the future, this unfortunate expe-
rience has put my life in a different perspectlve R
I’m a better man for it and I know that T will
never again allow the profit motive to override
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doubts I might have had about the pr oculement
of business.

Thank you for allowing me to make this, to
have thig opportunity to speak.

Mr. Robert Glazer, Secretary of the Fox Fence Co. located in
Ciifton, New Jersey, was sworn and testified that he too was
required to pay ‘“‘commissions’ to Mr, Joseph Carrara for the
privilege of doing business with the ‘Passaic County Technical
and Vocational High School: :

Q. Were you the persom that was primarily en-
-gaged in bringing in Passaic County Technical and
YV ocational High School as a client for Fox Fence? -

A. When yon say bringing in as a client, I was en-
gaged in doing most of the work that was done at
the school. I was most familiar with it. 1 saw the
jobs, I took the men to the jobs.

). How were you led to that partwular customer?
A. From a Mr. Carrara.
) - * 7=# % o %

Q. Did Mr. Carrara make comact with you in
Focv Fence? ‘

~A. Yeg, he called us by phone and asked me to go
to see a Mr. Smollok at the vocational school; that
some work was to be done in-regards to fencmg

At firgt he said to go to his office. He had some
1nformat1on ag far as what had to be done at the
school what jobs Mr, Smoliok was asking for.

. I went to his office, I believe. There were no real
papers there., He told me what had to be done.

Q. Whose office did you go to?
~A. I went to Mr. Carrara’s office.
Q. So in the first instance
L A. That’s the first time, I believe, I ever saw him. -
. . Q. Now, that time that you went to the office, did
ol My Cazrmm discuss with you what he wanted for kis
- services in arranging this?

A. Yes, yes. ‘At that time before T went to the
school he 'asked to figure a twenty-five per cent com-
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mission to him for anything that was sold or billed
for the school.

Q. Did he indicate to you that he could see to it
that Fox Fence Company received business from the
school?

A. No, he never did. He just said that he knew
of work that had to be done at the school and I should
go see it and price it.

Q. And for this he wanted o twenty-five per cent
commissiond

A, Yes. :

Q. Was that twenty-five per cent of the gross
business done or was it twenty-five per cent of the
profit?

A. WNo, it was twenty-five per cent of the cost of
the job. ,

). The cost of the job?
A. Right.

Mr. Glazer submitted a summary sheet of all work done for,
the school and all commisgions paid to Mr. Carrara on account
of this work. This document indicated the following:

1) In 1970 Fox Fence performed two jobs for the
school, receiving a total of $6,831. From this Mr.
Glazer paid Mr. Carrara $1,591.

2) In 1971 Fox Fence performed five jobs for the
school, recelving a total of $10,745.25. From this Mr.
Carrara was paid $1,847.75.

3} Fox Fence continned to do work for the school
in 1972 and 1973 without paying Mr. Carrara any
money. However, the document also lists work done
by Fox Fence at Mr. Smollok’s personal residence
during that time.

Mr. Glazer testified that on one school job he arrived at a fair
price that he would charge ($2,625), communicated this figure to
Mr. Carrara who in turn told him to add on $825 for his commission
bringing the total cost to the school of $3,450. On each occasion
that they paid Mr. Carrara a commission, Mr, Glazer testified that
he added that figure on to the amount charged the school:
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Q. How much would you have billed the school if
they were dealing directly with you?

A. Tt’s difficult to say. All the jobs that we priced
were priced with the faet in our mind that we knew
twenty-five per cent was being added to the job, and I
think that they were priced fairly plus, again, twenty-
five per cent.

Using one example, Mr. Glazer testified that on one occasgion
he charged the school $6,100. If Mr. Carrara had not been in the
picture he could have charged $4,800. If he had charged $4,800 he
would have a had a profit of $1,609.

Mr. Glazer testified that around Qctober 29, 1971 he stopped
paying a commission to Mr. Carrara although they continued
thereafter to do business with the school:

Q. Now, what happened in October of 71 that you
no longer paid Joseph Carrara a commission?

A. Well, we felt it was an unusual situation. Tn the
beginning we were happy to give him his twenty-five
per cent for a customer who we had no contaet with
before and might never have been in contact with, and
we were satisfled to give him his twenty-five per cent.
But as the jobs went on, the situation got unusual in

~ the fact that Mr. Smollok was calling for jobs and Mr.
Carrara, I'm sure, probably didn’t even know most of
the jobs that we did at the school. Yet, our word is
our word and we sent him his twenty-five per cent.

We also felt that prices were increasing at the time.
We knew we were going to have to increase our prices,
and we also felt, why should we have a partner? As
tough as the jobs were there, and many of them were
tough, it took us two and three times the time longer
to do them than anticipated, felt that why shouldn’t
we charge the price that we felt was fair to us without
worrying about twenty-five per cent for Carrara. We
weren’t getling any other leads aside from those that
were the school’s, althongh promises were of others,
you know, but nothing ever happened to them, and we
decided that it was time to sever and we told him.
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ArLr MIDDLEMEN INFLATE THE PRICE

Mr, Glazer, in response to questioning by Commissioner Farley,
commented on what Mr. Carrara’s presence meant to the school
and ultimately the taxpayer.

Q. I have one more question, Mr. GZa,zefr. No matter
how you look at this picture, that middlemon was in-
flating the ultimate cost to the school; is that not a
fact? o

A, Yes.

Q. And it’s just a question of what the percentage
would have been?

A. All middlemen inflate the price of a job.

Q. And there was no reason that the school couldn’
hawve come to you directly?

A. In this case they could have.

Two MoORE DECLINE TO ANSWER QUESTIONS

Mr. Joseph Gioffre, President of the Industrial Petrolenm
Supply Co., located in Hackensack, New Jersey, was sworn but
refused to answer any questions, based on his' Fifth Amendment
privilege. Among other questmns Mr. Gioffre was asked the
following:

Q. Mr. Gioffre, hcwe you ever paid awy money 1o
anyone for the privilege of doing business with the
Passaic County Vocational and Techwnical High
School?

A. Same answer.

Mz, Sapievza: No further questions.

Mr. John B. G‘rerow of Dorrow Ine. located in Cliffon, New
Jersey, was sworn but refused to answer any questions based upon
his Fifth Amendment privilege.

Q. Mr. Gerow, can you tell me what business youw're
inf ‘
A. On the advice of my counsel, I refuse to answer
on the grounds that my answer might tend to inerimi-
nate me.
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Coyussioner Bermini:  All right. In the
future you can say, ‘“ Same answer,”’ to shorten it.

Tae WirNess: Same answer. Thank you.

© Mgz, Sapenza: John, will you mark these
exhibits.

(Documents received and marked KExhibifs
PH-78 through and ineluding PIT-97.)

Q. Mr. Gerow, have you done business with the
Passaic County Vocational and Techwical High
School?

"A. Same answer, sir.

Q. Have you had to poy any person a sum of money
for the privilege of doing business with that entity?

A.- Bame answer, sir.

Q. Have you ever deliberately overbid a project in
order that Caljo Contracting Supply Company would
. be the successful bidder?

A. Same answer, sir,

Q. Is it your intention o take your Fifth Amend-
ment privilege as to all of these, all the questions
I may ask w this area?

A, Yes, sir.

*Another businessman who was induced to go the middleman
route by Joseph Carrara in transactions with the school was
Mr. Anthony Galiardo, Sales Manager for V. J. Curcio Co,, a
sapplier of beautician equipment. Mr. Galiardo testified about his
mltlal contact with Mr. Carrara:

Q Did there come a Fime fwhen V. J. Curcio
Company commenced business with the Passaic
© County Vocational and Techwical High School?

A, Yes.
Q Do you recall when, or apprommately whe% this
'was?

- 'A. They commenced doing business after it was
successful with a bid, and 1 beheve it was 1970.
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Q. How did you come to do business with the
Passaic Coumty Techwical and Vocational High
School?

A. Tt began one time, I believe it was, I believe it
was 1969, a man by the name of Joseph Carrara
owned a shop in Bloomfileld by the name of Agquarius
Beauty Salon. He came to my office and asked me if
we wanted to work on a project that he had a good
lead for us and I said I certainly do.

So, he gave me the name and address of the Passaie
County Technical and Voecational office at that time on.
Route 23 in Wayne and he gave me a name of Mr.
Smollok. ¢“Call Mr. Smollok, make an appointment.
They need your assistance and you can go ahead and
start working with them.”

Mr. Gagliardo testified that Mr. Carrara requested and received
approximately 109% of the gross business which V. J. Curecio Co.
transacted with the school. He identified five checks drawn on the
company to the order of several fictitious payees or ‘““straw men’’
which were actually given to Mr. Joseph Carrara in payment for
his ‘‘commission:’’

The first check dated June 10, 1970 was in the amount of $2,500
and made payable to Mr. Richard Carrara.

The second cheek, dated October, 1970, was in the amount of
$1,336.00 and made payable to Gilbert Carrara.

The third check, dated October 30, 1970 was in the amount of
$395.00 and made pa,yable to Mr. Robert Burke.

The fourth check, dated Getober 30, 1970, in the amount of $202 65
was made payable to Mr. Robert Burke

The fifth check, dated October 5, 1970, in the amount of $3, 012
was made payable to Richard Oarrala

In addition to these checks Mr. Gagliardo also identified five
others made payable to Clifton Auto Parts that had previously
been acknowledged by Mr. Portley of that company as part of
those which he cashed for Mr. Joseph Carrara and issued phony
invoices to cover. These checks amounted to $957.88. The total
amount actually paid to J oseph Carrara by V. J. Curcio Company
was $8,419.01.
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Mr. Gagliardo explained why he drew these checks in this man-
ner: :

Q. Are they the checks to your outside salesman?

A. Yes, these were made to Joseph—these were
not made to Joseph Carrara, but they were given to
Joseph Carrara,

Q. Is that the way you pay an outside salesman?
A. No. We asked him—we made out—I believe
you have the check we made out to him. e said he
was having trouble with his family and he didn’t want
his wife--this is what his words were—to know what
was going on, and to make the checks out accordingly.

Mr. Gagliardo testified that his company does business with
many other boards of education and municipal and state govern-
mental units and never, in any of these, did he deal through a
“middleman.’’

Much of the business transacted with the school bjr this company
was done pursuant to bidding. Mr. Gagliardo explained how he
became the successful bidder on all items which he chose to submit
a bld for

Q. Did you assist Mr. Smollok in the drawing of '_‘-"-
the specifications for the outfitting of Beauty Culture'

""1Classmoms A and B?
: T entered the full specifieations.

Y ou—épardon? L
I suggested the whole specifications.

C And—— .
I mailed it to him.

Mailed it to him. And you are fafimlmr f.r.mth the
Spec@ﬁcatw%s that became part of the bid proposal?

A. T believe they’re actually What I Wrote down
T believe.

BRSNS N3

Q. 4As a p'ract@cal mattefr you, 173 fact drew the
specification?’
A, Yes. , ,
COMMISSTONER BERTINI And then you were a
bidder? ‘ e
Tar Wirtwess: Yes,
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ComwmrsstonEr BerTini: In competition with
other bidders?

Tar Wirness: Yes.

CommissioneEr BerTINI: Who hadn’t assisted
in preparing the specifications?

Tae Wrrxess: Well, not everybody will run in
to do this service for them, for people, and I
believe in it and we do it for all the schools. And .
then when we enter our specifications, becanse the
average layman doesn’t know what a particular
dryer is better than another or a particular
apparatus or hydraulic chair is better than
another, we enter into this and we specify the
qualities such as what type of upholsteries and
whatnot.

Comurssioner Bertini; Doesn’t that sort of
give voun the inside track? '

Tee Wirness: Oh, sure.

Richard Carrara, brother of Joseph Carrara, formed in June
1971 the C.S.M. Corporation with the infention of selling janiforial
and paper supplies. In this venture he was counseled and assisted
by his brother, Joseph. Richard Carrara testified how C.S.M.’s
first and best enstomer throughout the company’s life was the
Passaic County Vocational and Technical High School:

Q. Did there come o« time when the C.S.M.
Corporation did business with the Passaic Oounty
Vocational and Techmical School?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. When was that?

A, About a month after the company was formed,
approximately. .

Q Was this corporation formed to do busmess
with the Passaic County

A. No, sir.

Q. —Technical and Vocational Schoaw
A. No, sir.
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Q. Who did it do business with in that month
previous to-the doing business with the school?
A. It was just being formed. I got other

Q. Was the school its first customer?
- A. T believe, quite possibly, yes.

Q. And would it be fair to say that in the eniire
history of that particular corporation the school wWas

its best customer?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. My examination of your business records
indicates im the period from July 1st, 1972 lo
December, the end of December of 1972, you did
approximately $38,000 worth of business with the
school. Does that comport with your recollection?

A. I would say that’s it, yes.

Q. During that time I see that you did 3613 worth
of business with one other customer, Raymond Con-
crete Pile Company. Is thal accurate?

A. Is that for a year, sir?

Q. This is for the period July 1st, ’72 to December
2omd, 72,
A. T guess 8o, then.

+# % * # E3

Q. I notice in that same period of time you had
one other client, Mrs. Maryjo Scola, and she pur-
chased $362 worth of busmessﬂ’?

A. Yes.

Q. So you had three clients; the school $38 000,
Raymond Concrete, $600, and an individual for $362?

“A. 1 had Howard Bank, also.

Q. During this time your records don’t show you
did any business with Howard Bank.
A, T’'m sorry. That’s different.

Q. Could C. 8. M. have survived if they did not
have the Passaic' County Techmical amd Voaatwfnal
School account.

A. T guess not. I was still bmldmg it up It was
a new business. :
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C.S.M. was highly successfnl in those bids which it submitted to
the school. Mr. Richard Carrara attributed much of this suceess
to Joseph Carrara’s help:

Q. At amy rate, Mr. Carrara, shortly after you
stopped being a teacher you started being a successful
bidder; is that correct?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. Our analysis of your records indicates that in
the period from July 28, 1971 to July 1st, 1972
C. 8. M. was successful in part on every time if bid.
Does that comport with your recollection?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You never recollect submitting a bid that.gyou
weren’t successful on, do you, in some part?
A. Tdon’t reeall.

Q. Who assisted you in drawing your bids that you
submitied to the school?
A. My brother Joe.

Q. Did anyone else assist you?
A. No.

Q. Did you have any knowledge of how to bid on
. project?

A. No. He was showing me how to bid. e wag
teaching me that.

Q. Did he help you figure out how much proﬁt You
should put in?
A. He was telling me how, yes, how to do that.

Q. And as I understand it, at this point in time
you were unemployed and stmtmg this busmess was
a new business venture for you?

A. Yeg, sir.

Q. Mr. Carrara, do you feel that you would hcwe
been as successful as you were n this business in
which you had very little experience if it were not for
the imtervention of your brother, Joseph Oarmm
with school authorities? . -

A. Not as quickly, I guess.
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Mr. Richard Carrara described the operation of the C.S.M.
Corporation:

Q. What do you do for your money?

A. I pick up bids; I go ont and price them, see
what I can get for the best price; and then I bid it;
and then when I keep records, I check it when it
comes in.

You don’t make a product, do you?

No, sir.

Do you stockpile or store products?

No, sir.

Do you own a warehouse?

No, sir,

. Where was this business operated from when it was
in operation?

A. It was——the business address itself iz my
house.

. It was out of your home; is that right?

A. Yeah,

O PO e po

Mr. Richard Carrara testified that his own brother demanded
and received in cash 109% of all the business W]:uch C.S.M. did
with the school:

¢. Did you have to pay onyone any sum of money
for the business done with Passaic County Vocational
and Technical School?

A, T paid Joe.

CommuissroNer Berrini: How much did you pay
Joe?

- T'E Wrrness: Ten per cent of all my business,
not——with the school, now.

CommigstoNER Brrrini: Well, what did you pay
Joe for?

Tas Wirness: Because he helped me. He was
helping me to get into this business.

CommissioNER Bermini: He helped you?

- Tas Wirxess: Right. He was showing me how
to keep the books ; he was showing me how to bid;
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he was telling me—he got me customers. Ile just
was teaching me the business.

CommissioNer BrrTiNi: So, then, the voca-
tional school, that eustomer was secured by Joe,
not yon?

Tes Wirness: Yes, sir; yes, sir.

Commissioner FarLey: How did you pay him?
Tuar Wirwess: Cash.

CommissioNer FariLmy: So, based upon your .
overall volume, including the school and a couple
of other customers, you wounld pay him ten per
cent of that in cash?

Tre Wrrness: Right, sir.

CommissioNer Berrini: How did you show the
cash that was paid to Joe?

Tee Wirness: I paid income tax as——when I
paid my wife services rendered for typing and
everything she did, and the bookkeeping and the
billing and all thig here, I wonld take that money
and I would give that to Joe as his ten per cent.

Commisstoner BerTini: So that your income
tax return doesn’t truthfully show that you paid
Joe ten per cent?

Tae Wityess: No. The money was paid on the
money, but not that it went to Joe.

Commissioner Farney: Let me reconstruct this
g0 I understand it.

You were paying your Wlfe and this money was
then being cashed and given to Joe?

Ter Wrrxess: Right, sir.

Q. Do you knmow what Joseph did with the cash
that he received from you?
A. No, gir, I don’t,
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JoseEpu CARRARA’S TESTIMONY IS COMPELLED

Myr. Joseph Carrara, principal in Caljo Contractors Supply Co.,
located in Fairfield, New Jersey, was sworn in at the public hearing
but refused to answer any questions based upon his Fifth Amend-
ment privilege. The Commission then ordered him to testify pur-
suant to a proper grant of testimonial immunity.

Mr. Carrara tostified that he began a contractors’ supply busi-
ness in 1966 and approximately two years later was introduced to
Mr. Alex Smollok by a Mr. Carmen Oftilio:

Q. Did there come a time when Caljo Contracting
Supply Company did business with the Passaic
County Vocational and Technical High School?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How did it come to do that business?

- A. At the time T had offices at Main Street in Little
Falls and T was an employee of another company while
I was running this same business, also. A Mr. Carmen
Ottilio at that time had come into my office. 1 had been
friendly with him and he knew that I was in the con-
tractor’s supply business and he recommended that
maybe I should call on Mr. Smollok to see if T could
gell him anything and that maybe I could gain another
account.

Q. Could you fix a period of tme when this

occurred?
A. I really have no idea. I believe it’s qomewhere

around 1968,

*® * % *

Q When you saw Mr Swmollok, did gou tell him
that Myr. Otiilio had suggested you come down to see
him?

A, Yes, I did.

Q. And do you recall what Mr. Smollok’s mactwn
was to you?

A. Idon’trecall his reaction. He was cordial to me. .

Q. What was the next thing that youw con recall
happened with regard to your doing business with the
Sohool? '

A. The best I can recall was that I received a call.
1t was either that we were asked fo quote on an item
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or if there was a request that came up about did I
know of anyone—did I know of anyone that was a
good engineer.

- Mr, Oarrara testified that he suggested 0’°Dell Associates to Mr.
Smollok and then requested a commission from O’Dell on any
work they received from the school:

Q. Did he ask you to suggest an engineer?

A. Yes, he asked me if T knew of an engineer, a
reputable.

Q. Who did you suggest to him?
A, O'Dell Associates.

* #* 3 * #*

Q. Did you have an acquainiance with the princi-
pals in O’Dell Associates?

A, Yes, I did.

Q. How so?

A. Imetwith them and told them that I knew of an
account that they could probably try to get, and that
was just about the gist of the conversation at that
time,

* # e * %

Q. Was it after you suggested O’Dell Associates
that you went to see that firm and told them that you
could see to if that they did business with the school?
And if ““see to it’’ is a poor choice of words, correct
me.

(Wherenpon, the witness confers with counsel.)

A. I don’t recall if it was after or before, but I do
recall having a conversation with Mr, O'Dell that I
can recommend him to an account, and if he were to
get the job, if he would agree to paying a commission
to me.

Q. And, as a matter of fact, did Mr. O’Dell pay
such a commission to you? .

A. Yes, he did. -
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A MIpDLEMAN TELLs OF PAYOFFS

The O’Dell business led to Joseph Carrara entering into an
agreerment whereby he would give to Alex Smollok a portion of the
“commission’’ he received in acting as a middleman on school
purchases:

. Well, after receiving this money did you enter
into an agreement with any other person regarding its
distribution?

A, Yes, sir.

‘ Q; What person or persons did youw have such an
agreement with?
A. Mr. Smollok. -

. Ewxactly what was your agreement?

A. T told him at the time that I should receiire a
commission for X amount of dollars.

* #* * * *

- A, (Continning) I had a conversation with
Mr. Smollok that if Mr. O’Dell did, in turn, receive
the business, that I would receive a commission for
that said business and that I was willing to give part
of it to him,

Q. Well, I take it, then, that this agreement with
Mr. Smollok, who was then——was he then the secre-
tary to the board of edwcation?

A. I believe so.

Q. Was he also the business manager of that
entity?
A. T don’t know.

Q. But you did know ham to be responsible for the
letting of such coniracts on behalf of the school; is
that correct? '

A. I guess s0, yes.
Q. I iake it, then, that this agreement that you had

with Mr. Smollok was prior to the school entering into
any contractual relations with O’ Dell; is that correct?

+ A. The best that I could remember, yes.
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Q. What was the final agreement that you reached
with Mr. Smollok in this situation as to the distribu-
tion of any monies you would receive from O’ Dell?

A. T just remember telling him that T would give
him a portion of it, of what I received.

Q. You do mot recall, then, how much or what
portion of the percemtage you would give to Mr.
Swmollok on this occasion?

A. 1 believe it was half or more.

Q. Was this what Mr. Smollok demanded or did
he want more?
A. Yes.

Q. Yes what?
A. Yes, he asked for it,

- Q. Well, did he want more thon half, if you recall?

A. Well, he didn* know exactly what the commis-
sion was to start with, so he didn’t know what was
half.

Q. But what did he want? Did he want holf of
whatever it was or did he want more than half of
whatever ¢ was?

He wanted all.

He wanted all of it?

Yes.

Did you agree to give him all of it?

Yes. Of course, he didn’t know what all of it
W

© Lo pO B

). And I take it he did not receive all of it; is
that correct?
A. No, he did not.

¥ * * * #

Q. Mr. Carrava, what did Mr. Smollok offer you
w return for this arrangement that he would receive
all of the money that you received from O’Dell?

A. Nothing. I don’t believe anything at the time.

Q. Well, he drives a hard bargain. It seems
unmsual to me, and I would ask you to think back, that
Mr. Smollok would demand all the money you received
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from O’Dell in return for giving you nothing, either
a part of that money or a chance for business or
whatever.

A. Well, of course, Caljo was doing business with
the school. :

Mr. Carrara explained that Mr. Smollok received these payments
in eash on a monthly basis at his school office in Wayne, New Jersey.

Tar Ceammax: How did you fransfer the
money to Mr. Smollok?

Tre Wirness: In cash.

Ter CrairMmanw: And where was the transfer
made?

Tre Wrrness: At his office. A
Tae CrareMan: And where was his office?

Tae Wirxess: I believe af the time his office
was in Wayne, New Jersey.

Mr. Carrara was asked to identify all of the vendors who
paid him a “‘commission’’ for the privilege of doing business:

Q. All right, Will you identify for us all of the
vendors that had to pay you money for the privilege
of doing business with the Passaic County Technical
and Vocational High School?

A." The best that I ecan remember, it’s Clifton Auto
Parts, K & K Automotive, Dorow, Curcio, Jersey
Janitor, Fox Fence, Industrial Petroleum, Ruther-
ford Sporting Goods, Royal Stationery, Atlantic
Sheet Metal and C, I. S.

In addition to these vendors, Mr. Carrara testified that Mr.
Smollok also demanded payoffs on the business which Caljo
Contractors Supply Co. did with the school.

Q. Did you have to pay Smollok any monies for
the business Caljo did with the school?
~A. Yes, sir,

@. How was that oom;puted?
A. Five per cent of the gross.
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Q. And when did youw reach this agreement with
Mr., Smollok? ‘ ‘
A. T don’t recall the exact time, sir.

Mr. Carrara proceeded to testify as to the amount of business
Caljo did with the school and what this meant to Mr. Smollok in
terms of dollars received: ,

Q. And have you totaled these individual amounts
up so that you may now gwe us o grand total of the
gross amount of business Caljo Contractors Supply
Company did with the school?

A. Yes, sir. Approximately $278,434.

Q. And is it true that you paid Mr. Alex Smollok
. a five per cent commission on this business done?
A. Yes, with the exception of a few that the profit
just wasn’t in it.

At all times the money was paid in cash at Mr. Smollok’s office -
without anyone else present. In summary Mr. Carrara testified:

Q. First, you had the O’Dell relationship, This
was your providing the school with an engineer,

correct?
A, Yes, sir.

Q. And the O’Dell people pard you a certain per-
centage, because you brought them that business, by
check?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. And that these checks were then cashed?
A, Yes, sir.

Q. And it was the understanding that Swmollok
would get all of this money?
A, Yes, sir.

Q. And i pomnt of fact, you gave him a half or
more of that money i cash?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, Point 2. You had a fiscal relationship
between Caljo and the school amnd over a period of
years this gemerated about $278,000 worth of
business?

A. Over a period of three and a half years,
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Q. Yes,

A, Yes. _ :
Q. And your fiscal relationship with Smollok was
that he would get five per cent of the gross?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And this, wn fact, ke was pmd m cash?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And oll payments were made at the school?
. A, Yes, sir. '

Q. And no payments were made in the presence of
o third party?

A, No, sir.

Q. Thirdly, youw had an arrangement, a fiscal
arrangement with Smollok with respect to the outside
- vendors, and here you generally had an average pay-

ment that you would receive from the outside vendors .
" of ten per cent, correct? ,

A. Yes, sir.
Q. And that Smollok’s agreement with you was.
that he would get all of this ten per cent? '

- A. Yes, sir. _ :
Q. And that, in point of fact you gove hzm fifty
per cent or more of that in cash?

A, Yes, su'

Q. Fifty per cent of the ten per c:ew,t that is.
A, Yes, sir. ‘
Q. And finally, you had o corpomt@on formed i the

nome of C. I. S., which was, in point of fact, owned
by you and that you did busmess with the school?.

A. Yes,sir.

Q. And you made certain sums of money on that?
A. Yes, sir, .

Q. And certain sums of money 'were given back
to Smollok in the form of cash%’ :

A, Yes, Sll‘ _
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- ALEX SMOLLOK DECLINES AN OPPORTUNITY TO TESTIFY

The Commission wishes to note that Mr. Alex Smollok, a public
emmployee within the meaning of the presently existing Public
Employees Immunity Statute, was notified by certfified letter and
through his attorney that the Commission would be happy to
receive his testimony in reply, as provided for under the State
Code of Fair Procedure which grants all those who feel adversely
affected by the Commission’s public proceedings to make relevant
statements under cath on their own behalf. Mr, Smollok, through
his attorney, notified this Commission that he would not voluntarily
appear and give testimony nor reply to any of the testimony given
by other witnesses at these public hearings.

ScHoOL PROPERTY AND EMPLOYEE WORK
Is CONVERTED TO PERSONAL USE -

One evidence of administrative abuses at the Passalc County
Vocational and Technical High School, as uncovered by the S.C.1.
investigation, was instances of school connected officials, princi-
pally Alex Smollok, converting to personal use the work of some
school employees and some of the school’s property. The conver-
sions were carried out generally during school working hours and,
therefore, at the expense of the taxpaying public. A number of
employees of the school’s custodial staff testified at the publie
hearings to a variety of such conversions. The first was Michael
Manusley who told of top soil transportation to Mr. Smollok’s home,
delivering a school rug to that home, and cementing the pool at
that home:

Q. Hauving had the benefit of your pmor testimony,
I would now like to elicit from you the circumstances
which occurred on March 1st, on or about March 1st,
1973, with regards to some topsoil,

During that period of time was there a contmctor
working on the school sitef
A, Yes, sir,

Q. And who was that contractor, do Jou know9
A. Ottilio,

Q. And did you receive ony instruction from Mr
Smollok relative to that contractor?

A. Yeah. I was told to get a dump trock and haul
topsoil down to his house down in Clifton.
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Q. And whose house are you referring to?
Smeollok’s house.

Q Where 18 that located?
A. Tthinkit’s Browser Road or something like that
in Clifton. T don’t know that.

Brower Street?
Yeah, something like that.

And did you, n fact, get a dump truck?
I did.

Where did you get the truck from?
Right from the school property.

Whose truck was it%
Well, the Passaic County Vocational School.

And did you load that truck up with topsoil?-
Yeah. Ottilio loaded it up. One of his workers
loaded it up with topsoil.

Q. Where did he get the topsoil from?
A. Right above the school, school grounds there.

PO PO PO PO BO

- Q. Well, was this topsoi] bemg spread upon school
property?
A. It was at the time, yes.

Q. What were they doing there?
A. They were supposed to be spreading it around
in fields.

Q. Football field?
A. Football field, yeah.

Q. How many dump truckloads of it did you deliver
to Mr. Smollok’s home?
A. I delivered three of them.

* #* * * *
Q. AU right. Was Mr. Smollok present when HOu

deliwered the topsoil?
A, Yes, he was. At the ﬁrst load, he was present

Q Where did he have you dump it
A, Right around—right around his pool he has
built at his house.
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Was the pool built at this t?/me?
. The pool was built.

Do you know who had to spread the topsozt?
. Well, we spread it Wlth shovels :

Q.

A

Q.

A

. Oh, you spread e

A. Yeah,

Q. Three dump tfmcks full of 42
A. Yeah.

Q.
A
Q.
A

That’s a pretty hard job, @sn’t ’Lt?
. Well, it wasn’t easy.

What day of the week was this, can you tell?
I don’t know for sure, but it could have been on
Monda,y '

OOMMISSIONEB. FARLEY : Was it a school day?
Tae WiTxess: School day, school day.

Q. Were you compensated by Mr. Smollok Toe th'r,s?
A. No, I wasn’t.

Q. To your knowledge, did he compensate Mr
Ottilio? _ el
A. No.

Q. Who helped you?
- A, 'Well, Ronnie Kopack helped me.

Q. Al right. Leaving that instant, I'm refewmg,
now, to an instance that took place on Christmas Eve
of 1971. Do you recall going to M'r Smollok 3 home
on that evening? L

A. Tdo.

Q. Whai were the circumstances of that? =

A. We were delivering a rug, which we got at the
new school, 45 Reinhardt Road, which came out of the
Tibrary. We took it to Smollok’s house and we put 1t
down the basement through the window.

f

Q Did Mr. Smollok order you to ta,ke . mg from
the school? : , e
“A. Yes, he told me. '5 :_ H:Ai-e_i
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Q. He did. Was this during the day that he gave
you these orders?
A, 'Well, this is sort of in the afternoon.
Q.- What did he tell you to do, as much as you can
recollect? , ,
A Take it down to his house.
Q. He told you to take @ rug from where?
A. From the school.

Q. And did he tell you to wait until after school
hours? S
A. No, he didn’t teil us what time.

Did he tell you where to get the rug?
‘Well, he helped to load it on the truck.

: On the school truck?
Yes.

SRS

* #* * * # .
Did you take it to Mr. Smollok’s home?
I did.
Was it in the evening?
No, it was in the afternoon.

Who helped you?
Ronnie Kopack and Mr. Smollok himself.

And where did you place the rug?
Down in his basement. .

Did he compensate you for this?
He gave me $10 and a bottle of Ambassador
IScotch which I have the Scotch yet.

Q. Were you on school time when you dfad this?
A. Tdid. I was.

. Now, you mentioned Mr. Smollok’s pool. Did
You ever hame occasion to do cmy work on his pool or

around the pool?
A. Yes. I helped cement around the pool. When
the cement was delivered, we had to be there.

PO PO PO PO e

Q. When you say ‘‘we,”” who is that?
A. Me and Frank Puzio.
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Q. And what did Mr. Smollok tell you to dof?
A, Well, we had to—I was holding the wheel-
barrow, the cement, while Frank was leveling it off.
Q.- Were you compensated for this by Mr. Smollok?
A. No, I wasn’t. :
Q. To your knowledge, was Mr. Puzgio compen-
sated for this?
A. No, he wasn’t.

Were you on school time?
On school time.

Was it on a Saturday?
No, it was during the week.

.bn:o P o

L)

During the week. And you got a check from the
school for the hours that you worked on Mr. Smollok’s
walk; is that right?

A. Right.

Q. Was ths a regular check or drawn on any
particular firm?

A. No, right in my regular paycheck.

- Romnald Kopeck, another employee of the school’s custodial force,
gave testinony corroborating that of Mr. Mausley about deliveries
of top soil and the rng to Mr. Smollok’s home. Mr. Kopeck addi-
tionally told of instances where he worked at Mr. Smollok’s home
breaking up concrete in the driveway, installing a concrete walk
around the swimming pool there and installing tile in the cellar
of that home:

Q. Were you ordered by Mr. Smollok to do any
work in and about his private premises?

A. Yes, gir.

Q. Would you tell us about that?

A. Well, we broke concrete up in his driveway and
we laid conerete around the pool. T did work down the
cellar, lald tile down the cellar.

Q. When you say “‘we,”” do you recall—-
A. Frank Puzio and I '
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'Q-

CONCY

Now, you were required to assist in building a
ete walk around his pool; is that what youw're

telling me?

>

S O po

Yes,

Do you recall when that was?
No, &ir, not offhand right now.

Was it during regular school working hours?
Yes, yes,

Were you compensated in any extra way by Mr.

Smollok?

A.
Q.

Q.

No.
Did Mr. Smollok ever indicale that he’d make it

Now, you say that you were required to lay tile

wm Mr., Smollok’s basement?

S PO O PO p

this 1
A,

Q.
A.

Q.
schoo
A,

Yes, sir,

Was this during regular school working hours?
This was on a Saturday, as I recall.

A Saturday?

Yes, sir.

Were you compensated by Mr. Smollok for this?
No.

Did you receive a check from the school to cover
me?

Yes, yes.

What is your rate of payment on a Saturday?
‘Well, time and a half.

Mr. Kopek testified further that he knew of deliveries of school
property consisting of chairs and ceiling tile to Herman Steinberg,
then Attorney for the County Board of Kducation, and consisting
of an executive desk and chairs to Eugene Dockery, President of
the Board:

Were you required by Mr. Smollok to deliver
I property to any other locations?
Yes, sir.
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Q. Where were they? :

A. One was in Pompton Lakes. I was ordered 10
deliver a table, desk, table, two chairs, three chairs, as
a matter of fact, to Mr. Dockery s place in Pompton
Lakes af the mumcrpal building there

Q. And when did this occur?
A, Oh, I don’t know offhand the date, but it was
during school hours.

Q. You have previously testified it occurred in the
winter of 1971. Does thal refresh your recollectio%?

A. Yes, something a.ronndw—somewhere “around
there. - - :

Q). Whe assisted you, if you k%ow?
A. Mr. Smollok.

Q. Mr. Smollok Lelped you take the desk?

A. No, excuse me, no. One of the fellow-—-when I
got there, I backed the truck up and Mr. Dockery told
one of the fellows in the bu.lldlno- to give me a hand
to take it off. ' . y

Q. Did everything go smoothly?

A, No. It was the wrong-—I brought up the wrong
desk. . Mr. Dockery called Mr. Smollok Mr. Smollok
told me to bring it back and bring another one up. I
brought another one.

Q. Was this the only time that you brought school
property to Mr. Dockery?
A, Yes.

. And @t was o working desk and a couple of
chairs?

A. Yeah, it was a regular desk, like office desk.

Q. Besides that, were you regquired by Mr. Smollok o

“to bring school property to a’ny other locatwn other
tham the school? , .

A. Yes.

Q Where?
A Mr. Stembero 8 ofﬁce
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; Q. When was this?

A, This was—I'm not really sure. During the .
L Wmter I was told. I brought two chairs and ceiling ~ . -
- blocks. :

Q. We’re not fam@haxr with the term “cezlmg
blocks.”” What are they?

A, For the ceiling, the square blocks, tlle If you
Want to, call them ceiling tile.

Q.. In other words, if you're puttmg wm a, new ceil-
ing this would be what you would usef
_' A, Yeah, like. a dl opped ceiling.

Q How many bowxes of cezlmg tile?
+T'en bozes.

Q How b@g is a bow of cezlmg tzles?
A. Oh, I gness four-foot by—four-foot, four by
three, somet]:ung hke that Somewhere around there

Q. Dzd myone asswt you— :
A, No. :

Q. ——im this delivery? _ '

© As:No. Well, T.delivered. Mr. Stemberg was thele
I took—he told-—I took the boxes. off the truck and he
told me Where to put them I 1aid them down and came
back i e o :

Q Beszdes the bomes you SaY You delwered chazfra?
AL Yes,siv. :

Q. Was this done in the day or wighi? S
A. This was’done 'in thé morning &t eight o’clock.

Q ‘Do you know whefre the.se cezlmg tzles cmd chaws
came from? ‘

A, Yes, they came from the school.

Q Do you bmow whére the school got them from?

A. Excuse me?

Q " Do you Tt where the sohool got the cezlmg
tiles from?@

A, Yes. I went down'to—I was told by Mr. Smollok
to go down pick up tile, and Mr, Barker knew where
the place is. He gave.-me dll'ec'thIlS I went down to
Burlington and pmked the tile ap:, :
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Another school custodial employee, Frank Puzio, deseribed how
he started out at Mr. Smollok’s direction fixing a few windows at
Mr. 8mollok’s home and ended up doing major carpentry jobs on
school time, with the school additionally paying for the lumber:

Q. Who told you to do tha,ﬁ
A. Mr. Smollok.

So he said I’ll change a few windows and all that
stuff there and help him out becanse he’s too busy
at the school, so I started to work in his house, First
it was one window, then it was two windows, then
three windows, then four. Before you know, I did all
the job, all the windows. I figured that was it. Ag a
favor, I did the job. Then, before you know it, fix the
roof, fix the gutter, and here I am in the middle.

F * * # *

Q. By doing the basement, what do you mean?
A. I remodeled the basement for him; I remodeled
the basement for him.

After I was finished there and he says, ‘‘Remodel
my porch.”’ T got stuck there again. I finished his
porch for him again. I figured I was finished. I did a
favor, I did the job. I figured that was it. Before you
know it, he wants a dormer on his poreh; before you
know it, the conerete around his pool, his driveway.
And he gave me a couple of helpers, Andy Weisz,
Jim Trenicos,

* % ) * %

Q. Now,where did the material come from that you
as ¢ carpenier used to fix or build in Mr. Smollok’s
house?

A. Material came from Sills Lumber Yard in
Paterson.

Now, was this, to your knowledge, delivered?
And I picked it up.

You picked it up af Sills?

Yes.

Did you pay the man at Sills?
I signed vouchers for:.
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- Commissionss Berrivi: In what vehicle did
“you pick it up?

Tar Wrrness: What?

CommisstonEr BeErTINI: What vehiele did you
- use?

Tug Wirness: County school, county vehicle,
the Jeep.

CommissioNer BErTINI: County?

Tue Wirness: Yeah,

BY MR. SAPIENZA :

Q. You mentioned you signed wvouchers. What
type of vouchers were they? :

A. They were school. In other words, they have
the lumber, then you tell them Passaic County Voca-
tional School, they have a number and they write the
order down, the certain number there, whatever it is,
I think each place has a number.

Q. On each occasion that you picked up lumber at
Sills that you took to Mr. Swmollok’s personal resi-
dence, did you sign a school voucher?

A. Yes,

- . So that this lumber was billed to the Passaic
County Vocational and Techwical High School?

A. Yes.

‘Walter Puzio, nephew of Frank Puzio and another school cus-
todial employee, testified that he was required by Mr. Smollok to
do jobs at Mr. Smollok’s home as varied as adjusting cabinets
and feeding Mr. Smollok’s dogs:

Q. DI'm now interested in whether you were ever
required to do any work or deliver any school prop-
erty at the direction of amy school offictal?

A. Yes.

Q. I have had the benefit of your testimony pre-
viously——
A, Yes.
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Q. ——in executive $ession,

Were you required to do any work at the home of
Alex Smollok at 15 Brower Street?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. When were you so required?
A. Well, I think it was about in the summer of I
think, 71 or ’72, around there, or ’70. :

Well ——
I think, '71.

12
Yeah.

What sort of work were you required to do? -

- 'We supposed to——it was me, me, Bob ick
and Walter Puzio, my uncle, Frank Puzio, supposed
to go to his house and take all this, the cabinets down
in the kitchen, you know, you put the dishes in, sup~
posed to fix it up like that.

Q. You were requwed to do work on kztchen oabz-=
nets in Mr. Smollok’s home? =
A, Yeah, just take them down.

T TR * *

PO FO PO |

Q. Besides working on the kitchen cabinets, were
you required to do any other work around the Smollok
residence?

Al T don’t even——I used to mind his dog, and
that’s all, when he went away on vacation. That’ 8 it

Q. Well, certamly—you say you minded his do g?
A Yes .

i -..xahd you?

over there and check on his dogs.

OOMMISSIONER BERTINI Wha.t?

Trr Wrrness: Check on his dogs. He had two"‘“‘"
dogs. They go on vacation, they don’t belleve in
:i‘.feedlng animals.. They: ;]ust go,” K

CoMmissioNER BERTINI: You Went and- fed the??‘-&‘
animalg? RS
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~Tre Wirxess: Yeah, I went-and check. around,
need water.

Tre CeaieMax: Did he ask you to do that?
- Tme Wrrxess: Yeah, he told me. -

# * * # *

Q. All mght Dwmg the time yau worked on the
kitchen cabinets, were you compensated by Mr.
Smollok? . - :

A, No It was during school hours

Q. Y ou were -compensated by the schoow :
A, Yea.h it was my regular elght Lours.

Q Yow're qmte certain the hours you pul in work-
ing on Smollok’s were hours you, in a sense, billed the
sckool for and were paid by the school?: =~

A;"That I can’t tell. We take the cabinets down
and throw them on the truck-and go back to the Nike
Base.

Q). This was durmg the day?
A4 Durlng the day.

Q. Regular working hours? A
. A. Regular WOI"I{IIIO" hours, a;nd that was rt from
thén on. ;

In addition Walter Puzio testified to the delivery of a school
blackboard to Mr. Steinberg’s office and to the use of a school
dump truck: to deliver erushed rock to*be used on the driveway of
Ansell Payne, Assistant County School Board Seeretary.

Q. All right. Let’s slow down:” Y ou were’ reqmred
to delwer a blackboard to Mr Stemberg s oﬁice?
+Yes: o

When?
“Tiast summer it was, I thmk Last summer

Where did the blackboard come from?
From the school.

What kind of & blackboard was e
One of these, like this. -: -~ o
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Q. Al right. A blackboard approzimately ﬁfue feet
by three feet?
A. Yeah, that’s all.

. On a stand?
A. No, I don’t think it was on a stand. Only had
the blackboard_

Where did you get the blackboard from#
From the school.

Where in the school did it come from?
Downstairs in the basement.

Was it in an inventory shed or inventory roomd
They had the blackboard there and I put it on
trunck and take it. :

Who told you to do this? _
Mr. Weisz was there and told me to do that.

Did he say who told him to do it?
No, he didn’t, just take it down.

S BEo PO P’@

th

Did somebody help you? '
Curt Brooks, I think, or Ben Brooks went
Wlth me.

S PO PO

Q. He was an employes of the school at the time?
A. Yeah, part time in the summer.

* * * * *

Q. Was Mr. Steinberg there when he recetved P
A, Yes. _
Q

. Did he say anything to you?
A. No, just told me, ‘“Put it in that room over
there.”” Gave us a three-dollar tlp or four-dollar tip
and we left.

(). Besides that, were you required to deliver any
property to any other school official?
A, No, that’s it.

Q. All right. Now, you mentioned somethmg about
use of the school truck premously?
A. Yeah, I think it was in October or November.
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Of what year?
I think it was last year.

19727
72,

What were you required to do with the school
truck??

A. Mr. Ansell Payne told me to get a dump truck,
and Mr, Panasoka worked for Ottilio, was a foreman,
said, ““He’ll go with you, take a ride in the fruck.’’
I said, ““All right.”” Wait for the foreman to come,
took a ride back of Sam Braen’s. You know, they
make rock, crushed rock. So, we had to pick up a
truckload of rock. A guy throw a load of rock and
I had to go to his summmer home.

© PO po

Whose summer home?
Mr. Payne’s summer home.

Where is that located?
West Milford.

New Jersey?
Yes.

PO PO PO

* 3#* # * %*

Q. You picked up a dumpload of crushed rock?
A. Yes.

Q. You brought it to Mr. Payne’s summer resi-
dence in——
A. Yes, West Milford.

Q. In West Milford?
A, Yes.

Q. What did you do when you got there?

A. His uncle was there and his son was in the
house. His uncle came out and said, “*Dump it in the
driveway.”” So I backed the truck up and dumped it,
the whole load, and left.

Q. When you picked up the rock, did you have to
stgn any voucher?

A. No. T had to go on the side, and the foreman
went inside and talked to the man.
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Q. You weren’t present? SR
A. No, I was outside waiting for him. .

(). Then you brought the truck back to schoal?
A That’s rlght

REPLY TESTIMONY

The Commission notes that Mr. Payne testified at ‘the. . publie
hearings that he did receive dehvery of the erushed rocL at his
summer home. but that he paid for it in full.

FEugene W, Dockery, the previously: 1dent1ﬁed Ples,ldent of the
Passaic County Board of Rducation, testified st an executive
session of the Commission and additionally submitted a notarized
statement relative to the delivery of a desk and some chairs from
the vocational high school to Mr. Doekery 8. mnnieipal office in the
Borough of Pompton Lakes where he is Borough: Clerk Admin-
istrator. Mr. Dockery testified and stated that he recewed those
school properties believing them to be surplus and- only to effect a
savings for the Borough. Mr. Dockery stated further that after
meeting with the Commission in executive: gession in Aungust, 1973,
“1 had Mr. Alex Smollok come to Pompton Lakes, mSpect the
furniture and tell me if it was surplus or non- surplus On inspec-
tion, he said a mistake-had been made at the school. The next day
I retumed the furniture to the sehool replacmo 11; Wlth munici-
pally purchased furnitire.”” " - - : -
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FINAL RECOMMENDATIONS

Introductlon

' The Commission found at the close of the public hearings that
- the total factual record of those proceedings clearly dehneated
how costly inefficiencies, laxities and abuses can develop in a
public school’s purchasing of supplies and services, all at the
expense of the taxpaying public. The Commission concluded that
development of corrective recommendations was obviously needed.

“'The importance of the best possible practices and controls being
employed by public schools is emphasized by the following data
from a recent report of the New Jersey State Chamber of Com-
merce: New Jersey residents are paying approximately $2.6

billion a year in property taxes. On a statewide average basis,
more than half, or $1.5 billion of that total onerous property
taxation goes for the support of publie schools, with that percent-
age reaching the 60 to 80% level in some commnnities.

In the probe of the Passaic County Voecational and Technical
High School, the Commission found most disturbing and regret-
table the widespread lack of concern by the school’s-administration
to obtain purely competitive prices for goods and services pur-
chased, with one witness characterizing the school’s purchasing
approach as akin to that of a corner “‘candy store.”’

The Commission took particular note of the testimony of one
witness who stated it should not be necessary for well intentioned
businessmen to do anything other than deal directly, openly and
honestly with a tax-supported institution.

In the atmosphere of laxity and abuse in the school s admini-
stration, the Commission found it small wonder that the school
became a dumping ground for millions of dollars in federal surplus
properties and that school employees on school time earted many
of those properties in school trucks to the private property of the
then Director of the State Surplus Property Agency. '

After the Commission had eompleted development of its final
recommendations in a prior investigation of the Workmen’s
Compensation system, immediate analysis and study of the faets
presented at the public hearings in Pasaic County was undertaken
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to formulate the final recommendations presented in this Annmual
Report. The Commission believes these final recommendations
provide avenues of action for improving fiscal procedures and
controls for schools throughout the state and to provide New Jersey
with a model surplus property agency which would be adequately
structured, financed and equipped to bring this vital edunecational
resource to all schools in need of it on an efficient and equi-
table basis.

A Prbper Surplus Property Program

The Testimony

Testimony from Mr. Herman Crystal, Deputy Director of fhe
Division of Purchase and Property, Walter J. Macak, Former
Director of the State Agency for Surplus Property and, Frederick
Leary, a former employee of the Agency ontlined a sfate
agency ill-structured and ill-equipped to perform a potentially
valuable service to educational institutions and other approved
facilities throughout the State. To remedy this sitnation the
Commission makes the following recommendations. .

The Commission’s Recommendations

1. A State plan for the acquisition and distribution of thls
surplus property

The U.S. Department of Health, Education and Welfare has
advised the Treasurer’s Office of this State must draw a plan
for the acquisition, sereening, inventory, distribution and

- accountability of this property. This has not been done. We
recommend the following ountline:

a) The overall plan mugt encompass and be designed
to effect compliance with the ‘“Surplus Property
Utilization Manual’® which is the compilation of
federal regulafions eoncerning the flow of this prop-
erty. These regulations are the *‘ground floor’’ which
govern acquisition by the State of such property.
They do not reach the State’s duty fo see that such
property is efficiently used in a manner which most
benefits the broad spectrum of eligible donees. .

b) Optimum use of such property depends in the first
... instanee on proper ‘‘sereening’’—the procedure by
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which property is identified, examined and evaluated
as to its potential use by eligible donees. The agency
sereener must be informed, in a general way, by the
eligible donees as to what type of property they are
looking for. This communication has been lacking in
the agency to this day and is a prime reason why so
much of the property acquired has never been used.

¢) A procedure should be adopted whereby all eligible
donees forward, on a regular basis, requests for sur-
plus property to the agency.

~d) The agency must publish a list of available prop-
erty to all eligible donees. These lists are mnow
received by the agency from the federal government,
but have not been regularly circulated to all eligible

“donees thereby allowing some ‘‘favored donees’’ fo
receive most of the property available.

e) The agency must maintain adequate files on all

. property received from the federal government and
returned items from donees, in order to comply with
accountability regulations and allow, the director to
evaluate the agency’s efficiency.

f) To insure effective management, provision must
be made for periodic internal andits of inventory and
distribution. These audits will encourage a wide dis-
~ tribution of surplus property throughout the State.

g) The plan must include the requirement for
periodic field ingpection by the director of the use of
such property by receiving donees. Such inspection
should include a check of all correspondence pertain-
ing to surplus property items.

| h) The ultimate disposition of obsolete and “‘serap’’
materials must be effected with the prior knowledge
and consent of the agency.

2. A Proper Staif to Carry Out the Ageney’s Responsibilitiéé

A staff, éonsistin-g at a minimum of the following personnel
is a necessity:
‘ 1) Direetor
2) Property Scanner
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3) Warehouse Manager '
4) Trueck Driver—Heavy Eqmpment Operatm e

5) Two Warehousemen '

6) File Clerk

7) Stenographer

3. Sufficient Warehouse Facﬂl‘aes :

A central warehouse for the storing of dona,ted federal
property which is not directly picked up by an eligible donee
is required. The Commission has heard testimony that valu-
able property which could have been acquired by this State
was lost becaunse it could not be acquired within the 15-day
time period set by the federal regulations. In addition, such
a facility could be used for ‘‘supermarket’’ shopping by
eligible donees—an idea conceived long ago but never put into
effect. Currently, the agency is renting warehouse facilities in
the Raritan federal depot at a yearly cost of $87,000. - This
amount is likely fo increase in succeeding fiscal years. The
Commission believes that this present arrangement is eco-
nomically unsuited to the long-range operation of the agency.
Adequate space can and should be made a,va,llable m State
warehouse facilities.

4. A Realistic Budget

A realistic budget for the operatlon and manacvement should
be drawn so that the agency is not forced to rely upon service
charges which, under federal regulations, may be made against
receiving, eligible donees. Such service charges are likely to
fluctuate from year to year depending upon how much prop-
erty is received and distributed,; while a reasonable budget will
insnre constant operation and management of the agency.

5. Transfer of the Agency

The primary intent of the federal program is to assist educa-
tional institutions, although other entities do qualify as eligible
donees. The federal offictals who administer this program for
New Jersey and who testified at the public hearings indicated
their preference for a totally independent. unit within the .
executive branch of government., Under this State’s Constitn-
tion such independence without cabinet status is impossible.
However, the Commission feels that the intent of the federal
program and the desires of the U.S. Department of Health,
Education and Welfare could be achieved by placmg the
agency ‘“in’’ the Department of Educatmn but not “of ” i,

214



Execution of Recommendations

The recommendations for an effective plan of operation, staff,
physiecal facilities and realistic budget may be implemented by the
State agency itself in conjunction with the governmental depart-
ment that it exists within,

The recommendation for transfer of the agency and change of
its status to a governmental unit ‘“in’’ but not *‘of’’ a department
would require new legislation.

Improved Controls of School Purchasing Practices

The Testimony

This Commission has heard testimony from vendors deing
business with the Passaie County Technical and Vocational High
School that the board secretary and business manager, through a
third party, consistently demanded and received ‘‘commissions’’
on orders placed and bids awarded for supplies throughout
a three-year period from 1969 to 1972. This price of doing business
was uniformly added to the cost of the product or service sgpplied
so that it eventually became a charge against the school’s financial
Tesources.

In addition, the testimony revealed a pattern of dealing through
middlemen by the school’s purchasing agent which substantially
inflated the price of every article and service supplied beyond any
reasonable expectation of fair profit. This practice continued for
the same three-year period apparently without the knowledge but
under the nose of the duly appointed Passaic County Technical
and Vocational Board of Eduecation. Again, this resulted in a
substantial charge against the school’s financial resources.

The Commission’s Recommendations
1. Responsibilities Must Be Fully Shouldered

Laws presently existing under Title 18A of New Jersey
Statutes annotated comprehend a balance of duaties and
responsibilities between the paid administrative staff of a
school and the non-paid board members that will allow for
efficient day to day management. Puf another way, the statute
contemplates that the board manager and/or business secre-
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tary will execute his responsibilities with infegrity and ability -
and, if he does not, the supervising board will soon become
aware of it. The total failure of the lawmakers expectations
‘in this particular case was not a result of a flaw or loophole
in the statute; rather, it was the failure of the individuals asso-
ciated with this school, intentionally or otherwise, to shoulder
their fair responsibilities as publie officers.

In execulive session the Commission received the testimony
of the President of the School Board, another board member
and the school administrator. The first two testified that the
pressures of time and indifference to details resulted in a
virtual rubber-stamping of the purchases and other activities
of the business agent and board secretary. When it is realized
that school districts in general and particularly in suburban
areas, spend more than half of the average residential tax
dollar, the propensity for waste that any breakdown in the
_ 'system of checks and balances encourages 1is -alarming.
. The state cannot prevent planned crlm.mai activity from

opening a wound in the important part of our social fabrie,
~ but the state simply cannot afford to allow such a wound to.
. bleed a tax-supported operation through indifference.

’I‘k:e Commission notes that its public hearings were con- -
cluded on September 19, 1973 and that a transcript of these
public hearings ig available to anyone who wishes to purchase
the same. The Commission also notes that Mr. Alex Smollok,
" Board Secretary and Business Manager of the Passaie County.
. Technical and Voeational High School still occupies these .

official positions. The Commission is aware that there is ample
. procedure under the law for the removal of board secretaries
and/or business managers who are guilty of neglect, mis-
" behavior or other offenses during the performance of their
official duties. The Commission feels that its findings of fact
and official testimony taken should be considered by the Board
of Fducation in determining whether or mot to institute
removal proceedings against Alex Smollok.

The Commigsion hopes that the example abuses of this
school’s purchasing practices as exhibited in the public hear-
ings will encourage all officials throughout the state, who £l
the thousands of non-paid supervisory positions, to apply their
good judgment and those sound business pr1nc1ples which
made them the choice of their appointing a,uthorlty
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2. Confusion Between Statutes Governing Purchase by Bid

. During the course of this investigation the Commission
became aware of some confusion among many school admini-
strators and Board members regarding the applicability of
the Local Public Contracts Law (N.J.S.A. 40A :11-1 et seq.),
which became effective on July 1, 1971, and the older bidding
laws contained under Title 18A of New Jersey Statutes
Annotated.

Under N.J.S.A. 18A:18-5 contracts executed by a Board of
Edueation for supplies costing less than $1,000 may be entered
into without bidding. However, under the Local Public Con-
tracts Law (N.J.8.A. 40A:11-4), contracts for the furnishing
of supplies exceeding $2,500 must be made by public bidding

‘‘except as provided otherwige in this aect or speclﬁcally by
any other law.”?

The I.ocal Public Contracts Law containg an explicit
repealer clanse (N.J.S.A. 40A:11-38) which does nof repeal
anything in Title 18A. Apparently, this latter statute was not
intended to affect the requirements contained under Title 18A.
In a sense this is unfortunate since the Local Public Contr acts
Law is superior to the older law in all respects. :

Inflation has made the $1,000 limitation more burdensome
than originally intended in 1949 and counterproductive to
genuine efforts to secure the lowest priee possible in rapidly
fluetnating markets. The Local Public Contracts Law spells
out what the advertising requirements are and provides for
the governing body to fix the qualification of bidders—a provi-
sion which would go far towards reducing any reliance upon
“‘middlemen.”” Further, it specifically forbids the governing
body to adopt specifications which knowingly exclude prospee-
tive bidders by reason of impossibility of performance, bidding
or qualifications by any but one bidder.

On the whole, this newer statute is designed to secure
cotopetition while guarding against favoritism, extravagance
and corruption to the immense benefit of the taxpayer.

__The Commission strongly recommends that the Legislature
review the bidding provisions contained under Title 18A with
an eye towards replacing them with the more realistic scheme
contamed in the Liocal Public Contracts Law.

217



3. Proper Purchasing Procedures

In order to bolster the present statutory scheme of checks
and balances, the Commission submits the following speclﬁc
recommendations:

The Commission recommends that all school boards who
have not already done so, presceribe the following regulations
concerning the purchase of materials, supplies and services
by its business agent without bids

1) Prior to the purchase of any material, supply or
gervice in excess of $250.00 a reasonable effort be
made to determine a competifive price for such
material, supply or service; "

2) That such a reasonable effort shall be presumed
to have been made if three quotes are solicited and
received from independent sources for snch material,
supply or service;

3) That such quotes or other evidence of reasonable
effort be recorded in writing and annexed to the con-
tract which by existing law (N.J.S.A. 18A.:54-26)
must be presented and passed on at a regularly called
meeting of the board; '

4) That reasonable effort shall be presumed to have
been made if the purchase of such material, supply or
service is made from the list of supplies and suppliers
maintained by the State Bureau of Purchase and
Property or the Surplus and Vending Distribution
Service within that department;

5) That the board or a committee of its members
review on a quarterly basis with its purchasing agent
its purchasing practices.

4. Prompt Payment of Bills

The Commission has received testimony that indicates some
potential suppliers of goods and services are reluctant to deal
direetly with school boards due to the ‘‘inordinate volume of
paper work involved’’ and ‘‘excessive period of time’’ between
submission of their bill and actnal receipt of payment. In order
to insure that such difficulties, whether real or 1magmed on
the part of the supplier, will not exist, we recommend:
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1) All payment invoices should be reviewed by the
school board within 20 days of receipt of such invoice
at a public meeting and approval of such payments
should involve thorough review and not become a
“‘rubber stamp’’ procedure which was found in the
investigation.

2) All payments due suppliers or materials or
services, except those whose invoices for incre-
- mental payments (such as on capital construction or
‘major reconstruction contracts), should be made
within 10 days of voucher approval. This, then, wounld
‘indicate payment within 30 days of receipt of demand
for payment (invoice). This is normal business pro-

- cedure which suppliers have a right to effect.

Execution of Recommendations

The proposed regulations which are intended to insure the
obtaining of a competifive price for those articles purchased with-
out bid should be promulgated by the State Board of Education
pursuant to its authority under N.J.S.A. 18A :54-21.

The proposed review of those statutory sections under title 18A
which govern purchases by a school board should be considered
by legislature at its earliest convenience.

Theft of Goods and Services by Public Officials

The Commission has received testimony indicating that the
school’s Board Secretary and Business Manager required em-
ployees of the Passaic County Vocational and Technical High
School to perform labor and professional services at his private
residence during school hours without compensation by him.
Instead, these employees were compensated by the school in the
form of regular salaries and overtime payments. In addition, the
testimony indicated that the Board Secretary and Business Man-
ager received articles of school property and converted them to his
own personal use. The Commission believes that this problem is
certainly more widespread than the particular instances examined
during these public hearings. Therefore, it wishes to take this
opportunity to recommend that legislation be enacted that will
specifically define such conduet as a eriminal violation.
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APPENDIX 1

STATE COMMISSION OF INVESTIGATION
New Jersey Statutes Annotated 52:9M-1, Ef Seq.

L. 1968, C. 266, as amended by L. 1969, C. 67, L. 1970, C. 263, and
L. 1973, C. 238.

52:9M—-1. Creation; members; appointment; chairman; terms;
salaries; vacancies. There is hereby created a temporary state
commission of investigation. The commission shall consist of 4
members, to be known as commissioners.

Two members of the commission shall be appointed by the
governor, one by the president of the senate and one by the speaker
of the general assembly, each for 5 years. The governor shall des-
ignate one of the members to serve as chairman of the commission.

The members of the commission appointed by the president of
the senate and the speaker of the general assembly and at least one
of the members appointed by the governor shall be attorneys ad-
mitted to the bar of this state. No member or employee of the eom-
mission shall hold any other public office or public employment. Not
more than 2 of the members shall belong fo the same political party.

Each member of the commission shall receive an annual salary
of $15,000.00 and shall also be entitled to reimbursement for his
expenses actually and necessarily incurred in the performance of
his duties, including expenses of travel outside the state.

Vacancies in the commission shall be filled for the unexpired
term in the same manner as original appointments. A vacancy in
the commission shall not impair the right of the remaining mem-
bers to exercise all the powers of the commission.

52:9M-2. Duties and powers. The commission shall have the
duty and power to conduct investigations in connection with:

a. The faithful execution and effective enforcement of the laws
of the state, with particular reference but not limited to organized
‘erime and racketeering.

b. The conduct of public officers and public employees, and of
officers and employees of public corporations and authorities;
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‘¢. Any matter concerning the public peace, public safety and
public justice,
 52:9M--3. Additional duties. At the direction of the governor

or by concurrent resolution of the legislature the commission shal
conduet investigations and otherwise assist in connection with:

"a. The removal of public officers by the governor;

b. The making of recommendations by the governor to any other
person or body, with respect to the removal of public officers;

¢. The making of recommendations by the governor to the legis-
lature with respect to changes in or additions to existing provisions
of law required for the more effective enforcement of the law.

52:9M—4. Investigation of management or affairs of state de
partment or agency. At the direction or request of the legislature
by concurrent resolution or of the governor or of the head of any
department, board, burean, commission, authority or other agency
created by the state, or to which the state is a party, the commis-
siors shall investigate the management or affairs of any such
depariment, board, bureau, commission, authority or other agency.

52:9M—-5. Cooperation with law enforcement officials. Upon
request of the attorney general, a county prosecutor or any other
law enforcement official, the commission ghall cooperate with,
advise and assist them in the performance of their official powers
and duties.

52:9M—-6. Cooperation with federal government. The commis-
sion shall cooperate with departments and officers of the United
States government in the investigation of violations of the federal
laws within this state,

52:9M—7. Examination info law enforcement affecting other
states. The commissgion shall examine into matters relating to law
enforcement extending across the boundaries of the state into other
states; and may consult and exchange information with officers and
agencies of other states with respect to law enforcement problems
of mutual concern to this and other states,

52:9M-8. Reference of evidence to other officials. Whenever it
shall appear to the commission that there is canse for the prosecu-
tion for a erime, or for the removal of a publie officer for miseon-
duct, the commission shall refer the evidence of such erime or mis-
conduct to the officials authorized to conduct the prosecutlon or to
remove the public officer,
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52:9M-9. Ezecutive director; coumsel; employees. The com-
mission shall be authorized to appoint and employ and at pleasure
remove an executive director, counsel, investigators, accountants,
and such other persons as it may deem necessary, without regard
to civil service; and to determine their duties and fix their salaries
or compensation within the amounts appropriated therefor. In-
vestigators and accountants appointed by the commission shall be
and have all the powers of peace officers.

52:9M-10. Awnnmual report; recommendalions; other reporis.
The commission shall make an annual report to the governor and
legislature which shall include its recommendations. The commis-
sion shall make such further interim reports to the governor and
legislature, or either thereof, as it shall deem advisable, or as shall
be required by the governor or by concurrent resolution of the
legislature.

52:9M-11. Information to public. By such means and fo such
extent as it shall deem appropriate, the commission shall keep the
public informed as to the operations of organized crime, problems
of eriminal law enforecement in the state and other activities of the
COMMISRION.

52:9M~12. Additional powers; warrant for arrest; contempt of
court. With respect to the performance of its functions, duties and
powers and gubject to the limitation contained in paragraph d. of
this section, the commission shall he anthorized as follows:

a. To conduct any investigation aunthorized by this act at any
place within the state; and to maintain offices, hold meetings and
function at any place within the state as it may deem necessary;

b. To conduct private and public hearings, and to designate a
member of the commission to preside over any such hearing;

¢. To administer oaths or affirmations, subpena witnesses,
compel their attendance, examine them under oath or affirmation,
and require the production of any books, records, documenis or
other evidence it may deem relevant or material to an investiga-
tion; and the commission may designate any of its members or
any member of its staff to exercise any such powers;

d. Unless otherwise instructed by a resolution adopted by a
majority of the members of the commission, every witness attend-
ing before the commission shall be examined privately. and the
commission shall not make public the particulars of such examina-
tion. The cornmission shall not have the power to take testimony
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at a private hearing or at a public hearing unless at least 2 of
its members are present at such hearing.

e. Witnesses summoned to appear before the commission shall be
entitled to receive the same fees and mileage as persons summoned
to testify in the courts of the state.

If any person subpenaed pursuant to this section shall neglect
or refuse to obey the command of the subpena, any judge of the
superior court or of a county court or any municipal magistrate
may, on proof by affidavit of service of the subpena, payment or
tender of the fees required and of refusal or neglect by the person
to obey the command of the subpceena, issue a warrant for the arrest
of said person to bring him before the judge or magistrate, who is
authorized to proceed against suech person as for a contempt of
. court.

52:9M-13. Powers and dubies unaffected. Nothing contained
in sections 2 through 12 of this act [ehapter] shall be construed to
supersede, repeal or limit any power, duty or function of the
governor or any department or agency of the state, or any political
subdivision thereof, as prescribed or defined by law.

52:9M-14. Request and receipt of assistance. The commission
may request and shall receive from every department, division,
board, bureau, commission, authority or other agency created by
the state, or to which the state is a party, or of any political sub-
division thereof, cooperation and assistance in the performance of
its duties.

52:9M-15. Disclosure forbidden; statemenis absolutely priv-
ileged. Any person conducting or participating in any examina-
tion or investigation who shall disclose to any person other than
the commission or an officer having the power to appoint one or
more of the commissioners the name of any witness examined, or
any information obtained or given upon such examination or in-
vestigation, except as directed by the governor or commission, shall
be adjudged a disorderly person. '

Any statement made by a member of the commission or an em-
ployee thereof relevant to any proceedings before or investigative
activities of the commission shall be absolutely privileged and such
privilege shall be a complete defense to any action for libel or
slander. - *
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52:9M—-16. Impounding exhibits; action by superior court.
Upon the application of the commission, or a duly anthorized mem-
ber of its staff, the superior court or a judge thereof may impound
any exhibit marked in evidence in any public or private hearing
held in connection with an investigation conducted by the commis-
sion, and may order such exhibit to be retained by, or delivered to
and placed in the custody of, the commission. When so impounded
such exhibits shall not be taken from the custody of the commission,
except apon further order of the court made upon 5 days’ notice to
the commission or upon its application or with its consent,

52:90M-17. Immunity; order; notice; effect of immunity. a. If,
in the course of any investigation or hearing conducted by the com-
mission pursuant to this act [ehapter], a person refuses to answer
a question or guestions or produce evidence of any kind on the
ground that he will be exposed to eriminal proseeution or penalty
or to a forfeiture of his estate thereby, the commission may order
the person to answer the question or questions or produce the
requested evidence and confer immunity as in this section provided.
No order to answer or produce evidence with immunity shall be
made except by resolution of a majority of all the members of the
commission and after the attorney general and the appropriate
county prosecutor shall have been given at least 24 hours written
notice of the commission’s intention to issme such order and
afforded an opportunity to be heard in respeet to any objections
they or either of them may have to the granting of immunity. -

b. If upon issnance of such an -order, the person complies there-
with, he shall be immune from having such responsive answer given
by him or such responsive evidence produced by him, or evidence
derived therefrom used to expose him to eriminal prosecution or
penalty or to a forfeiture of his estate, except that sueh person
may nevertheless be prosecuted for any perjury committed in such
answer or in producing such evidence, or for contempt for failing
to give an answer or produce in accordance with the order of the
commission; and any such answer given or evidence produced shall
be admissible against him upon any eriminal investigation, pro-
ceeding or trial against him for such perjury, or upon any investi-
gation, proceeding or trial against him for such contempt.

52:9M—18. Severability; effect of partial imvalidity. If any
section, clause or portion of this act [chapter] shall be unconstitu-
tional or be ineffective in whole or in part, to the extent that it is
not unconstitutional or ineffective it shall be valid and effective and
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no other section, clause or provision ghall on account thereof be
deemed invalid or ineffective.

52:9M~19. There is hereby appropriated to the Commission the
sum of $400,000.

52:9M-20. This act ghall take effect immediately and remain
in qffect until December 31, 1979.
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APPENI_)IX 1

MEMBERS OF THE COMMISSION

The Commission’s activities are now under the direction of
Joseph H. Rodriguez who in December, 1973 was appointed to
be a Commissioner and Chairman by then Governor William T.
Cahill. He succeeded John F. MeCarthy Jr. who had been Chair-
man since February, 1971 and a Commissioner since July, 1970.
The other Commissioners are Charles L, Bertini, Thomas R. Far-
ley and David G. Lucas.

Mr. Rodriguez, of Cherry Hill, fook his oath of office as Com-
missioner and Chairman in January, 1974 A graduate of LaSalle
College and Rutgers University L.aw School, he was awarded an
Honorary Doctor of Laws Degree by St. Peter’s College in 1972
Mr. Rodriguez was a member of the Board of Directors of the
Camden Housing Improvement Project during 1967-71. He was
appointed to the State Board of Higher Education in 1971 and the
next year was elected Chairman of that agency which oversees the
operation and growth of the state colleges and university, Mr.
Rodriguez resigned that Chairmanship to aceept his appointment
to the Commission. He is a partner in the law firm of Brown,
Connery, Kulp, Wille, Purnell and Greene, in Camden,

Mr, Bertini, of Wood-Ridge, was sworn in as a Commissioner
in Janary, 1969 following his appointment by former Governor
Richard J. Hughes. A graduate of the former Dana College and
the Rutgers University Law School, he was president of the
New Jersey Bar Association when he was named to the Commission.
Bloomfield (N.J.) College awarded him an honorary Doctor of
Laws degree in 1970. Mr. Bertini conducts a general law practice
in Wood-Ridge.

Mr. Farley, of West Orange, took his original oath of office as
a Commigsioner in March, 1973 following his appointment to the -
Commission by then Speaker of the State Assembly Thomas H.
Kean, A graduate of the University of Notre Dame and Rutgers
University Law School, Mr. Farley served as an Essex County
Freeholder during 1968-70 and as Essex County Surrogate in 1971.
He has been an instructor in insurance finance courses at Rutgers
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University and St. Peter’s College. His law firm, Farley and
Rush, has offices in East Orange.

Mr. Lucas, of Somerville, took his oath of office as a Commis-
sioner in November, 1973 following his appointment to the
Commission by then State Senate President Alfred N. Beadleston.
A graduate of Seton Hall University and Columbia TUniversity
Law school, he was Deputy Director of the State Criminal Justice
Division in 1970-73, during which time he also held sucecessively
the posts of Deputy State Attorney General and Assistant State
Attorney General. As Deputy Director, he was assigned at various
times to serve as Acting Prosecutor of Ocean, Bergen and Hunter-
don Counties. Mr. Lucas is a partner in the law firm of Tmbriani,
Westling and Lucas, Bound Brook.
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APPENDIX' 111

CODE OF FAIR PROCEDURE

Chapter 376, Laws of New Jersey, 1968, N. J, 8. 52:13E~-1
to 52:13E-10. ‘

An Act establishing a code of fair procedure to govern state
investigating agencies and providing a penalty for certain viola-
tions thereof,

Be it enacted by the Senate and General Assembly of the State
of New Jersey:

1. As used in this act:

(a) ‘““Agency’’ means any of the following while engaged in an
investigation or inquiry: (1) the Governor or any person or per-
sons appointed by him acting pursuant to P. L. 1941, c. 16, s. 1
(C. 52:15-T7), (2) any temporary State commission or duly autho-
rized committee thereof having the power to require testimony or
the production of evidence by subpona, or (3) any legislative
committee or commission having the powers set forth in Revised
Statutes 52:13-1.

(b) ‘“Hearing’’ means any hearing in the course of an investi-
gatory proceeding (other than a preliminary conference or inter-
view at which no testimony is taken under oath) conducted before
an agency at which testimony or the production of other evidence
may be compelled by subpena or other compulsory process.

(¢) ‘“‘Public hearing’’ means any hearing open to the publie, or
any hearing, or such part thereof, as to which testimony or other
evidence is made available or disseminated to the public by the
agency.

(d) ‘‘Private hearing’’ means any hearing other than a public
hearing.

2, No person may be required to appear at a hearing or to
testify at a hearing unless there has been personally served upon
him prior to the time when he is required to appear, a copy of this
act, and a general statement of the subject of the investigation. A
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copy of the resolution, statute, order or other provision of law
authorizing the investigation shall be furnished by the agency upon
request therefor by the person summoned.

3. A witness summoned to a hearing shall have the right to be
accompanied by counsel, who shall be permitfed to advise the
witness of his rights, subject to reasonable limitations o prevent
obstruection of or interference with the orderly conduct of the hear-
ing. Counsel for any witness who testifies at a public hearing may
submit proposed questions fo be asked of the witness relevant to
the matters upon which the witness has been questioned and the
agency shall ask the witness such of the questions as it may deem
appropriate to its inquiry.

" 4. A complete and accurate record shall be kept of each public
hearing and a witness shall be entitled to receive a copy of his
testimony at such hearing at his own expense. Where testimony
which a witness has given at a private hearing becomes relevant in
a eriminal proceeding in which the witness is a defendant, or in any
subsequent hearing in which the witness is summoned to testify,
the witness shall be entitled to a copy of such testimony, at his own
expense, provided the same is available, and provided further that
the furnishing of such eopy will not prejudice the public safety or
secuntv : :

5. A witness Who testifies at any hearing shall have the rlght at
the conclusion of his examination to file a brief sworn statement
relevant to his testimony for incorporation in the record of the
investigatory proceedmg

6. Any person whose name is mentioned or who is specifically
identified and who believes that testimony or other evidence given
at a public hearing or comment made by any member of the ageney
or its counsel at such hearing tends to defame him or otherwise
adversely affect his reputation shall have the right, either fo appear
personally before the agency and testify in his own behalf as to
matters relevant to the testimony or other evidence complained of,
or in the alternative at the option of the agency, to file a statement
of facts under oath relating solely to matters relevant to the
testimony or other evidence complained of, which statement shall
be incorporated in the record of the investigatory proceeding.

7. Nothing in this act shall be construed to prevent an agency
from granting to witnesses appearing before it, or fo persons who
claim to be adversely affected by tfestimony or other evidence
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adduced before it, such further rights and privileges as it may
determine.

8. Except in the course of subsequent hearing which is open to
the public, no testimony or other evidenee adduced at a private
hearing or preliminary eonference or interview conducted before a
single-member agency in the course of its investigation shall be
disseminated or made available fo the public by said agency, its
counsel or employees withont the approval of the head of the
agency. Hixcept in the course of a subsequent hearing open to the
public, no testimony or other evidence adduced at a private hearing
or preliminary conference or interview before a committee or other
multi-member investigating agency shall be disseminated or made
available to the public by any member of the agency, its counsel or
employees, except with the approval of a majority of the members
of such agency. Any person who violates the provisions of this
subdivision shall be adjudged a disorderly person.

4. No temporary State commission having more than 2 members
shall have the power to take testimony at a publiec or private hear-
ing unless at least 2 of its members are present at such hearing.

10. Nothing in this act shall be construed to affect, diminish or
impair the right, under any other provision of law, rule or custom,
of any member or group of members of a committee or other multi-
member investigating agency to file a statement or statements of
minority views to accompany and be released with or subsequent
to the report of the ecommittee or agency.
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